



MULTICHANNEL ATOMIC EMISSION SPECTRA (MAES) ANALYZER

"ATOM" software User Manual VMKO.157UM

Number of pages — 108

Novosibirsk, 2016



MAES Multichannel emission spectra analyzer Measuring Instrument Type Approval Certificate RU.C.31.001.A № 42605



The main goal of this Manual is to provide users with necessary and appropriate information on atomic emission spectral analysis using MAES. MAES analyzer and "ATOM" software allow performing spectral analysis in a more effective and convenient way.

Table of Contents

Software General Information	5
Key Software Features	5
User Interface	6
Software Interface General Information	6
Main Window Header	6
Main Menu	7
Toolbars	8
Standard Toolbar	8
"Device" Toolbar	8
"Spectral Line" Toolbar	8
"Mode" Toolbar	9
"Analysis" mode ("Engineer")	9
Document window	9
Spectrum Window	10
Calibration Graph Window	12
Analysis Table Window	14
Main Controls in "Analysis" Mode	19
Description of Modes	21
"MAES Test" mode	22
"Profiling" Mode	25
"Report" Mode	30
"Assistant" Mode	34
"Database" Mode	38
"Standards" Mode	41
"Reference Material" Mode	42
"Grade Guide" Mode	44
"Analysis Programs" Mode	45
Developing Routine Analysis Programs	45
Description of dialogs	49
"Periodic table"	49
"Measurement mode"	50
"Add spectrum to analysis table"	53
"Add analytic line to analysis table"	53
"Columns"	54
"Samples"	55
"Recalibration"	57
Spectral line display settings	57
Subdialogs of program settings	59

Analysis settings	61
"Peak"	
"Reference line"	
"Graph"	
"Concentration calculation"	67
"Time tracking"	
"Technique"	
"Reference lines"	70
Spectrum window settings	72
"Spectral lines"	73
Calibration graph window settings	76
Analysis table window settings	77
Working with the program	81
Profiling	81
Analysis	
Setting up the spectral equipment	
Software settings	
Tools	92
"Histogram"	
"Spurious lines"	
"Qualitative Analysis"	
"Identification of spectra"	
"Print several spectrum ranges"	96
"Comparative research"	
"Content diagram"	
"Quick tool panel"	
"Search of analytic pairs of lines"	
Data control in the analysis table	
Using the base of reference materials	
Base of spectral lines	
Sample list	
Operations with spectra	
Keyboard Commands	
Add-on modules	
"Recording from camera"	
"Measurement monitor"	
Globula stand control	
Fireball generator control	
Saving equipment parameters	
Software package and licensing information	

Software General Information

"ATOM" software package is a flexible tool for atomic emission spectral analysis. It provides MAES operation, performs necessary processing of spectra to calculate element concentrations, has a high performance, optimizes procedures and performs analysis with the maximum efficiency.

Key Software Features

• Visualization of measured spectra in any scale, displaying the whole spectrum, spectral region, neighbour of a specific spectral line.

• Profiling provides identification of the spectral lines.

• Superposition of images of several spectra for visual comparison. Comparing spectra measured using various types of spectrometers.

• Automatic correction of possible spectrum shift during the analysis.

• Automatic general semiquantitative analysis — search and processing of spectral lines with assessment of element concentrations.

• Automatic calculation of spectral line parameters — searching the line centre and points for background assessment under the line.

• Statistical processing of calibration graphs and analysis results. Discarding gross errors by the specified criteria.

• Calculation of calibration graphs on specified coordinates. Operation in the constant graph mode with recalibration by reference samples (RS).

• Identification of spectral aliasing and interfering lines. Fractionation of aliasing lines.

• Storage of spectral information and post-processing with reiterated addition of new lines and change of processing parameters.

• Analysis of line intensity variation over time.

• Differentiation of the beginning and the registration time of various elements depending on conditions of spectral excitation.

• Printing and saving spectra, analysis results and calibration graphs to a file.

• Transferring of analysis results to the database — plant-wide integration into the quality assurance system.

User Interface

Software Interface General Information

Atom 3.3 software appearance:



Software includes MDI-interface (multi-document interface). It means it allows simultaneous processing of several open documents (files). Use "Document" item in the main program menu, or "Document" tab on "Mode" toolbar, or "Ctrl+Tab" standard key combination to switch between documents.

Main user interface elements:

- main window header
- main menu
- toolbars
- status bar
- "Mode" toolbar
- document window (see below)

Document window has three main sections:

- 1. spectrum window in the upper left part of the document window
- 2. calibration graph window (upper right) and
- 3. analysis table window (below)

Main Window Header

Main window header in "Atom" software: Header includes the following information:

- icon "Atom" software logo
- program name

VMKO.157UM L.6

🚯 Atom - [C:\Atom 3.3\Data\Grand-Expert_aluminium-2014.spd]

8

- full path to currently open file (see picture above), if program is in "Analysis" mode
- current mode name (for example, "Profiling", "Alloys", etc.)

Program header also has standard window control buttons:

- Far right button (a cross against red background) is used to close the main program window. *Warn-ing! Clicking this button closes "Atom" software.*
- Use left button to minimize main window in the Windows taskbar.
- Central button is used to change main window size: maximize / set necessary size.

Main Menu

main program menu is located under the drop-down bar:

File Document Analysis Mode Tool Settings Windows Help

- File menu contains such file control commands, as Save/Open File, New File, export current document to the database, create analysis program. List of recently used files is also located there. Use this list (without using "Open" dialog) to open quickly one of the recently used files.
- "**Document**" menu is used for fast switching between open documents (files). Current document is checked with a mark.
- "Analysis" menu item allows returning to the current document from any program mode (for example, from "Profiling" or "Alloys" mode). When the current document is active, this menu item is disabled (highlighted with grey colour).
- All available operation modes are located in "**Mode**" menu. When switching to any mode a new window opens, corresponding to the selected mode; current document and other modes become unavailable. Use "**Analysis**" or "**Document**"

item (see above) to jump back to the current document. Detailed description of all possible program modes is presented in corresponding chapters of this manual.

• Advanced analysis tools that which do not fall under "Mode" item, for which there are no shortcut

ool Settings Windows Help	
Histogram Spectral line base Images	
Metrology Measurement monitor Spurious lines	Reference Material certification Online error control
Separation of spurious lines Qualitative analysis Spectrum identification	
Sample list Scintillation Operations with spectra	
Exporting spectra Three lines method Comparative study	
Composition chart Analytical lines search	

keys in any toolbar (since they are used rather infrequently) are located in "**Tool**" menu. Detailed description of all advanced analysis tools is provided in the corresponding chapters of this manual.

- Main settings of the program are located in "Settings" menu. Detailed description of all possible settings is provided in corresponding chapters of this manual.
- "Windows" menu item is standard for the majority of programs. Window size and position control commands (such as "Cascade", "Arrange", "Order" are located in this menu. Such commands as "Show"/"Hide" for all main tool-

bars, status bar and "Mode" panel are located in Windows menu as well. All panels currently displayed in the program are checked with a mark.

Atom	- [C:\Atom 3.3 Document							
	New							
	Open Save Save As				Ctrl+O Ctrl+S			
* 1,9	Save to datab Close	oase						
<mark>80</mark>	Open analysis program Create analysis program							
60 40	1 ultra-pure c 2 nikel-Grand 3 Grand-Expe	-Expert ert_alumini	um-2014	ţ				
	4 platinum-26 Exit	0-03-15						

Toolbars

Toolbars are used to group controls by a feature. Buttons and/or drop-down lists are usually located there. There are three toolbars in "Atom" software:

• floating toolbars are usually located under the main menu; they are used to minimize them ("Windows" menu) and change their position ("push and drag"). Freeze toolbars through "Settings — Split document windows..." menu.



Standard Toolbar

- 🗅 create new (blank) document
- ൙ open file
- **—** save file with the current name
- print report (switching to [review mode before printing)

a -	You can print different types of reports:
Calibration curves Standard report Scintillation	 Standard report with analysis results. Consolidated report with calibration graph parameters. Consolidated scintillation report with results.

"Device" Toolbar

- open device settings dialog
- → start dark current measurement
- start spectrum measurement
 - spectrum cycle measurements. Stop measurements space button.
- The button may be hidden using menu item
 - "Settings > Instrument > Advanced settings..."

"Spectral Line" Toolbar

★ Be 313.04219 II ACSKG 2360 ▼ 4 ▶

— open spectral line display settings dialog.

Be

×

- open "Periodic table" dialog to select current chemical element. Name of the currently selected element is displayed.

313.04219 II ACSKG 2360

— current spectral line of the current chemical element. Click the triangle button at the right of the current line to display other lines. Select another line in the drop-down list (click it); it will become the current line. Use spectral line display setting dialog to set the list of lines and their position in the list.

```
• •
```

— move within the list of lines of the current element (next/previous)

"Mode" Toolbar



- 2. calibration graph window (upper right) and
- 3. analysis table window (below)

Move borders with a mouse (click-drag&drop), which allows changing relative sizes of all three sections of the document. Each section has its unified interface with standard controls:

- Customized "frozen" toolbars. Position and size of these toolbars are fixed, but you can select controls from the list, available for this window section, and the order they are displayed on the toolbars. For further information see "Customize Toolbars".
- 🛠, 🛈 and 🖨 buttons which are usually located in the left upper corner of each section of the document window.

- ★ open the section settings window
- (i) open the section information window

print of section content (spectrum or calibration graph), switch to preview mode before printing

- Use special toolbars with black triangle buttons in the upper right corner of each document section to control the size of sections such as "maximize"/"minimize". For further information see "Toolbars".
- Use standard Windows controls such as scrolling bar to scroll through the section content (if all information cannot be viewed within the section).

Spectrum Window

Spectrum window is used to display the current spectrum as a graph, measured by MAES or selected in the analysis table.



Use the following tools to control spectrum scale and position:

- 1. Vertical toolbar at the right of the spectrum (a set of green arrow buttons). See "Main controls in 'Analysis' mode".
- 2. Right mouse button (see "Zooming with mouse").
- 3. Standard controls such as "scrolling bar" located at the right and the left of spectrum window. They are used to move the window the visible part of the spectrum along the spectrum in any of four directions. For more details, see Windows help.
- 4. You can also use left mouse button (click-drag&drop with sift key held down) to browse along the spectrum.
- 5. Double click left mouse button to move the spectrum horizontally so that the click point is in the centre of the window.

Main items of the spectrum window:

• Spectrum as a Graph You can view only a part of the spectrum according to the current spectrum scale and position. Horizontal axis (number of diodes N or wave length (λ) is displayed under the spectrum, the vertical axis (spectrum intensity), per unit value or in percent (%) of the maximum value of the analogue-digital converter (ADC)) is displayed to the left of the spectrum. Additional graphs (8 colours) can be displayed in the window apart from the main current spectrum (highlighted with black colour).

Unit spectrum has the following display features:

- red spectrum region. ADC overflows due to high radiation intensity during intensity measurements (off-scale reading). The intensity cannot be measured precisely in this region. Position mouse cursor in this region, "r" symbol will be added to the amplitude value in the status bar. For example, "64.747r".
- spectrum region is not displayed in two cases: First, "faulty" diode may be present in this spectrum region. Diode is marked as "faulty", if it cannot measure the intensity reliably enough (for more details see "Discarding faulty diodes"). Place mouse cursor in this region, "NODATA" string will be displayed in the status bar as the amplitude. Second, gap between crystals may be located in this spectrum region. Spectrum is not measured in gaps and is not displayed in the window.
- *spectrum region is displayed twice.* If spectrum is measured using MAES in a gapless or two-string version, there is an aliasing caused by neighbouring crystals.
- Toolbars are located **above and to the right** of main controls in spectrum window.

Detailed description of each button is provided in "Main controls in 'Analysis' mode" section.

Use "Customize toolbars" (click *** and choose "Toolbars" tab) to choose, which buttons to display, as well as their order and position).

- Two "strings" are located immediately under the spectrum image:
 - reference data display line with spectral line peak wavelengths for the selected atoms (see "Spectral lines" toolbar). In addition to lines of selected atoms, lines of at-



oms from the analysis table, lines of atoms from the qualitative analysis, reference lines and some other lines may be displayed. Each line has its own colour. Open "Spectral Lines" dialog (click $\stackrel{\checkmark}{s}$ and select "Spectral Lines" tab) to control lines and their colours. Use button $\stackrel{\checkmark}{s}$ or "Strings" dialog (click $\stackrel{\checkmark}{s}$ and select "Strings" tab) to show/hide this string. All peak wavelength values of spectral lines displayed in this string, are reference values and are stored in a file with .mnd extension.

• "*Photoplate*" displays the current spectrum as a photoplate: darkening value in each image point of a string is directly proportional to the logarithm of intensity in the corresponding spectrum point.



Photoplate is displayed in a scale corresponding to the current spectrum scale. Use button $\frac{1}{1000}$ (options: hide – $\frac{1}{1000}$, show several strings – $\frac{1}{1000}$) to show this string.

- Red vertical **spectrum cursor** indicates spectrum location, where wavelength are measured, diode number and intensity displayed in the status bar. Click left mouse button in other spectrum region to reposition the cursor. If you set the "Set cursor at the peak" flag in "Peak search" dialog (click and select "Peak search" tab), the cursor will be automatically set at the peak nearest to cursor's primary position. Besides, if the flag is not set and the graph is in **N mode** (**N** button, see "Main 'Analysis' mode buttons"), then the cursor will be automatically set at the middle of the maximum diode from the histogram, which describes the peak nearest to the cursor's primary position. (step in the graph in **N mode**).
- Blue vertical **cursor** indicates the expected (reference) position on the peak spectrum of the selected spectral line, which was chosen in "Spectral lines" toolbar.

Use this toolbar to select another line or click one of lines displayed in the string displaying *reference data on peak wavelengths of spectral lines*, located under the spectrum. Click directly around this string, do not click spectral region or photoplate.

- Current spectrum string is displayed at the top right side.
- o select spectrum from the analysis table, to display "sample_name / parallel measurement number.
- o "Current spectrum" is displayed, if spectrum is the current spectrum, measured using MAES.
- $\circ ~~$ if spectrum is loaded from a file, this name is displayed.

ectrum information

comment

date, time

range (nm)

preburning (sec.)

whole exposure

accumulations

overflowed

dark signal

average

SD

base exposure (sec.)

device

Spectrum Profiling Additional xml

5 'Платина'

17/03/15 08:57:43

(12 + 1) x 2580

212.35 - 610.90

0.15

400

72

968

17/03/2015 08:57

3.283

7.9258

nulations: 100

- if additional graphs are displayed, their description is also displayed, whereas text colour matches graph colour.
 - Use "General graph settings" dialog to turn on/off descriptions.
- **Reference line list** is displayed in red colour in the upper left area of spectrum if it is specified to display the list in the reference line settings; otherwise, just *"reference"* text is displayed.
- **Current peak** is drawn on the spectrum, if you select the cell in the analysis table, which corresponds to the spectral line and the spectrum, and if you select one of the identified lines in the "Qualitative analysis". The following information is displayed when drawing the peak: line centre, left and right background points, resulting background level and peak contour.
- Window resizing toolbar is located at the upper right part of spectrum window, see "Toolbars".
- Click ***** button to open the spectrum display settings dialog.
- Click i button to open the current spectrum information window. The window has two or three tabs: "Spectrum", "Profiling", "Advanced" and XML (they are available in all spectra measured using MAES via Ethernet interface or when working with Fireball generator).

S

device

range (nm)

inverse linea

dispersior

groups

type

ctrum Profiling Additional xml

wavelength scale corrected not for all groups reference lines set not for all groups

01/04/14 16:41

(12 + 1) x 2580

212.35 - 610.90

0.59 - 5.6 nm/mm

Ba





Click *to print the visible spectrum. The program will switch to print preview mode.*

9	- ∖	🏭 😽 ⋡ 互 ∔ 🏌	
	Print spe	ectrum	
	Print sele	ected spectral regions	

You can print the preselected spectrum regions besides the current spectrum. For detailed information, see "Printing several spectral regions" section.

Calibration Graph Window

VMKO.157UM L.12



 \bigtriangleup d٥

£

\$

3

÷

KH)

÷

♣

\$ ¢

蛊 125

-

C

This window is used to display of the current (selected in the analysis table) calibration graph. Main items of the calibration graph window are as follows:

> Displaying Calibration 0 Graph as a polynom of the specified degree. Polynom displayed degree. graph range, as well as coordinates, on which it was built, depend on calibration graph calculation settings. Concentration (X axis) and intensity (Y axis) scales are displayed below and to the left of the graph.

Use the following to control graph scale and position:

- toolbar located vertically at the right of the graph (a set of green arrow buttons). See "Main controls in 'Analysis' mode".
- 2. right mouse button (see "Zooming with mouse").
- standard controls such as "scrolling bar" located at the right and the left of the graph. They are used to move the window — the visible part of the graph — along the graph in any of four directions. For more detailed information, see Windows help.
- You can also use left mouse button to scroll through the graph (click-drag&drop) with shift key pressed.
- Click X button to open the calibration graph display
- Use (i) button to display information window on the current calibration graph (formulae, factors, numeric parameters, etc.)
- Work and reference samples are displayed as small boxes and their captions.
 - Work samples are displayed in blue colour, reference samples in green colour.
 - Boxes that correspond to the sample mean value are painted in solid colour (blue or green), parallel measurements are displayed as unshaded boxes.
 - Mean values of work and reference samples (solid boxes) have captions with sample names.
 - "Disabled" reference samples are displayed in grey colour; disabled work samples are not displayed in the graph.
 - Samples and parallel measurements with an ror" are

highlighted in red colour. Click red box and click button (1) in the analysis table to display error information.

Click left mouse button on any box to select a corresponding sample or parallel measurement in the analysis table; selected spectrum and peak will be displayed in the spectrum window (or all spectra of parallel measurements, if you selected the sample). Click by the box, to select the nearest point.

- Blue vertical dotted lines indicate positions of C_{lower} and C_{upper} parameters (see "Concentration calculation settings").
- Red vertical dotted lines indicate positions of C_{min} and C_{max} parameters (see "Calibration graph calculation settings").
- Numeric parameters of the calibration graph are displayed in the upper left part of the graph area: convergence dispersion, adequacy dispersion and calibration SD. To turn on/off thr display, use "Calibration graph settings" (click and select "Calibration graph" tab) using "caption" key.
- Two parameters are displayed in the lower left part of the graph area: Cmin and Angle. Cmin is entered by the user and is equal to the minimum concentration of the reference material among all reference samples, based on which the graph was plotted. To turn on/off display, to use "Calibration graph settings" (click and select "Calibration graph" tab) using "caption" key. Angle is displayed, only if the graph is linear (linear polynom) and corresponds to the curve slope (in degrees). It is not possible to turn off display of this caption.
- Spectral line name is displayed in the upper right part of the graph area, for which the calibration graph was plotted. If additional graphs are displayed, their descriptions are also displayed, with text colour matching the graph colour. Use "General graph settings" (click in and select "Graph" tab) using "Display graph description" key to turn on/off the display.
- Toolbars with the calibration graph window controls are located above and to the right of the graph area. Detailed description of each button is provided in "Main controls in 'Analysis' mode" section.

Use "Customize toolbars" dialog (click *statestical and choose "Buttons" tab*) to choose the type, order and position of buttons to be displayed.

• Window resizing toolbar is located in the upper right part of the calibration graph window, see "Toolbars" section.

Use mouse to select any text in the information window and paste it into Windows clipboard (Ctrl + Ins) to use in other programs

(Word, Excel, etc.)

• Click to print information on the calibration graph. The program will switch to Print preview mode. The program allows generating report for a group of the calibration graphs, including available information on results and the time of calculations, statistics, recalibration, etc. For more information see "Report" item.





Analysis Table Window

Analytical line intensity and concentration calculation results, as well as all contiguous data (such as names of samples and analytical lines, number of parallel measurements, mean calculated values, their absolute and

VMKO.157UM L.14

relative mean-square deviations, difference between parallel measurements, confidence intervals) are displayed in this window.

	Pd 340	.458	Pd 342	.124	Pd	Rh 332	.309	Rh 339	.685	Rh(1) 3	343.489	Rh 347.	.478	
	1	С	1	С	C total	1	С	1	С	1	С	1	С	
2 (2)	12.9	0.0033	5.08	0.0037	0.00293	1.43	0.0018	2.08	0.0017	5.15	0.0019	0.615	0.0016	
🖾 (3)	10.5	0.0027	4.42	0.0032	0.00264	1.51	0.0019	2.17	0.0018	5.42	0.0020	0.630	0.0016	
🖾 (4)	12.0	0.0031	4.96	0.0036	0.00306	1.22	0.0018	1.79	0.0017	4.51	0.0020	0.522	0.0016	
× average	11.8	0.00305	4.81	0.00352	0.00287	1.3	0.00179	1.9	0.00176	4.88	0.00201	0.57	0.00162	
median		0.00308		0.00357			0.00178		0.00175		0.00200		0.00161	
repeatability														
4 💼 GSO Pt-1-4 №527789		0.00580		0.00580			0.00468		0.00468		0.00468		0.00468	
😹 (1)	22.0	0.0059	10.4	0.0088	0.00682	3.88	0.0053	5.90	0.0057	14.0	0.0054	1.82	0.0049	
(2)	20.3	0.0054	10.5	0.0089	0.00677	3.79	0.0052	5.76	0.0055	13.8	0.0054	1.75	0.0047	
🖾 (3)	17.2	0.0045	8.32	0.0067	0.00538	3.38	0.0051	5.31	0.0057	12.5	0.0055	1.60	0.0048	
(4)	18.6	0.0049	9.68	0.0081	0.00622	4.01	0.0052	6.06	0.0056	14.1	0.0053	1.84	0.0047	
× average	20	0.0052	9.7	0.0081	0.0063	3.77	0.00520	5.76	0.00565	13.6	0.00538	1.75	0.00478	
median		0.0052		0.0084			0.00520		0.00565		0.00540		0.00477	
repeatability														
5 💼 GSO Pt-1-5 №527790		0.0167		0.0167			0.00620		0.00620		0.00620		0.00620	
😹 (1)	36.3	0.010	21.9	0.021	0.0181	4.60	0.0062	6.77	0.0065	16.1	0.0062	2.11	0.0056	
iii (2)	43.0	0.012	25.4	0.025	0.0200	4.21	0.0061	6.39	0.0066	15.6	0.0064	1.99	0.0057	
🖾 (3)	35.3	0.0098	19.9	0.019	0.0164	3.95	0.0057	5.99	0.0062	14.2	0.0059	1.87	0.0053	
盔 (4)	35.9	0.010	21.2	0.020	0.0195	4.65	0.0061	7.04	0.0065	16.7	0.0062	2.17	0.0055	
× average	37.6	> 0.0064	22	> 0.018	0.0185	4.35	0.00603	6.55	0.00646	15.7	0.00617	2.04	0.00552	
median		0.010		0.021			0.00608		0.00651		0.00616		0.00555	
repeatability														

Main items of the analysis table:

• Table **columns** correspond to analytical and optional spectral lines, which were selected for the analysis.

Use button in the table window toolbar to add a line to the table. Select the chemical element and its spectral line in the open dialog. Another way is to "click-drag&drop" the selected line from the spectrum window to the table.

To delete a line in the table, click right mouse button on the line to be deleted and select "*Delete col-umn*" in the context menu.

Use "Columns" dialog, which is opened by clicking button **to** add/delete columns, especially when it is necessary to delete or transfer several columns to another page.

Each column is an analytical line and consists of several columns:

- \circ **I** peak intensity;
- \circ C calculated concentration;
- **Iref** reference line intensity;
- **I/Iref** relative intensity (i.e. considering the reference line);
- **Csrm** concentration of the standard reference material, attested (known) concentration, entered by the user. This field value is also displayed in green colour at the intersection of the sample string and the concentration column;
- Stat. weight is the statistical weight of reference samples;
- width is the spectral line width, measured in diodes.

Type of columns displayed in the table may be specified either by using the context menu (right-click the column header, further see "*Show column*" and "*Hide column*") or using the table window settings dialog (click 🛠 and select "Table" tab, then check columns to be displayed).

Optional columns may be displayed in the table apart from analytical lines:

"Concentration by Several Lines", "Sum of Concentrations", "Alloy Identification", "Concentration Factor", "User Defined Column", "Information from Spectrum".

Click small black triangle to the right of button 4 and select the required type of column in the drop-down menu to add an optional column to the table.

To change width of the column to be displayed, set the cursor on the right border in the table header, the cursor will take the form of horizontal arrows, then use the "click-drag&drop" method. Double click the column border to set automatically its width. Change the column width of the analytical line to change width of the same column for all lines in the table.

• Table strings correspond to the measured spectra, samples and several statistical calculated values (mean value, standard deviation, etc. for the sample).

All spectra added to the table (button $\square \square$) are grouped by samples and are marked with \blacksquare symbol. All spectra of one sample are recognized as parallel measurements ("parallels"). Each parallel measurement of a sample has its number, which is displayed in parentheses after the spectrum symbol, for example "(4)".

Each sample has its name which is entered by the user when adding the spectrum to the analysis table, as well as its own symbol indicating the sample type:

- work sample;
- reference standard;
- **a**, **b**lank sample (control test);

, - samples that contain burning spectra (for the analysis taking into account the burning of elements);

- m disabled sample all current and newly added parallel measurements will be disabled.
- disabled parallel measurement all current and newly added lines will be disabled.

- "Blank" parallel measurement, i.e. without a spectrum.

Strings with calculated numeric values are displayed at the end of the group of parallel measurements for each sample:

- **x** Mean value (mean sample concentration, intensity, etc.);
- **s SD** standard deviation;
- **s**, **RMS deviation** root mean square deviation, in fractions or as a percentage;
- **Range** is the difference between the maximum and the minimum value = |Xmax Xmin|;
- **EXConfidence interval** of measured concentrations;
- **Median**of measured concentrations;
- **Repeatability** in combination with tabular tolerance from the selected standard;
- Stability in combination with tabular tolerance from the selected standard;
- **Result** calculated according to GOST R ISO 5725-6–2002.

You can specify values in "Table" dialog (button *****, "Table" tab) to be displayed in the table.

Use button **APE** to add spectra to the analysis table, which displays "Add current spectrum to the table" dialog. Using this command to add the current spectrum to the table and to display it in the spectrum window.

Use "Samples" dialog (button **b**) to add a sample name to the table without a current spectrum (with the specified number of blank spectra). This method is applied, when the table is filled in advance with sample names, and spectra are recorded only later.

Delete "sample" or "parallel measurements" lines from the table either using the context menu or "Samples" dialog (button **P**).

When "samples" line is deleted, all its parallel measurements are deleted as well.

Use "Samples" dialog to delete only samples, but not specific parallel measurements and spectra. This dialog is especially useful to delete several samples at once.

Right-click the spectrum or sample caption and select "*Delete sample or parallel measurement*" in the opened menu to delete samples using the context menu. Select several spectra and/or samples to delete them at once. To do so, hold pressed "Ctrl" key and left-click captions of samples and parallel meas-

urements. Selected lines are highlighted with blue colour in the leftmost column (to the left of sample names). After that open context menu by clicking one of the selected lines, and select "Delete sample or parallel measurement". It is necessary to right-click one of the selected lines! Otherwise, you will be prompted to delete the string you clicked, but not the string that you selected.

Current sample in the table is highlighted with a blue frame. It is displayed by default in "Add current spectrum to table" dialog, as well as in "Samples" dialog. When selecting the spectrum in the analysis table (selection of a cell or sample or parallel measurement header), the current sample name is also changed.



Select "Move sample or parallel measurement" in the context menu to move all selected samples and parallel measurements to the specified sample. Besides, the selected parallel measurement, one sample or several samples with parallel measurements can be easily moved or copied to any open document.

• Table **cells** contain program calculation results. For example, analytical line intensity in the parallel measurement spectrum is displayed at the intersection of the parallel measurement and "I" column.

Various colours are used to display cells:

- ored colour means an "error". The cell is mainly highlighted with red colour, if one of statistical criteria is not met (for example, RSD of comparison or Q-criteria), as well as if the analytical line is off-scale (ADC overflow takes place in some diode measurements due to high radiation intensity).
 Left-click the red cell and press 1 to obtain information on the error;
- o grey background means the cell is disabled. Select a cells to disable/enable it first (information on selection is described below), then press button , or use context menu (right-click) and then use *"Enable"* or *"Disable"* item. Intensity and concentration values of disabled cells do not take part in calculations (mean value, SD, etc.) and do have no effect on the final result. Disabling the cells, therefore, allows discarding some of the calculated values.
- Selected cells are drawn against blue background. Some operations may be performed only with selected cells (for example, enable/disable). Left-click a cell to select it. Click the column header or the parallel measurement header to select all cells corresponding to this column or line. When a sample is selected, all its parallel measurements are selected as well. Hold pressed "Ctrl" key to select several cells.
- Besides, some types of cells are highlighted with their colour. For example, Coc is displayed in green, calculated concentration values in blue, sample calculated lines (mean value, SD, etc.) are highlighted with orange colour against yellow background.

Colours mentioned above are default, they can be changed using "Table layout" dialog (button X, "Layout" tab).

All numeric values displayed in the table are rounded to the specified number of significant digits — see "Table" dialog, "number of significant digits" list (button *****, "Table" tab).

If the displayed value does not fit in the table cell, only the first several symbols (those that fit) may be displayed + "...". For example, "1.45..." If you put the mouse cursor over this cell, a small yellow win-

dow will appear with the full value of the cell. In order to fit values in cells, it is necessary to adjust the respective column width (see "Columns" item above).

Values in some cells may be entered using the keyboard (for example, Coc, stat.weight, concentration factor and other values). To do so, double click the cell, enter the value and press "Enter".

- Use button *miss* in the "Analysis table" toolbar to display **Analysis settings**. In the opened dialog you may change such analysis calculation settings as, for example, calculation method of analysis results or the type of calibration graph.
- Upper left cell of the table is used to:
 - 1. select the current spectrum registered with MAES;
 - 2. select all table cells. For example, press \mathbb{R} , to enable or disable all table cells.
- **Table page tabs** are located directly under the table and allow splitting one big table into several smaller tables. Different tables have different columns. Samples and parallel measurements are the same for all pages! For example, comparison lines or reference lines can be placed in an individual page.

Platinum (additional) Pt slime) Pt i) base /	2	×	•
Ready			

Use button it to add new page. When the new page appears, you will be prompted to enter its name (input field will appear in the page name area); enter name using the keyboard and press "Enter".

Press \times to delete current page. One of the possible actions will be proposed: delete all columns together with the page or move them to another page.

Click page name in the tab area to select one particular page. If you there are too many tabs (or if a tab name is too long), and they do not fit in the screen, use buttons \square, \square located to the left to browse through these tabs.

All newly added columns are located on the current page. Use "Columns" dialog (2) to move columns to another page. Or right-click column header, select "*Move column*" in the opened menu and enter the page you want to move column to.

• **Toolbar** is located in the upper section of the analysis table window.

Detailed description of each button is presented in "Main controls in 'Analysis' mode" section.

Using "Customize toolbars" (click 💉 and choose "Toolbars" tab) to choose buttons to be displayed, and their order and position).

- Vertical and horizontal scrolling bars. Standard controls such as scrolling bar are located at the right and the left of the graph. They are used to move the window visible part of the table along the table in any of four directions.
- Click ***** button to open table display settings dialog.
- Use button (1) to open information window for the current selected cell ("Cell" tab) and for the entire table ("Table" tab).

Click the header of a respective parallel measurement to display any spectrum from the table in the spectrum window. If you click the sample header, all spectra of the sample parallel measurements will be displayed. Click the header of a respective line in the table to display any calibration

Informatiom	Informatiom
Cell Table	Cell Table
column Ca 393.3663 sample GSO Pt-1-6 №532596 parallel measuremene (3) date, time 17/03/2015 10:26	sample 23 spectra: 49
Crm 0.000430	"empty" spectra: 2
V/comp 16.33 C 0.00068 width 1.94	columns: 99 pages: 5
peak saturation standard reference material	?????? 9 Mbyte 479 Kbyte
comparison line not set	
ОК	ОК

graph of analytic lines in the calibration graph window.

Click any table cell to display simultaneously the calibration graph and the spectrum of the parallel measurement. If you click the cell corresponding to the sample header, all spectra of parallel measurements will be displayed.

VMKO.157UM L.18

Main Controls in "Analysis" Mode

Buttons used in main "Analysis" mode and their brief descriptions are presented below. Only buttons located in the frozen toolbars of the main windows in "Analysis" mode (spectrum, calibration graph and table), as well as some dialog buttons, are presented. Description of buttons located in "floating" toolbars under the main program menu is provided in "Toolbars" section.

Standard Window Buttons in "Analysis" Mode

Graph zoom buttons



Spectrum Display Controls

- switch graph display mode. In λ mode, graph points are connected using straight lines. In **N** mode each point is drawn as a step. Each step in the spectrum window corresponds to one diode.
- enable/disable the spectrum in spectrum window: current (measured by MAES or read from file) or selected spectrum in the analysis table.

Additional Spectra/Graph Controls



λ

Ν

add current spectrum/graph
delete all additional spectra/graphs



- delete last or any of previously added spectra using the additional menu to select the spectrum to be deleted.

Save/Restore

Buttons are available in the spectrum window and in histogram window. Save either current spectrum in SPE format or the visible portion of the current spectrum in TXT format as a plain text file in the spectrum window. You can save histograms only in TXT format in the window; histogram is saved entirely, not only the part visible in the window.

File being opened in the window is moved to additional graphs with the opened file name as a graph description string.



— save current document to a file



Spectrum Window



— set left/right point of the peak calculation background to the spectrum cursor position.

- 1-st line 2-nd line both lines average 1-th exposure 2-th exposure 2-th exposure
- set the peak centre to the spectrum cursor position.
- display or do not display "Photoplate" string/strings under the spectrum.
- display or do not display line of chemical element names under the spectrum.
- display or do not display relative intensity values from the reference book.
- zoom in/out spectral line intensity
- fit all intensity values into window

Set preferences when working with spectra measured by a double line MAES: "no processing" — all information is displayed in succession; "1st (2nd) string" — only the respective string; "both strings" — both strings are displayed simultaneously as per their relative positions; "average" — spectra of certain strings are combined into one average spectrum without gaps and aliasing.

Select the respective view when working with spectra measured in the mode of several exposures.

Calibration Graph Window

- enable/disable sample name view in the calibration graph window:
- the program does not allow using the same names for different samples;
- each name is displayed at the upper left of the sample point;
- do not display sample names (only points are drawn).
 - control of sample types displayed in the graph:
 - work samples only; **2125** reference samples only;

Analysis Table Window

a<mark>348</mark>

()	Ŷ
₽	•



∎•<u>N</u> ⊡ - open analysis settings dialog

— Add analytical line to analysis table dialog is opened by default; click small triangle button to open the optional columns menu.

both sample types.

"Sum of Concentrations" — sums concentration values of the selected chemical elements. It may be used to calculate the main composition.

Spectrum **Data** — special column with information from the spectrum of each parallel measurement. Any data available in the spectrum (size, time, profiling, generator, reference line parameters, etc.) may be displayed.

- "**Concentration by Several Lines**" calculates the resulting element concentration in a sample as per several analytical lines.
- "Spectral Line" the main column displaying calculated information on elements — intensity and concentration values.
- "Alloy Determination" determines all suitable alloys in "Alloys" mode based on calculated element concentrations.
- "Concentration Factor" factors, which all calculated concentrations are divided or multiplied by.
- "User-Defined Column" columns with arbitrary optional numeric or text information.
- add current spectrum to analysis table. Opens Add Spectrum Dialog.
- enable/disable the selected cells in analysis table.





the button is active only for work samples. The first button disables all values in cells with "error" status (these cells may appear after checking the convergence standard). The second button enables all values disabled by the first button (cell values disabled manually by the user are skipped). Button view depends on availability/absence of parallel measurements with "error" status.
 — same as above, but they are applicable only for reference samples. If Fischer,

— same as above, but they are applicable only for reference samples. If Fischer, Bartlett or Kohren criteria are not met, all parallel measurements of one of the samples are highlighted with red colour. Such parallel measurements cannot be disabled using these buttons; otherwise the whole sample would be disabled.

— open Recalibration dialog to recalibrate graphs by reference samples.

- open Columns dialog to work with table column groups.
- open Samples dialog to control samples, to add samples with dummy spectra.

— this command is used to recalculate the entire analysis table — intensity values, calibration graphs, concentration values, additional columns, etc.; use it to load old format files to update the calculated values.

Fetching reference material base window

	3	GSO Pt-1-3 №527788	-
Î	1	GSO Pt-1-1 №527786	
	2	GSO Pt-1-2 №527787	
7		GSO Pt-1-3 №527788	
5	4	GSO Pt-1-4 №527789	
e	5	GSO Pt-1-5 №527790	
e	6	GSO Pt-1-6 №532596	=
e	7	GSO Pt-1-7 №527791	
e	8	GSO Pt-1-8 №532597	
e	9	GSO-1 Pt-35	
	10	GSO-3 Pt-35	
5	11	GSO-4 Pt-35	
,	12	GSO-10 Pt-35	

List of current document samples for operative navigation and selection in the analysis table



List of current document columns for operative navigation and selection in the analysis table The list includes sheet names, spectral lines and additional columns.

List Selection Buttons

deselect all list items
invert selected items



— select all list items

- move selected items up/down the list

Status Bar is used to display various context information. It is located at the bottom of the main program window. Status bar may be displayed/hidden using "Windows/Toolbars/Status bar" menu item. Status bar is split into three sections:

• Text information section. This section usually displays the help string for some menu items/buttons, as well as description text during a long-running operations such as "calculation ..." or "completing the table...". "Ready" means the program is ready for user commands.

Central section displays spectrum cursor coordinates (red vertical dotted line) or coordinates of any graph (calibration graph, histogram etc.) Displayed information format:
 wave_length (diode_number = range_number: range_diode_number): amplitude1, amplitude2, ...
 [198.8982 (4843.46) : 1.932 1.937 1.961 2.004 2.031 2.225 [1.932
 Amplitudes of all additional spectra (graphs) are also displayed in the spectrum (graph) window. Ampli-

Amplitudes of all additional spectra (graphs) are also displayed in the spectrum (graph) window. Amplitude string is sorted in ascending order. Amplitude of the cursor's intersection with the current spectrum without any "additional" spectra is displayed in the last status bar section (see below).

• Last section displays signal amplitude at the cursor position in the current spectrum. This section is also used to indicate the long-running operation progress ("progress indicator").

Description of Modes

"MAES Test" mode

This mode is used to adjust and calibrate MAES and allows performing the following operations:

- measurement parameter setting;
- single measurements or interrogation in MAES cycle with the set amount of accumulations;
- dark signal measurement;
- spectrum SD measurement;
- "faulty" diodes screening;
- measurement of a "100%" signal for correction of diode gain factors;
- status indication and generator, external relay control, etc.;
- display of any part of the signal as a graph;
- splitting the signal window into two sections (vertically or horizontally) to display simultaneously two parts of the signal;

The signal display window corresponds to the spectrum window in "Analysis" mode. The window may be split into two sections, vertically or horizontally. To do so, select the splitting method in the lower right part of the mode window:

 \Box — do not split the window; \Box — split the window vertically into two sections; \Box — split horizontally; \circ ширина пиков — histogram with line width for each spectral line in the spectrum is in the lower part of the screen.

You can display a portion of the signal in each section. To do so, use zoom buttons in the window toolbar (see "Main buttons in 'Analysis' mode") or the mouse (see "Zoom using the mouse").



"Range" string is displayed under the signal image. Each white rectangle in the string corresponds to a specific crystal in MAES range. The digit inside the rectangle is a sequential number of the crystal. Left-click one of the rectangles to zoom the signal in X-axis to display the portion of the signal in the window that corresponds to the selected crystal. Use "Strings" dialog to show/hide this string; this dialog is opened by clicking button \Re and selecting "Strings" tab.

Traffic light is displayed at the right in the upper part of the window. Red light means "Attention! Signal measurement...", green light means "instrument ready for measurement", yellow light means "processing results (drawing, calculation, etc.)".

"*Range query*" — cyclic signal measurement using MAES. Measured signal is displayed in the window, and the next measurement starts. Uncheck the box to stop measurements. Following that, program will wait until the current measurement is completed and will terminate. Use Space key to start/stop measurements. Press once to start the current measurement, press twice to stop it, press for the third time for the "cold" interrup-

Measure signal SD			
Accumulations for measure	ement	100	
Admissible SD limits:			
	max	0.3	
	min	0.001	
Diodes with SD beyond these the marked diodes can be fur see "Faulty diodes discarding	ther discarded (i	marked as "faulty")	:
Apply	🗕 Launo	ch 😂 Cyc	le Exit

tion of the current measurement, if it has not been finished yet. The program switches to standby mode without having to wait for the last measurement to be completed.

Three buttons for device bit control are located below. Click the respective check box to change bit status. Function of bits depends on the instrument configuration. For example, one of the bits may control the start of plasma excitation generator.

"accumulations" — amount of accumulations for signal measurement. Signal is accumulated (summed) and is then divided by the specified number. As a result, we receive some average

signal. One accumulation corresponds to one MAES basic exposure.

"subtract dark signal" — enable/disable subtraction of a pre-registered dark signal from the current signal.

"Advanced" — opens MAES advanced settings dialog, for example, basic exposure settings. Attention! Only highly qualified user shall change settings in this dialog while configuring the system! Incorrect settings may lead to the impossibility to perform measurements or to incorrect measurements of spectra using MAES!

calculate once — starts single measurement of a signal with the number of accumulations specified in *accumulation* field.

"read dark signal" — starts dark signal measurement. Dark signal is saved, but not displayed in the spectrum window. It may be subsequently subtracted from any measured spectrum.

"measure SD" — opens dialog with SD measurement parameter settings. The signal is registered the specified number of times without accumulations, then signal SD is calculated for each range diode (see SD formula in "Algorithms" section). Calculated SD values are displayed as a graph in the window.

"Accumulations for measurement" — amount of accumulations for signal SD measurement (at least 2, 1000 max).

"SD margin" — specify acceptable range of SD values. If it is not necessary to use one of the range limits, or if the range is not used at all, delete the value from the respective input fields. Diodes, which SD signal exceeds the specified range, are highlighted with red colour and may be later discarded as faulty ones. "OK" — starts SD measurement.

"*Cancel*" — terminates SD measurement.

discarding faulty diodes — opens dialog, where you can delete information on faulty diodes or mark all red diodes in the current spectrum as faulty. Measured signals and spectra are not drawn at the positions of faulty diodes. It is recognized that it is not possible to measure the intensity on these diodes with sufficient reliability.

The dialog also allows updating information on faulty diodes when replacing MAES, discarding the specified number (usually, 1 or 2) of diodes, which are extreme for each crystal of photodiodes.

Apart from automatic search and marking with red colour during SD calculations, you can manually mark diodes using button **1**.

read "100%" signal — the signal to be used for correction of diode gain factors (see "Gain factor measurement" in "Working with program" section) is measured and saved.

marked diode — used for manual se-

lecting (highlighting with red colour) or deselecting of diodes. To do so, switch signal display to N mode (see "Graph display mode controls" in "Main buttons in 'Analysis' mode" section). Set a red vertical dotted cursor on one of the diodes (left-click it) and check the box to select it (highlighting with red colour), or uncheck this box to deselect it. Marked diodes are used to discard faulty diodes (see above).

Button \blacksquare in the window toolbar is used to send measured signal to spectrum window of the current document. You may also select another open document in the drop-down menu. Current document is checked.

⇒∎	
	platinum-26-03-15
	Grand-Expert_aluminium-2014
\checkmark	nikel-Grand-Expert

You can also move (copy) the spectrum to another open document as an "additional graph".





"Profiling" Mode

This mode is used to calculate **profiling** — **analytical function** of spectral line wavelength (nm) dependence on the receiver channel number (N), which its peak, as a polynom of the specified degree, corresponds to. Information on profiling is saved in a file with *.*wl* extension as a **compliance table** λ /N (see below), function polynom factors, gaps between crystals in the receiver and other additional information about the analyzer. Profiling is a process consisting in that the user with his/her knowledge on typical spectral lines of pure elements (carbon, copper, zinc, cadmium, magnesium, silicon, tungsten, etc.) makes up a **compliance table** of the spectral line peak (red cursor), which corresponds to the reference wavelength of the spectral line (blue cursor).

"Profiling" mode is used to find new profiling function or for significant variation of the previous function (for example, in case of intensive shift in MAES analyzer, or when MAES analyzer shall be replaced).

Use reference lines to correct the profiling function during the analysis (see "Reference lines" item in "Working with program" section).



"Profiling" mode window control functions

"Profiling" mode window includes three main sections:

- **spectrum window** in the upper part of the window. Current spectrum of the current document is displayed in the spectrum window. To display the spectrum in "Profiling" mode, select "Documents" in the main program menu, or open a new document and select the required spectrum from the analysis table, register it using MAES or open it from a file. Use the drop-down list to get on-line access to current document spectra.
- **profiling error window** is located at the left bottom. Generally, polynoms, calculated by the program, which describe the profiling function, do not pass exactly through calibration points selected by the user. *Profiling error is a deviation of the polynom from the point expressed in diode numbers*. Profiling errors are displayed for each point as red squares in this window. X-axis designates diode numbers. Display is divided into MAES detector crystals with vertical lines. Left-click the crystal image (white rectangles with sequential numbers inside them) to zoom in/out the error window and the spectrum window along

X-axis, so that the only the selected crystal is displayed. Y-axis designates profiling error in diode numbers. Usually, upon completion of profiling, all errors are within a range of not more than ± 0.5 diodes. It provides reliable detection of peaks corresponding to analytical lines in the analysis table.

table of calibration points is located in the lower right part of the window. All points are located with the wavelength increasing. First column specifies names of chemical elements in the spectral line, "nm" column specifies spectral line wavelengths, "diode" is the peak centre position in diode numbers, "lin" is the crystal number, where the point is located, "error" is the profiling error. To add a point, click is the crystal number, where the points and click is selected points may be disabled or re-enabled using button is. Double click a point to disable and enable it. Disabled points become highlighted with grey background and with "-" symbol preceding the element name. Standard "Undo" is button) and "Redo" (is button) operations may be used for all operations with calibration points, such as Add/Delete, Enable/Disable, Profiling shift and Redeterminate maximums (more details on these operations are provided below).

To build a new profiling, it is recommended to use button in the toolbar under the spectrum window. Specify the number of crystals, crystal size (all default values are the same as in MAES), the approximate spectral range (this information is used for the first approximation to the profiling searched for) and comments in open dialogs. Press "Next" or "Back" to navigate through dialogs; press "Ready" to finish; press "Cancel" to cancel. Upon completion the program will clear the table with calibration points and build the first approximation to profiling.

Buttons **D** under the spectrum are used to add calibration points. First, select the reference spectral line. Blue vertical cursor will appear in the spectral line position. Then specify the line centre in the spectrum, which will correspond to the selected spectral line. It is recommended to specify such spectrum scale, which allows reliable determining that you located the required line in the spectrum, but not one of the neighbour lines.

To run correct operation, enable "Set cursor on the line peak" key! (Button in "Profiling" mode, "Line in the spectrum" tab). Red vertical cursor of the spectrum shall move to the specified line peak in the spectrum. Now press — the specified point will be added to the calibration point table and the program will automatically calculate new profiling. If this point already exists in the table (spectrum line coincides), new point will not be added, information on the line centre in the spectrum will be updated. If *"automatically apply calculated profiling to spectrum"* key is set in profiling calculation settings (see below), new profiling will be applied to the spectrum. If this key is not set, use button is the spectrum is the spectrum is not set, use button is the spectrum is the spectrum is the spectrum is not set, use button is the spectrum is not set.

(see below), new profiling will be applied to the spectrum. If this key is not set, use button (see below) to manually apply current calculated profiling to the spectrum.

The following operations may be executed with profiling points:)Select, Delete, Enable/Disable, Cancel, Redo (detailed information on these operations is provided above in "*calibration point table" section*), as well as "shift" and "Redetermine peaks" (see below).

Using calibration points, excluding calibration point disabled by the user, the program builds polynoms of the specified degree according to the **profiling settings**, which may be opened by pressing button $\exists^{(1)} \not f^{(2)}$:

"*profiling degree*" — specify the minimum required degree of polynoms from 1 to 5. If possible, use the minimal degree to create the final profiling.

MAES range crystal table is displayed In the upper left part of the dialog. First column shows the sequential number of the crystal, the second col-

ofilin	ng settings				X
Ν	Lines(On	A	Gap	Quality	•
1	23 / 2			manual	Strip 1:
2	65 / 0	✓	29.94	auto	40 100.00
3	67 / 0	✓	30.83	auto	a1 = 0.00521623
4	66 / 0	<	29.56	auto	a2 = -1.07529e-008 a3 = 1.73802e-012
5	85 / 0	•	29.58	auto	a3 = 1.73602e-012
6	79 / 0	•	30.16	auto + manual	
7	86 / 0	✓	30.17	auto	Strip 2:
8	83 / 0	 	30.41	auto	a0 = 188.759
9	77/0	•	30.186	auto	a1 = 0.00516182
1	77/0	•	30.54	auto	a2 = 5.33298e-009
1	73/0	•	30.20	auto	a3 = -3.43548e-013
1	77/0	•	30.72	auto	
	858 / 2	•			
					Groups
-	use only com	mon p	orofiling for	all strips	
v a	apply automat	ically	the calcula	ted profiling to the spec	strum
	continuous sp				
			· · · · ·		
	disable defaul	1.1			
p	profiling error	- by s	spectrum		order 3 💌
				ОК	Apply Cancel

umn displays information on the number of profiling calibration points (lines) in each crystal and how many

points are disabled. "*Gap*" column specifies the distance between crystal edges (between current and previous) expressed in diodes. "*Auto*" column allows adjusting the method for gap setting. If the key is set, the program automatically selects the gap value while calculating the profiling (the field is highlighted with grey background, and it is not possible to enter a value using the keyboard); user defined value is applied, if the key is not set (the field is highlighted with the white background and you can enter the value manually). Crystal group number is displayed in "*Group*" column, if grouping is used. If grouping is not used, "0" is displayed for all crystals. More information on profiling groups is provided below.

Total number of profiling points and total number of disabled points are displayed in the last table line (under the bold line). Besides, check mark in "Auto" column controls all check marks in this column. Enable it to enable check marks for all crystals, and vice versa.

Polynom factors will be displayed for each crystal individually in the upper right part of the dialog.

"use only general profiling for all ranges" — switched on, when one polynom was used for all crystals to create profiling; otherwise, own polynom is calculated for each crystal. Do not use this key to create the final profiling, since one polynom does not allow precise enough description of the consistency of wavelengths and diode numbers.

"automatically apply the calculated profiling to the spectrum" — the program calculates new profiling after adding/deleting, enabling/disabling profiling points, as well as after changing the settings. The key is set so that new profiling can be immediately applied to the spectrum. Use button $\rightarrow M$ to manually apply the profiling to the spectrum.

"Groups ..." — opens Edit dialog for information on Profiling groups. Use this dialog to delete information on groups or to split crystals into groups again. Groups are used to split profiling into several independent areas. No checks (for example, check of monotonicity, profiling function increase) are performed, no gaps are calculated between crystals from different groups. Therefore, one profiling, may be split into several independent profilings. Each crystal belongs entirely to one group only. This splitting may be applied for instruments of "STE-1" type (multiline spectrometers, each line has its profiling), in "Grand", DFS-36 configurations, etc., where assemblages with one or several crystals are located at a considerable distance, or in case when a common spectrum is formed from the spectra of two or more different spectrometers (for example, Grand, SpectroLab).

Use "*Next*" and "*Back*" buttons to navigate through the grouping wizard; press "*Ready*" or "*Cancel*" to exit. Press "OK" or "*Cancel*" to exit from "*Profiling settings*" dialog. "*Apply*" allows estimating changes in profiling without leaving the dialog.

Use button \clubsuit under the spectrum window to assign manually a profiling to the current spectrum. If the current spectrum is selected from the analysis table and a new profiling is assigned to this spectrum, while moving to the document, which this spectrum was taken from, the program will report: *"Spectrum profiling from the analysis table was changed. Recalculate analysis table?"* If you answer "Yes", new profiling will be assigned to the spectrum, and the program will recalculate line intensity values for this spectrum; if you answer No, spectrum profiling from the table will remain the same. Profiling is assigned without a confirmation to the currently measured and loaded from file spectrum.

Use button after the prompt to confirm operation to assign current profiling to all spectra from the current document analysis table. Current document is indicated with a check mark in "Documents" menu of the main program menu.

Buttons \longrightarrow and \longrightarrow are used to copy profiling from one spectrum to another.

Example: Select spectrum from the analysis table in one of the documents or load it from file and move to "Profiling" mode. Press button $\square \square$; profiling from the selected spectrum becomes current. Current profiling will be assigned to all spectra to be measured, and is also used to perform operations "apply current profiling to current spectrum" (button $\blacksquare \square$) and "apply current profiling to all spectra in the analysis table" (button $\blacksquare \square$).

In order to apply profiling to another spectrum, move to one of the documents, select the required spectrum, move to "Profiling" mode and press button $\Rightarrow M$. When the spectrum profiling is current, several buttons become unavailable in "Profiling" mode, since profiling from the spectra does not contain enough informa-

tion (including compliance tables) to perform these commands. In particular, do not add or enable/disable points or change profiling calculation settings; points are not displayed in the table. You can either apply spectrum profiling or save it, you can also load initial profiling from a file and create a new profiling. Press to load initial profiling from the file.

Use Profiling table item from the drop-down menu of control **T** to display profiling lines in the spectrum window; spectral lines will be highlighted with dark green colour (by default).

Button 📳 is used for profiling shift for all spectra or individual lines. If profiling groups are available, shift is performed for each group individually. Select spectral line (blue spectrum cursor), set red cursor on the corresponding peak in the spectral line and press [1]. The program will displace calibration points of the spectrum profiling (changing diode numbers and, probably, crystal numbers, if the point will move to another line due to shift) and calculate new profiling polynoms. Program will displace polynoms, if there are no calibration points. Make sure before the operation that spec*trum profiling is current (press* **> (**). Upon completion of the operation, if "automatically apply calculated profiling to spectrum" key is not set (see above), press $\rightarrow M$ to see the result of shift. If red and blue cursors were on different crystals, then after shift the reference value of the spectral line may not coincide with its maximum in the spectrum. Repeat the operation in case of a discrepancy.

Measure the final profiling element spectrum (usually, tungsten) and press ***** — "Redetermine peak points" to create final profiling after shift. Program will accurately find positions of line peaks in the place of calibration points and recalculate the profiling. Points with peaks that cannot be found, will be automatically disabled. Both operations may be cancelled later by pressing button \square .

ATTENTION! Do not forget to press $\rightarrow M$, or specify "automatically apply profiling"!

Use button \longrightarrow to open menu with additional commands for work with points in the table:

"enable/disable all" — process all points in the compliance table. *"enable/disable W"* — process all points for the current element (for example, W) in the compliance table.

"Disable with an error above 0.5" - select all points with error value beyond the range specified in the profiling error window (0.5 in the example). All points with an error value above the specified value will be selected.

"Delete disabled points"- delete all disabled points.

"Delete all"- delete all calibration points.

"...Advanced parameters" allow selecting more specific conditions for selection of compliance points — for example, a specific crystal or a line in two-line spectrum, a set of points with a specific intensity, etc.

When several criteria are specified, they are combined with "and" symbol, i.e. in order to select a point, this point shall meet all specified criteria.



Shift one crystal

Additior	nal operations	-	x
opera	tional commands	select	
	er	nable / disable all	
	enab	le / disable element	
	disable w	vith error more than 0.25	
	×	delete disabled	
	×	delete all	
		Close	
Additior	nal operations		x
	nal operations	select	x
	tional commands	select Cu •	X
opera	tional commands		X
opera	ntional commands	Cu • 5 • • 1	×
opera elen erro	tional commands nent r nsity	Cu •	×
opera elen erro inter	ntional commands nent r nsity h	Cu • 5 5 1 6	×
opera elem erro inter widt	ntional commands nent r nsity h a 1	Cu > .5 > 1 .8	×
opera elen erro inter widt state	ntional commands nent r nsity h a 1	Cu > .5 > 1 > .8	x
opera elen erro inter widt state	tional commands nent r hsity h e 1 e 2 tal number	Cu S S S Cu S S Cu S S Cu S S S S Cu S S S S S S S S S	×

The following operations shall be performed for manual profiling:

1. Register spectrum of tungsten and several known elements, such as, for example, graphite, copper, silicon etc., and save it in the analysis table. Registration time in arc mode may be set up to 10 s.

2. Select one of the measured spectra. Set red cursor on the peak line in a spectrum, which wavelength is known from the general view of spectrum based on own experience (for example, a group of strong lines with a known ratio of intensity values).

3. Select the reference wavelength of a spectral line of the element (blue cursor), which must correspond to this line in the spectrum.

4. Enter the *spectrum line wavelength and the diode number of the peak line in the spectrum* into the **compliance table** (button **b**) located under the spectrum).

5. Repeat operations 2, 3,4 and add compliance pairs to the table in the amount exceeding the polynom degree, to calculate profiling function. In such case information on spectral lines located uniformly across the spectrum length shall be entered into the table.

6. If the number of spectral lines known to operators in the selected spectrum is insufficient to calculate the profiling function, then the next material spectrum is selected, and the process of filling the compliance table continues. If you can make up a table from two and more pairs, go to item 7 and calculate the initial profiling function. It shall be applied to the next selected spectrum. It will be much easier further to fill the compliance table.

7. Program can create polynoms of the given degree using the least squares method and relying on compliance pairs, which describe the correspondence rule in the form of an analytical function.

8. You can create a very precise profiling using tungsten spectra; however, you can start creating a profiling after you receive the first approximate profiling using more simple spectra.

After the profiling function is created, save it to a file with *.wl extension (usually, "atom.wl") by clicking button \blacksquare . If you forget to do so, the program will ask you to save the modified profiling when exiting. If you want to automatically load the saved file when the program starts, specify this in "Files" dialog, which can be opened using "Settings"/"Files..." item in the main program menu. When starting the program, this profiling becomes current and may applied to all new spectra measured by MAES.

Perform the following operations to run profiling automatically – select tungsten spectrum by clicking

button **auto**, select spectrometer type in the opened autoprofiling settings window (e.g., STE-1) and press "Profile..." button. As a result, a new set of formulae is calculated for most spectrometers (excluding prism spectrometers).



If the result is satisfactory, "Apply" it, the set of points and formulae will pass to the current profiling, which must be saved to file.

"Report" Mode

"Report" mode is used to set up and preview reports generated by the program before printing them. Open this mode either clicking button in the standard toolbar, or using "Mode"/"Report" item in the main program menu.

Program shows in this mode the way the printed report will look like. Press button 🕌 in the upper left corner to print the report.

Atom 🤇	1	Tanan Tana Tana		- 4	100				-	AaB	AnBh			×
2	Print	•	00 🔍		landsca	ape 🔹 🛠	Setting	S	1		color •	• 🗙	Close	
	organizatio Name device analysis date, time	John S BAIRD Platinu	lant Laborato mith m method № 2015 08:33		009									
	GSO P	t-1-2 №52778	37											
	Elem	%mass	rsd, %	(N)	Elem	%mass	rsd, %	(N)	Elem	%mass	rsd, %	(N)		
	Ag	0.0010	12.8	4	Fe	! 0.000297	6.83	4	Pd	0.000626	8.97	4		
	Ag	0.0012	16.4	4	Fe	! 0.00029	12.3	4	Pd	0.00070	11.3	4		
	Al	0.00059	11.1	4	Fe	! 0.00028	10.1	4	Rh	0.000468	5.37	4		
	As	0.0012	15.7	4	Ir	! 0.00057	18.9	3	Rh	0.000604	5.19	4		
	Au	0.000182	2.39	4	Mg	0.00040	26.3	4	Ru	0.00033	10.4	4		
	Bi	0.00020	11.5	4	Mg	0.00039	25.5	4	Sb	0.00053	19.0	4		
	Ca	< 0.00041	15.5	4	Mn	0.00045	15.4	4	Si			0		
	Ca	< 0.00010	39.1	4	Mo	0.0020	23.4	4	Sn	0.000284	9.74	4		
	Cd	0.0021	33.3	4	Ni	0.00035	13.7	4	Te	0.0018	13.0	4		
	Cr	0.0014	20.3	4	Pb	0.00029	21.7	4	Zn	0.00031	18.5	4		
	Cu	< 0.00030	18.2	4	Pd	0.000712	9.46	4						
	GSO P	t-1-3 №52778	38											
	Elem	%mass	rsd, %	(N)	Elem	%mass	rsd, %	(N)	Elem	%mass	rsd, %	(N)		
	Ag	0.00126	8.13	4	Fe			0	Pd	0.00278	4.93	4		
	Ag	0.0016	10.5	4	Fe	0.00115	4.30	4	Pd	0.00305	8.90	4		
	Al	0.0037	19.7	4	Fe	0.00113	4.31	4	Rh	0.00176	2.10	4		
	As	0.00257	4.60	4	Ir	! 0.0015	11.1	4	Rh	0.00201	2.90	4		
	Au	0.000915	8.18	4	Mg	0.0020	16.0	4	Ru	0.0012	11.1	4		
	Bi	0.00149	7.22	4	Mg	0.0021	13.6	4	Sb	0.000999	4.00	4		
	Са	0.00132	8.05	4	Mn	0.00133	6.48	4	Si	0.0039	16.7	4		
	page 1 of 1	2 C·\A	tom 3 3\Data\	olatinum	-26-03-15 s	nd					Of	6/02/2016	18:23	
ge 1 o	of 12										_			4
ns, m	m					X	Re	port tem	nplate sel	ection	4.8.1	-	N	-
		Top 5	mm						to custo					
								statisti templa	ical repo ite	ort				
.eft				Rig	ht									
5	💼 mm			5	×	mm								
									ОК		o template	,	Cano	el
		Bottom												
		6	mm											
			OK			ancel								

Buttons \blacktriangleleft and \blacktriangleright show previous and next pages of report respectively.

VMKO.157UM L.30

Button DD prints one page or two pages of the report respectively;

3 Button 3 is used to zoom in/out report pages.

"Page Orientation" – "portrait (vertical) or "landscape" (horizontal).

Use button 1 to open Page settings dialog (space from page edge). Page fields are specified in mm from the edge of print area of the printer. Print area depends on the printer model.

Use button Use to copy report to system buffer as a text, which can be pasted into Microsoft Word file or OpenOfficeWriter word processor file.

Use button is to open dialog to export report to Excel program. Select template from the list and press "*OK*". Or press "*No template*" to export it without a template. Press "*Cancel*" to cancel export.

"*Template*" — Excel file saved earlier in "Templates" directory of "Atom" software root directory. Use template to create headers, signatures, fonts, etc. according to formats accepted in your organization. If one of cells is called "Start" in the template, program report will display starting from this cell, otherwise, it will be displayed starting from the upper left A1 cell.

Only calculation results and table headers are exported. Report header, title and signature are not exported, because the template already includes them.

Use button $\overset{\bigstar}{\star}$ to open report settings dialog with several tabs.

"Format"

"Report form":

"Sample form" — analysis result table is displayed for each sample individually.

"*Element report*" — all analysis results are displayed in one table, where strings correspond to samples, columns correspond to analytical lines or other types of column from the analysis table.

"*Max number of columns in a string*" — specify the number of columns. When displaying a table, if the number of columns is more than the specified value; the remaining part of the table is moved down, allowing thus printing bigger tables on paper of any format.

"Max width of pages" — when displaying a report the program can move data not only down (previous item), but also to the right, if *the specified "Number of columns per string"* (previous item) did not fit in one sheet. Letters corresponding to the number of page widthwise are added to page numbers while moving to right. For example, "1.a, 1.6, ...". If the specified number of columns does not fit in the specified number of pages widthwise, "..." symbol appears next to the header at the end of each table line.

"Choose font ..." — opens standard Font dialog, where you can specify the font and its size to output the report.

Report settings	Report settings
Format Captions Samples Columns	Format Captions Samples Columns
report form by samples columns per line, max 3 pages across, max 1	Image: header font Image: wide of the second sec
font ✓ use "Bold" font for headers □ confidence interval ▲ □ sd ● average □ rsd ● result	 display line wavelengths, nm full names of elements sample numbering horizontal lines vertical lines
 range median number of parallel measureme repeatability repeatability standard 	Table cells status color (off, error) postscript postscript postscript postscript
Close Help	✓ page numbers ✓ file name ✓ date Close Help

"Use 'bold' font in headers" – enables output of headers of table lines and columns with bold font.

Besides the calculated analysis results, concentration or intensity values, the program can output calculated statistical numeric parameters:

"*RSD*", "*difference*", "*confidence limit*", "*median*", "*SD*", "*number of parallel measurements*", *etc.*-various statistical parameters as per the analysis table data. They may be displayed both individually and in groups.

"Captions"

"title" — display title at the beginning of the report (company, operator name, date, time, analysis, instrument and comments). This information shall be entered in "Title" dialog ("Settings-Title..." menu). Operator will be asked in "Assistant" mode to enter the title prior to starting the analysis.

"header" — display header at the beginning of the report.

"Header text ... " — opens dialog to enter report header text.

"display line wavelengths, nm" — display wavelengths of analytical lines in the report.

"full name of elements" — display "Iron" instead of" Fe", etc..

"horizontal/vertical lines" — display horizontal/vertical gridlines between table columns/lines.

"*cell status*" — highlight disabled cells in the report in colour (grey background + strikethrough text, otherwise only strikethrough text is displayed) and cells with error status (red colour text).

"concentration caption" — column header, where concentration values are displayed; used in sample reports only.

"display in table: concentration or intensity" — display calculated concentration or relative intensity values (I/Ic) as analysis results.

"postscript" — switch on/off postscript text at the end of the report.

"Postscript text ... " — open dialog to enter postscript text.

"page numbers" – display page numbers. "page 1 of N" format.

"file name" — display full file name.

"date" — display report printing date and time.



"Samples"

Select samples from the list. Only the selected samples will be printed in the report. Left-click a sample to select it or to deselect a sample selected earlier. You may also use selection buttons (see Main buttons in "Analysis" mode) to select samples.

"display all parallel measurements" — values for all parallel measurements of samples will be included in the report. Otherwise, only for values samples (mean values) will be included.

VMKO.157UM L.32

	C	Mn	Р	5	Cr	Si	Р			
	193.0906	293.3055	177.4949	180.7311	267.717	212.4123	178.2829			
590	2.7	0.27	1.0	0.24	0.087	3.6	1.1			
698	3.2	0.11	1.2	0.44	0.088	2.9	1.2			
794	3.2	0.13	0.67	0.30	0.17	2.6	0.77			
895	3.2	0.073	0.47	0.22	0.23	2.4	0.54			
ЧГ10в	2.7	0.84	0.10	0.0076	0.25	2.8	0.11			
ЧГ11г	2.4	0.28	0.22	0.035	0.22	1.8	0.22			
ЧГ1г	3.6	1.1	0.16	0.032	0.091	1.1	0.16			
Ipoбa : 28_4.1-5										
лем	нм	%Macc	Разн	Элем	HM	%Maco	с Разн			
4-0 T	1 000 070	E 0.4.10-	i <u>ne.</u> 10-5	8.6	205.00	16 0 5.10	5 0.0.10			

Mg	II	280.2705	3.4•10 ⁻⁵	2.6•10 ⁻⁵	Ni		305.0816	3.5•10 ⁻⁵	2.0•10 ⁻⁵
Mn		280.1081	4.1•10 ⁻⁵	1.6•10 ⁻⁵	Pb	Ι	283.3053	3.8•10 ⁻⁵	3.5•10 ⁻⁵
Ni	Ι	300.2485	3.5•10 ⁻⁵	2.1•10 ⁻⁵	Sb	Ι	217.581		

Проба : 28_1.2-4	Проба :
------------------	---------

	•								
Элем		нм	%Macc	Разн	Элем		нм	%Macc	Разн
Mg	II	280.2705	1.3•10 ⁻⁴	5.6•10 ⁻⁵	Ni		305.0816	1.2•10 ⁻⁴	4.7•10 ⁻⁵
Mn		280.1081	1.4•10 ⁻⁴	4.3•10 ⁻⁵	Pb	Ι	283.3053	1.4•10 ⁻⁴	1.6•10 ⁻⁴
Ni	Ι	300.2485	1.2•10 ⁻⁴	5.6•10 ⁻⁵	Sb	Ι	217.581	1.3•10 ⁻⁴	1.4•10 ⁻⁴

printed.

"All" — print the all analysis table pages.

"select" — print pages selected in the list.

Press "Close" button or Esc key to exit Preview mode.

Apart from the Standard report with analysis results, the program can generate report by Calibration graphs, including all information on calculated calibration graphs, statistics, calculation time and re-calibration.

"Columns"

3 -

✓

Select analytical lines and other types of columns from the list to be included in the report. Only lines and columns of the selected pages will be included in the report. Left-click lines and columns to select or deselect them. You may also use selection buttons (see Main buttons in "Analysis" mode).

Use the following options to print a report:

Calibration curves

Standard report

"current" – print the current page displayed on the screen.

"page with 'Report' name " — print only the page with 'Report' name, if it is available in the analysis table. Otherwise the current page will be

	angle	SD						
338.289 3		min	SD max	calibration SD	Cmin	detection limit		
	86.57B°	0.000118	0.00146	0.05485	0.0001003			
338.289 2	29.92B°	0.000118	0.0249	0.07378	0.0001121	Report settings		
	2.67B°	0.00062	0.0407	0.1824	0.000589			
	2.30B°	0.00042	0.0316	0.06924	0.0002982	title		header
		0.00062	0.0316	0.1318				
		0.00147	0.04	0.04717	0.0009849			÷ ↓
6.772 4	0.55B°	0.000138	0.00496	0.0312	0.00011868			
7.9332 4	6.34B°	0.00043	0.0393	0.1441	0.0004085	Cu 324.7532	~	Bartlett/Kochran tabular
		0.00025	0.0069	0.06081	0.00025	Cu(1) 222.7775		Fisher
						Cu(1) 327.3954		Fisher
		0.00291	0.059					Fisher tabular
								constructed
								recalibration
							=	
						Ir 313.332		recalibration factor
						Ir 322.078		working range SD min / SD max
						Ma 277.669		
								statistical properties Conv/Adeq/SD
								Fisher exp/tabular
		0.00039	0.00444	0.05099	0.0002964			Bartlett/Kochran exp/tabular
	32.94B°	0.00039	0.00444	0.05478	0.0002964			Cmin
		0.000577	0.0203	0.063	0.00016733			
3.7934 4	5.17B°	0.00037	0.0215	0.0488	0.0003034	Mo 317.0343		detection limit
0.5456 4	9.07B°	0.00037	0.0492	0.182	0.00037	Ni 303.7934		L
		0.00122	0.0492	0.1435	0.001037	Ni 310.5456		
		0.000119	0.0492	0.06951	0.00010115			Select font Select for heat
		0.000304		0.05767			Ŧ	
						postscript		
	14.83B° 16.67B°	0.00075	0.0058	0.05875 0.06857	0.0005175 0.00075	✓ page numbers	✓ file name	✓ date Close
	12708 4 0.061 2 0.1772 4 7.9332 4 6.502 2 1.4581 3 2.22.7175 4 2.337.3954 2 4.7632 32 4.7632 32 4.769 4 9.5628 2 0.7669 4 9.5528 2 0.7043 4 1.5466 3 2.30709 4 2.540195 4 3.3053 2 2.3023 3 3.3033 2 2.302.4116 4	12706 49.292° 1270 40.526° 1772 40.552° 1772 40.552° 17832 46.342° 17832 46.342° 17832 46.342° 17832 34.02° 17752 40.252° 17754 40.252° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17605 41.572° 17634 40.572° 17034 40.572° 17034 40.572° 17034 40.772° 15656 49.772° 17054 41.582° 17055	L2708 49 289° 0.0062 20.758° 0.00147 21.772 40 558° 0.00013 7.932 45.348° 0.00142 7.932 45.348° 0.00143 6.502 29.028° 0.00012 1.4581 35.378° 0.0012 1.4581 35.478° 0.0012 1.4581 35.478° 0.0012 222.7775 40.258° 0.00028 237.3954 39.06° 0.00028 296.6898 41.508° 0.0028 202.1073 42.108° 0.00028 302.1073 42.168° 0.00028 302.1073 42.168° 0.00028 302.1073 42.168° 0.00058 0.769 4.778° 0.00148 7.669 44.778° 0.00148 9.5252 29.888° 0.00037 7.034 40.698° 0.00037 7.034 45.178° 0.00037 7.034 45.178° 0.00131 1.5	L2708 49.265* 0.00162 0.0316 J.061 28.758* 0.00147 0.04 J.772 40.568* 0.00138 0.0333 5.602 29.028* 0.0025 0.069 6.502 20.028* 0.0025 0.069 4.5324 0.00147 0.014* 0.1333 6.502 29.028* 0.0025 0.069 4.7521 41.06* 0.00321 0.0291 27.37394 39.046* 0.0032 0.0291 27.37394 39.046* 0.0028 0.6644 276.6898 41.508* 0.0028 0.6044 296.6898 41.508* 0.0028 0.6644 479 42.568* 0.00148 0.166 0.768 47.78* 0.0039 0.00444 0.7205 22.988* 0.00039 0.00444 0.7205 29.488* 0.00017 0.2215 545 49.07* 0.0037 0.4215 5454 0.077* 0.2033 <td>L2706 49.295* 0.0062 0.0316 0.1318 L2706 49.295* 0.00147 0.04 0.04717 L572 0.556* 0.00138 0.00496 0.0312 7.932 46.345* 0.00143 0.0393 0.1411 7.932 46.345* 0.00138 0.0396 0.06131 6.502 29.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.06131 6.622 20.825* 0.00221 0.059 0.06713 1.4581 35.379* 0.00291 0.059 0.05712 222.7775 40.255* 0.00228 0.00291 0.05112 223.7394 39.465* 0.00228 0.00541 0.0543 273.7394 39.465* 0.0028 0.0664 0.03232 296.6898 41.568* 0.0028 0.6644 0.03232 296.789* 0.00148 0.1656 0.1551 0.768 47.778* 0.00148 0.1656 0.1551 0.768 47.78* 0.00148 <td< td=""><td>L2706 49.295* 0.00052 0.0316 0.1318 0.000341 L061 28.755* 0.00147 0.04 0.04717 0.000849 L772 0.555* 0.00138 0.0496 0.0312 0.00011868 7.332 46.345* 0.0043 0.0333 0.1411 0.000489 7.332 46.345* 0.00138 0.00496 0.0025 6.502 29.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.06701 0.00175 6.52 20.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.0172 0.00178 7.332 41.06* 0.00291 0.0590 0.0175 0.00178 7.337 40.255* 0.00218 0.0021 0.0511 0.0028 7.337 40.46* 0.0028 0.0804 0.0323 0.0028 7.37394 40.46* 0.0028 0.864 0.0028 0.0024 7.468* 0.00028 0.864 0.04943 0.0028 295.0898 1.56* 0.0028 0.864 0.00</td><td>12.2708 42.928° 0.00142 0.0316 0.0318 0.000341 1.061 28.789° 0.00147 0.44 0.04717 0.000341 1.061 28.789° 0.00143 0.0312 0.00011868 7.72 40.589° 0.00133 0.0330 0.0147 0.00011868 7.032 46.589° 0.00133 0.0333 0.141 0.000496 5.502 29.028° 0.0025 0.0059 0.0059 0.00059 5.502 29.028° 0.0021 0.0593 0.00025 Cu(1) 327.3954 7.575 40.258° 0.00113 0.0593 0.00028 Cu(1) 327.3954 7.775 40.258° 0.0013 0.0573 0.00028 Fe(1) 206.6898 7.605 41.578° 0.0028 0.0640 0.03323 0.00028 7.775 40.256° 0.00028 0.0541 0.00028 Fe(1) 300.21073 17.292.479 1.578° 0.00028 0.156 0.00028 Ir 322.078 302.1073 41.578° 0.00028 0.156 0.00128 Ir 322.078</td><td>12:2708 49:289° 0:0042 0:0316 0:00341 10:01 28:789° 0:00147 0:44 0:04171 0:0009449 17:72 40:589° 0:00138 0:004964 0:00147 0:44 0:00147868 7:032 46:349° 0:00043 0:0333 0:141 0:0009449 0:001756 5:502 29:029° 0:00025 0:0099 0:00025 0:00112 0:113 0:0019786 7:332 46:169° 0:00121 0:113 0:0599 0:00025 Cu(1) 222.7775 Cu(1) 222.3954 7:532 3:169° 0:00121 0:1572 0:00032 Fe(1) 3:02.1073 I: 292.479 7:227:7575 40:269° 0:00028 0:6640 0:0028 0:6631 0:00028 7:759 0:0269 0:00028 0:6640 0:00028 I: 322.3954 Fe(1) 3:02.1073 7:84 7:669 0:00028 0:6604 0:03323 0:00028 I: 322.078 7:92 29:06888 1:560 0:561 0:00028 I: 322.078 Mg 278.1416 7:032 1: 652 0:5</td></td<></td>	L2706 49.295* 0.0062 0.0316 0.1318 L2706 49.295* 0.00147 0.04 0.04717 L572 0.556* 0.00138 0.00496 0.0312 7.932 46.345* 0.00143 0.0393 0.1411 7.932 46.345* 0.00138 0.0396 0.06131 6.502 29.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.06131 6.622 20.825* 0.00221 0.059 0.06713 1.4581 35.379* 0.00291 0.059 0.05712 222.7775 40.255* 0.00228 0.00291 0.05112 223.7394 39.465* 0.00228 0.00541 0.0543 273.7394 39.465* 0.0028 0.0664 0.03232 296.6898 41.568* 0.0028 0.6644 0.03232 296.789* 0.00148 0.1656 0.1551 0.768 47.778* 0.00148 0.1656 0.1551 0.768 47.78* 0.00148 <td< td=""><td>L2706 49.295* 0.00052 0.0316 0.1318 0.000341 L061 28.755* 0.00147 0.04 0.04717 0.000849 L772 0.555* 0.00138 0.0496 0.0312 0.00011868 7.332 46.345* 0.0043 0.0333 0.1411 0.000489 7.332 46.345* 0.00138 0.00496 0.0025 6.502 29.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.06701 0.00175 6.52 20.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.0172 0.00178 7.332 41.06* 0.00291 0.0590 0.0175 0.00178 7.337 40.255* 0.00218 0.0021 0.0511 0.0028 7.337 40.46* 0.0028 0.0804 0.0323 0.0028 7.37394 40.46* 0.0028 0.864 0.0028 0.0024 7.468* 0.00028 0.864 0.04943 0.0028 295.0898 1.56* 0.0028 0.864 0.00</td><td>12.2708 42.928° 0.00142 0.0316 0.0318 0.000341 1.061 28.789° 0.00147 0.44 0.04717 0.000341 1.061 28.789° 0.00143 0.0312 0.00011868 7.72 40.589° 0.00133 0.0330 0.0147 0.00011868 7.032 46.589° 0.00133 0.0333 0.141 0.000496 5.502 29.028° 0.0025 0.0059 0.0059 0.00059 5.502 29.028° 0.0021 0.0593 0.00025 Cu(1) 327.3954 7.575 40.258° 0.00113 0.0593 0.00028 Cu(1) 327.3954 7.775 40.258° 0.0013 0.0573 0.00028 Fe(1) 206.6898 7.605 41.578° 0.0028 0.0640 0.03323 0.00028 7.775 40.256° 0.00028 0.0541 0.00028 Fe(1) 300.21073 17.292.479 1.578° 0.00028 0.156 0.00028 Ir 322.078 302.1073 41.578° 0.00028 0.156 0.00128 Ir 322.078</td><td>12:2708 49:289° 0:0042 0:0316 0:00341 10:01 28:789° 0:00147 0:44 0:04171 0:0009449 17:72 40:589° 0:00138 0:004964 0:00147 0:44 0:00147868 7:032 46:349° 0:00043 0:0333 0:141 0:0009449 0:001756 5:502 29:029° 0:00025 0:0099 0:00025 0:00112 0:113 0:0019786 7:332 46:169° 0:00121 0:113 0:0599 0:00025 Cu(1) 222.7775 Cu(1) 222.3954 7:532 3:169° 0:00121 0:1572 0:00032 Fe(1) 3:02.1073 I: 292.479 7:227:7575 40:269° 0:00028 0:6640 0:0028 0:6631 0:00028 7:759 0:0269 0:00028 0:6640 0:00028 I: 322.3954 Fe(1) 3:02.1073 7:84 7:669 0:00028 0:6604 0:03323 0:00028 I: 322.078 7:92 29:06888 1:560 0:561 0:00028 I: 322.078 Mg 278.1416 7:032 1: 652 0:5</td></td<>	L2706 49.295* 0.00052 0.0316 0.1318 0.000341 L061 28.755* 0.00147 0.04 0.04717 0.000849 L772 0.555* 0.00138 0.0496 0.0312 0.00011868 7.332 46.345* 0.0043 0.0333 0.1411 0.000489 7.332 46.345* 0.00138 0.00496 0.0025 6.502 29.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.06701 0.00175 6.52 20.025* 0.0025 0.0059 0.0172 0.00178 7.332 41.06* 0.00291 0.0590 0.0175 0.00178 7.337 40.255* 0.00218 0.0021 0.0511 0.0028 7.337 40.46* 0.0028 0.0804 0.0323 0.0028 7.37394 40.46* 0.0028 0.864 0.0028 0.0024 7.468* 0.00028 0.864 0.04943 0.0028 295.0898 1.56* 0.0028 0.864 0.00	12.2708 42.928° 0.00142 0.0316 0.0318 0.000341 1.061 28.789° 0.00147 0.44 0.04717 0.000341 1.061 28.789° 0.00143 0.0312 0.00011868 7.72 40.589° 0.00133 0.0330 0.0147 0.00011868 7.032 46.589° 0.00133 0.0333 0.141 0.000496 5.502 29.028° 0.0025 0.0059 0.0059 0.00059 5.502 29.028° 0.0021 0.0593 0.00025 Cu(1) 327.3954 7.575 40.258° 0.00113 0.0593 0.00028 Cu(1) 327.3954 7.775 40.258° 0.0013 0.0573 0.00028 Fe(1) 206.6898 7.605 41.578° 0.0028 0.0640 0.03323 0.00028 7.775 40.256° 0.00028 0.0541 0.00028 Fe(1) 300.21073 17.292.479 1.578° 0.00028 0.156 0.00028 Ir 322.078 302.1073 41.578° 0.00028 0.156 0.00128 Ir 322.078	12:2708 49:289° 0:0042 0:0316 0:00341 10:01 28:789° 0:00147 0:44 0:04171 0:0009449 17:72 40:589° 0:00138 0:004964 0:00147 0:44 0:00147868 7:032 46:349° 0:00043 0:0333 0:141 0:0009449 0:001756 5:502 29:029° 0:00025 0:0099 0:00025 0:00112 0:113 0:0019786 7:332 46:169° 0:00121 0:113 0:0599 0:00025 Cu(1) 222.7775 Cu(1) 222.3954 7:532 3:169° 0:00121 0:1572 0:00032 Fe(1) 3:02.1073 I: 292.479 7:227:7575 40:269° 0:00028 0:6640 0:0028 0:6631 0:00028 7:759 0:0269 0:00028 0:6640 0:00028 I: 322.3954 Fe(1) 3:02.1073 7:84 7:669 0:00028 0:6604 0:03323 0:00028 I: 322.078 7:92 29:06888 1:560 0:561 0:00028 I: 322.078 Mg 278.1416 7:032 1: 652 0:5

"Assistant" Mode

Enter "Assistant" mode using "Mode" > "Start 'Assistant" menu in the main program menu, use "Mode" toolbar ("Assistant" item) or "Assistant" shortcut on Windows desktop. As compared to "Engineer" mode, this mode has a significantly simpler interface. Analysis is performed based on analysis programs preinstalled by the engineer. For more details see "Developing analysis programs" item in "Working with programs" section.



This mode includes several windows; each window is used to perform a specific operation, such as "Choosing analysis program", "Measurement", "Re-calibration", "Title", "Report". Press the corresponding button to enter the required mode. Press Exit to exit "Assistant" mode.

Use shortcut on Windows desktop to launch several copies of "Assistant" mode, it will allow running several analysis program simultaneously and switch between them as different samples are received. Use Windows taskbar to switch between analyses. Each launched "Assistant" mode is displayed as an individual program. When you enter the program, the specified spectrum measurement settings are automatically set (burning, exposure, generator mode, etc.) PC controlled generator modes such as "Fireball" and "Vezuviy-2" are also changed according to the analysis program. Set up of other generators shall be performed according to their operation manuals.

Selecting Analysis Program

Work in "Assistant" mode starts from selection of the analysis program from the list prepared by the engineer. Analysis program settings are as follows: spectrum analytical measurement mode, lines, analysis settings, program types, which the program/assistant interaction scenario depends on, whether the assistant will be prompted to run re-calibration, if the assistant can specify sample names etc. (For more details, see programs" "Analysis section). Click program icon to select it, then click button "Reference samples" to run re-calibration or button "Measurement" to work with the performed earlier calibration/re-

👩 Atom - [Assistar	nt]			
Locument				- 5 ×
	Analysis pro	gram		
		Name	Anna M.	-
Grafite	Platinum	organization	Laboratory B	
		device	Grand-Globula	
		analysis	Platinum	
		date	6 февраля 2016 г. 🔲 🖷	
		time	18:43	
		comment	next stage purification	
	🚺 Engi	ineer 📄 Measur	ement Control samples	X Exit

calibration. Double-click the name to enter "Measurement" mode. When the cursor is over the program name, program description (name and type) and comments are displayed. You may select one of three types of analysis program icons in the list: large icons, small icons and the table (see buttons above the list).

Important step: enter user name. Press button with a black triangle to the right of input field to select name from the list. You can edit the list using "User list" dialog (in "Engineer" mode). The program remembers the last entry and proposes it by default. Each new name is automatically saved in the user list. Use Title window (see below) to change name during analysis. You must also enter the following fields: company, instrument, analysis, date, time and comments. This data will be stored together with analysis results and can be printed subsequently in the report or used for search in "Database" mode.

If program "with re-calibration" is selected, you can start spectrum measurements of reference samples or switch immediately to measurements of work samples.

If the engineer during analysis program development specifies that it is necessary to measure dark signal periodically, then upon expiration of the specified interval the program will prompt to measure it. If you reject, it will be possible to measure spectra; however, the program will remind continuously about this. If you specify "wait for device operating mode stabilization", the program will open the measurement dialog during the first session when switched to "Reference samples" or "Measurement" mode. The program will measure the dark signal SD until it reaches the specified level.

Recalibration

Reference samples specified by the engineer for recalibration with the entered impurity concentration values are shown in the table. Choose the current reference sample (to do so, click sample header in the table, or se-

lect name in the list above the table) and press \square . Selected reference sample spectrum measurement starts. Current reference sample is highlighted with a blue frame in the table. Use next reference sample upon completion of the required number of necessary parallel measurements. Perform the required number of parallel measurements of reference samples and press ''*Recalibration*''.

Press remote start button connected to MAES or click "Enter" button on the sample name input box to start spectrum measurement.

Atom - [Platinum]													X
Locument												_	. 8 :
Recalil	ecalibration			analysis program operator			Platinum Anna M.						
sample GSO Pt-1-5 №527790 Sampling Sampling Samplin													
	Ag(1)	338.289	Ag(2)	338.289	AI	257.5094	AI	308.2151	AI	309.2708	As	234.984	Au
	1	С	I	С	1	С	1	С	1	С	1	С	1
🗅 GSO Pt-1-5 №527790		0.011		0.011		0.0098		0.0098		0.0098		0.024	
× average													
median													
repeatability													
< III									324115				ł
Figineer 🖉 Recalibration 😴 Measurement 🗊 Title 🛄 Report 🗶 Exit													

Button kis used to discard table cells. Click cell and then click this button. Click parallel measurement header and then press button to delete spectrum from the table.

If the engineer specified during program development the maximum number of parallel measurements, a corresponding message will appear if you try to measure the excess spectrum.

If the engineer specified during program development the minimum number of parallel measurements, a corresponding message will appear when entering the "Recalibration" mode.

If "Maximum deviation of reference samples from the calibration graph,%" was specified in "Recalibration" mode during program development, and deviation is of a higher importance for a line, then "Recommended (X %)" text is displayed, where X is reference sample deviation from the graph value, in %. Select lines to recalibrate and press "Run *recalibration''*. By default the program selects all lines with "recommended" text. If the line was recalibrated, "ok" text appears next to it. Usually parallel shift of graphs is performed. If there are several reference samples, mean shift is calculated.

Replacement of Reference Samples

In case when analysis is performed regularly, and reference samples were spent completely, it is necessary to introduce new samples. Use "Sample replacement" button to open replace/add window. In case of recalibration by concentration values, the information on newly added samples may be obtained from the reference material base, copied from an existing sample in the table, filled with one value, or all concentrations may be entered manually. If recalibration of analytical signals mode is on, new samples are added from the existing ones, which spectra are registered in "Measurement" mode.

Atom - [Platinum]									
Document							_ 8 ×		
Recalibration		analysis operator	Platinum Anna M.						
	<u></u>								
Ag(1) 338.28 Ag(2) 338.28 Al 257.50	9 29.9	2 r	no samples 05/0	02/2016, ▲ 02/2016, ■ 02/2016, ■	and and a second	Perform	recalibration		
Al 308.21 Al 309.27 As 234.98	08 49.3 4 34.6	3.5 r 1.2 r	no samples 05/0 no samples 05/0	02/2016, 02/2016, 02/2016,	* *	🖍 Display graph			
Au(1) 312.27 Bi 223.06			no samples 05/0 no samples 05/0	02/2016, 02/2016,	9	Recalibr	ation report		
Bi 306.77 Ca 317.93 Ca 393.36 Ca 396.84 Cd 226.50 Cd 346.62 Cr 283.56	32 46.3 63 39.8 69 38.3 2 29 2 28.4	2.4 r 3.9 r 3.7 r 1 r 0.8 r	no samples 05/0 no samples 05/0 no samples 05/0 no samples 05/0	02/2016, 02/2016, 02/2016, 02/2016, 02/2016, 02/2016, 02/2016,					
Control	l samples	7	Measurement	Title	Ē	Report	🗶 Exit		
Samples fo	r recalibratic	on							
Add			Enable /	disable					
			Ag(1) 338.289	Ag(2) 338.	289	AI 257.5094	AI 308.2151		
GSO	GSO Pt-1-5 №527790		0.0107	0.0107		0.00980	0.00980 0		
< III						ОК	Cancel		

Measurement of Work Samples

"Measurement" mode is used to measure spectra of work samples. Enter new sample name in input box above the table and use button to measure spectra of parallel measurements. Press Enter button on the keyboard or click "Start" button in MAES to enter "Measurement" mode.

Use buttons in the table, just like in "Engineer" mode.

"Complete sample" button prepares the screen for introduction of a new sample, it instantly prints them and saves information to file. According to Save/Export settings, analysis data may be copied to a universal format file compatible with external programs and exported to the enterprise data base.
Measure	ment		analysis pro operator	gram	Platinum Anna M	-			
	sample GSO F	Pt-1-5 №52779	0 🗸	Complet samplin				A -	
	Ag(2) 33	AI 257.50	Al 308.21	AI 309.27	As 234.984	Au(1) 31	Bi 223.061	Ca 396.8	Cd 226.5
GSO Pt-1-5 №527790	C 0.0107	C 0.00980	C 0.00980	C 0.00980	C 0.0245	C 0.00700	C 0.0105	C 0.00463	C 0.00690
	0.0107	0.00980	0.00980	0.00980	0.0245	0.00700	0.0105	0.00463	0.00690
經 (1)	0.0095	0.013	0.0099	0.012	0.035	0.0084	0.013	0.0048	0.0084
經 (2) 經 (3)	0.0095	0.012	0.0099	0.011	0.030	0.0090	0.012	0.0043	0.0079
經 (3) 經 (4)	0.0093	0.012	0.010	0.011	0.029	0.0074	0.0080	0.0038	0.0072
× average	0.00929	0.013	0.012	0.012	> 0.025	0.00812	0.0080	0.0048	> 0.0070
median	0.00940	0.0123	0.011	0.0114	0.031	0.00803	0.012	0.0045	0.0076
repeatability	0.00340	0.0120	0.011	0.0114	0.001	0.00000	0.012	0.0040	0.0070
repeatability				1					

Attention! Timely measure the dark signal!

If you work in "Preset sample" analysis mode, samples and blank parallel measurements are already entered in the table. In this case the program will not allow entering a new sample name — select name in the drop-down list or in the table.

If the engineer specified a limit for the number of parallel measurements, the "preset samples" type of program, then the number of parallel measurements for each sample is checked upon measurement start command and upon completion of measurements.

Upon completion of measurements you can print the report. "*Report*" — transfer to Preview mode before printing (see "Report" mode). Warning message will be displayed, if you already printed the report in this analysis program. If you answer "Yes", the program will automatically select new registered samples in the report for printing, which were not in the table during the previous print session. This message is not displayed in the "preset samples" mode. The program returns to measurements when exiting Preview mode.



Use button with a dropdown menu to select and save font size in the analysis table.

If at least one spectrum was registered in "Measurement" or "Recalibration" mode, when exiting the program, it will automatically save he file with analysis results. It will be storaed in "year/month/day" database directory, file name will include the laboratory assistant last name, program name and the sequential number of analysis during a shift. Usually, it is not necessary to search and open a file to view results received in "Assistant" mode; it is more convenient to use built-in search in "Database" mode.

During program operation it automatically saves temporary files in case of accidental interruption of operation — for example, if the computer is switched off. After restarting, these temporary files are loaded with a notification on emergency recovery without loss of measurements.

"Database" Mode

🚯 Atom -	[Databas	e]						
🚰 <u>F</u> ile	<u>D</u> ocume	nt <u>A</u> nalysis <u>M</u> od	le <u>T</u> ool <u>S</u> ettings	<u>W</u> indows <u>H</u> elp				_ 8 ×
D 🖻		∌ ▼	ত 🚁	\rightarrow		🛠 Bi	306.772 I AKG 9000 - 4	•
🖂 🔱	KA							
TIME		all	•	ANALYSIS	[all]	•	SAMPLE 5-0	
	from	1 января 2	2005 г. 🔲 🗸	operator		•	information 1	•
	to	31 декабря 2	015 r 🔲 🛪	note			information 2	-
	days	4017					information 3	•
No.	Date		Analysis	Operator	Commen	t Sam	ples	·
1	2015.J	anuary.21 09:44	ЧУГУНЫ	Кожевина А.	Б.	ЧГ1	е 24-3-1 повтор -с 24-3-2 пов	
2	2015.J	anuary.27 08:08	ЧУГУНЫ	Мужанова С.	м.	ЧГ1	e 6-1 10-1 5-0 6-0 7-0	
3	2015.F	ebruary.06 09:30) ЧУГУНЫ	Кожевина А.	Б.	ЧГ1	e 56-1-1 10,30 56,-1-2 13,45 5	=
4	2015.F	ebruary.27 08:02	чугуны	Базякина Н.	В.	ЧГ1	e 92-1-1 10.15 92-1-2 14.00 25	
5	2015.N	1art.18 08:48	ЧУГУНЫ	Базякина Н.	В.	ЧГ1	e 119-1-1 11.35 119-1-1 11.35	
6	2015.A	pril.08 08:21	ЧУГУНЫ	Базякина Н.	В.	ЧГ1	e 45-0 154-1-1 12.30	
7	2015.A	pril.08 16:05	ЧУГУНЫ	Базякина Н.	В.	ЧГ1	e 145-1-1 45-0 154-1-2 154-1-3	-
			3	\oplus \bigcirc	B \$	k 🕅	1	files: 8
Ready								A

"Database" mode is used to view and analyze saved program results. All analyses performed in "Assistant" mode, are automatically saved in the database. In order to export analysis results received in "Engineer" mode to the database, select "File"/"Export to DB..." in the main program menu.

File with analysis results (***.spd** file) is the database storage unit. Each line in the table corresponds to a file. "Data", "Analysis", "Name" and "Comments" columns correspond to title margins (see "Title" dialog). "Column" template includes analysis program name, where analysis was performed in "Assistant" mode.

Files meting the current filter criteria are displayed in the table. Use controls above the table to measure filter parameters. Filter is set by default to "today" status, it displays all analysis files generated today. If several filter parameters are specified (for example, data, name, analysis), they are combined with "and" operator, i.e. all files must meet all specified selection criteria.

"*Filter*" — specify time period, for which analysis results must be shown: "today", yesterday", "this week", "current month", "current year". "All" means that if other filters are not set, all files available in the database will be displayed. In order to accelerate this operation, this list is limited to the first 1000 files. (Note the string "found: ... shown ..." above the table). "specify..." allows defining manually the range of dates — see "From" and "To" fields.

"Name" — specify laboratory assistant/operator name, who performed the analysis. To do so, select it from the dropdown menu or enter it (click "Refresh" button when done). List of names is generated from two sources:

1. names contained in "User list" dialog,

2. names are added from files already viewed in "Database" mode.

It is recommended to specify "Filter" field first. The program will sort out all files according to the specified dates and fill the user list, then specify "Name" field. Use this filter to define, for example, how many analyses were performed by an operator with this name within the specified time period. To do so, specify the dates first (see "Filter" field), and then the "Name"; other filters must be blank.

"*Analysis*" — specify analysis program name. To do so, select it from the dropdown menu or enter it (click "Refresh" button when done). Name list is generated from two sources:

1. names of all currently existing analysis programs,

2. names are added from files already viewed in "Database" mode.

It is recommended to specify "Filter" field first. The program will sort all files by the specified dates and will fill the user list. After that, specify "Analysis" field. Use this filter to define, for example, how many analyses

were performed using the specified analysis program within the specified time period. To do so, specify dates first (see "Filter" field), then specify "Analysis" field; other filters must be blank.

"*Template*" — similarly to "Analysis", but program runs according to the "Template" field. Specify "Template" field together with "Analysis" field, because the same program may perform various analyses. For example, to control content of a particular element individually or in groups.

Analysis queries may be received from various sources (workshops, departments, etc.) These analysis aspects may be specified in "Template" field for a more precise selection in the "Database" mode.

"Comments" — enter text and press "Refresh" button. Entered text appears in "Comment" filed of the File title.

Click column header in the table to sort the files found.

Click again the header to sort column in descending or ascending order.

"Information 1,2,3" — allows searching analyses with additional fields, such as "Workshop", "Furnace", "Melt", "Time", etc.

The following buttons are located under the table for main database operations:

Select and unselect strings in the table list

C

"Update" — search again files that meet the specified filter criteria.

"Open" — open file from table in "Atom" program. File is opened in a new document.

"Import" — specify one or several files in "Open File" dialog to copy them to database.

"Remove" — remove selected files from data base. It is greyed when there are no selected strings.

"Database setting" — "Database setting" window appears, where you can specify what exactly must be copied, and what conversion changes will be made. You can also specify destination directory here. Use this mode to create user-defined text files of report based on .xsl-files to export resuts to external programs.



"Export" — manual export from database for selected files. Copying files and XSL-conversion could be made while conversion. It is greyed when there are no selected strings.

"Analysis" — view Shewhart graphs for selected analyses. In order to simplify operation, it is recommended to enter beforehand the information on reference materials into the reference sample database and the respective metrological parameters into the code of standards. Then, select necessary items from the list to create graphs of repeatability, precision and errors for each element. You can also export processed data to MS Excel for subsequent processing. Select any point using the cursor in the graphic window to select it in the table of results. Double-clicking analysis table line to open a data file that corresponds to this line in the "Engineer" mode.

Database settings		X	Export from database	×
✓ main directory: C	C:\Atom 3.3\DB\	&	export directory:	C:VAtom
description	path		copy spd-files	verwrite existing files
	C:\Atom\dat		copy xml-files	
v	R:\borissov\DAT_SPD\		apply xsl-transformation	
	D:\storage		✓ launch program:	C:\Atom 3.3\Checkexe
✓ automatically export new	files	adjust		OK Cancel
	ОК	Cancel		





"Standards" Mode

Standards mode is used to enter and edit tables with standards for operative control of convergence and reproducibility of analysis results. This manual section describes user interface, for more details see "Use of Standards" item in "Working with program" section.

<u>F</u> ile <u>D</u> o	cument <u>A</u> i	nalysis <u>M</u> oo	de <u>T</u> ool	<u>S</u> ettings <u>W</u>	indows E							- 8
ו 🛥 ו	8 8 -		1		→	▲ ¤		Bi 306.772 I AKG 9)000 -	•	•	M 📈
(+)	Θ	Rena	ime				B	Disable editing	-			
Гос	CT 27611-8]		-		Add element			X	1
								element(s) Bi				
							_	element concentration range	C min			
\bigcirc	\frown	~	<u>~</u>				_		C max	c		
(+)	(-)	ß					_	convergence standard	N of		2	
Elem /	(Cmin	C max]	N par	d abs	d rel	D abs	D rel	-	d abs			•
As	0.01	0.02	3	0.005		0.006	_		d rel			
As	0.02	0.05	3	0.008		0.009	_		D 1			=
As	0.05	0.1	3	0.014		0.015		reproducibility standard	D abs			
As	0.1	0.2	3	0.023		0.025			D rel			
Cr	0.01	0.02	3	0.005		0.006	_	stability of calibration characteristics	F¤ rel			
Cr	0.02	0.05	3	0.008		0.009	_		Γ¤ abs	s		
Cr	0.05	0.1	3	0.012		0.013		relative error range	Г¥			
Cr	0.1	0.2	3	0.023		0.025		i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Г"			
Cr	0.2	0.5	3	0.03		0.04						
Cu	0.02	0.05	3	0.012		0.013		comment				
Cu	0.05	0.1	3	0.018		0.02						
Cu	0.1	0.2	3	0.027		0.03						
Mn	0.1	0.2	3	0.02		0.025		ок			Cancel	~
base		T R ISO	5725	result /			- 1					
1 2000				·····								
eady												

Switch "Edit" mode on to add and edit information on Standarts table Disable editing

ing is complete, save the document (button) and press button Disable editing. Names of entered standard tables are displayed in the upper part of the window. Select a name to display the list of elements with standard values of operative control (in the lower part of the table).

Press t above the list of tables and specify new table name and comments in the open dialog to add new standard table.

Tables are arranged in such a way that standard values required to execute an analysis program are located in one table. Or, in other words, a standard table (one table) must conform to each analysis program (if standards are used to execute it).

Click \bigoplus above the list of elements to add new string to the table. Specify element name, concentration range (if any) and the required standard values in the dialog.

Click table name and then press \bigcirc to delete it.

If some values are not used or are unknown, they may be skipped.

Difference criterion for N parallel measurements is applied to check the convergence standard according to GOST or the analysis procedure in use.

Reproducibility standard is checked as per difference criterion for 2 measurements.

Relative error limits are used to check homogeneity of reference materials and to attest procedures and commission SRM (see "SRM attestation"). All calculations are performed according to OST 95 10554.

Position cursor over the respective cell of the table to modify the entered value and enter new value.

Click the leftmost cell of the string (name of the element) and press \bigcirc to delete strings from the standard table.

Click column header where you want to start sorting to modify the sorting order in the table. For example, in order to sort the table by element name, click Element column header. Click again to change the sorting order, either in ascending or descending.

All entered standard tables are saved in a file, usually in "atom.dps" file. Click button 🖆 to load another file with standards. If it is necessary to loaded automatically the standard file when launching the program, specify it in "Files" dialog.

Use button **I** to save standards to file. If standards were edited after program was loaded, you will be prompted to save changes when exiting the program.

Button D deletes all information on standards.

"Reference Material" Mode

It is used to fill information on reference materials that are used to create calibration graphs and perform recalibration. This information includes names of samples, reference materials, and known concentrations of elements in each sample.

Switch "Edit" mode on to add and edit information on concentrati	ons	Enable editing	. When edit-
ing is complete, save the document (button \blacksquare) and press button	Ð	Disable editing	

Atom - [Reference materials]					
<u>File D</u> ocument <u>A</u> nalysis <u>M</u> ode <u>T</u> ool	<u>Settings</u> <u>W</u> indows <u>H</u> elp				
	চ ∡→ → 🛛 🕸		Bi 306.772	I AKG 9000 - •	•
🛃 add 📃 delete	rename	8	Disable editing	Save 🕻	₽
Copper nikel PR02 MBH					
🕂 add 📃 delete 🖷		🕂 ac	dd 📑 delete		
Sample name	Sample code	Element	Concentration Co	omment	1
CRM PR02 MBH 36X 274 A		Ag	0.0048	Jinnent	
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN1 N		Be	0.0008		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN11 A		Bi	0.0206		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN12 A		Cd	0.0096		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN2 J		Co	0.0159		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN21 A		Cr	0.0321		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN22 A		Cu	0.0321		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN23 A		Fe	0.0316		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN24 A		Mn	0.0391		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN3 M		Ni	5.5		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN4 K		P	0.053		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN5 N		Pb	0.051		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN6		Sn	0.038		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN6 H		Zn	0.0203		
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN7 F					
CRM PR02 MBH 36X CN9 J					
CRM PR02 MBH 36X SP1 A CRM PR02 MBH 36X SP1 A CRM PR02 MBH 36X SP2 A					

The list of entered samples is specified in the left part of the window. Besides the name, "code" and "comments" may be assigned to each sample. Sample name corresponds to its name in the analysis table. "Code" may be used to enter full sample name, comments are a user-defined accompanying text. Sample list may be divided into several directories for easy navigation. Specify directory in the "Add reference material" dialog, where the sample will be located (see below). Samples from the current directory are



displayed in the list; select directory name in dropdown list above the sample list to change the current directory.

If, when adding new sample into the analysis table the program finds a sample with the same name in the reference materials list, the following message will appear:

If you answer "Yes", "SRM" fields for elements specified in reference material mode will be filled for the new sample.

Press the top left button end to add information on the new sample. Fill the required fields in the open dialog and press "OK".

Description of dialog fields is provided above.

Select samples in the list and press delete to delete them.

Each sample includes a list of elements with known concentrations. Click sample name to display the list. The list consists of three fields: name, concentration and comments.

You may enter information in blocks with names of samples and elements, just like in the table:

First line must include	
symbols of elements	

First column must include names of samples

	Sn	Zn	Fe	Ni	Sb	Cu	Pb
341	5.66	2.71	0.094	0.74	0.50	85.35	5.0
342	6.39	3.26	0.15	0.91	0.29	84.65	4.09
343	7.22	3.81	0.20	1.30	0.21	83.90	3.25
344	8.17	4.83	0.21	1.88	0.12	82.50	2.16
345	9.3	5.59	0.55	2.41	0.074	80.77	1.24

The program prompts to enter text to copy this table from Word or Excel program to Windows buffer



You may change the sorting order in lists of samples or elements. To do so, click column header to sort samples and elements by. Click again the header to change the sorting order: "ascending" — "descending".

Add element	
element(s)	Ві
concentration	1.23
comment	
	OK Cancel

Click diamond above list of elements to add once the element information. Fill fields in the open dialog and press "OK".

Select elements in the list and press delete to delete them.

Double-click field values and edit them directly in the field to modify them.

Click to copy information samples and concentration to analysis files "Engineer" mode has options to copy information to analysis files also. To do so, use reference material database window button.

"Grade Guide" Mode

This mode is used to enter information for automatic grading of samples. User enters grades (of alloys) and concentration ranges of its elements.

Current version of alloy database provides information from several reference books on composition and properties of steels, cast irons, bronzes, brasses and other alloys.

Add "Alloy" column in the analysis table to display grading results. The program calculates mean concentra-



tion for each sample element and displays all grades corresponding to the entered concentration ranges based upon this data.

All grades are divided into several directories for simple navigation.

Activate editing mode first (use button "Allow editing") to change and add information on alloy grades, then start adding, updating and editing.

List of grades is located in the left part of the window. Each grade contains a name, code (of full name) and comments. Click "New alloy" above the list to add new grade. New record will appear in the cur-

rent directory, which fields must be filled with respective information. Use "drag and drop" method to move alloys from one directory to another.

Select grades in the list and press "Delete" button to delete them.

Each alloy has a list of element concentration ranges. Information on the range includes element name, minimum and maximum concentration and comments. Press "Add" above the list of ranges to add new element; choose element and specify values. It is not necessary to enter both range limits to specify only the lower or upper limit; but at least one range limit must be entered. Select elements in the list and press "Delete selected" to delete them.

You can change the sorting order in the lists of grades and ranges. To do so, click column header to sort samples and elements by. Click again the header to change the sorting order: "ascending" — "descending".

VMKO.157UM L.44

Double-click field values and edit them directly in the field to modify them. If you start typing text in "Quick search" window, the program starts searching among alloys and will display the list of respective alloys.

Use Search tab for a more detailed searching in the grade guide. You may specify values in any field that includes information on alloy grade, or you may specify only concentration of any element with various parameters, such as range, limit etc.

Press "Search" button to update the list of found alloy grades (meeting the criteria).

0	Atom - [Grade Guide]	- 🗆 🗙
🛼 Eile Document Analysis Mode Tool Settings W		_ <i>8</i> ×
D 🖉 🖬 🍯 🔻 🔿	🐇 🛠 Te 238.578 I ACSKG	1500
🚯 Allow editing	🚺 Properties 🔑 Search 👩 Marking 📚 List of all	sources
Search results are displayed (): Auminum, aluminum alloy Auminum An As As AsE A95	Name contains: Name does NOT contain: Regulatory document: Source: Substitute contains: Comment contains: Comment available No comment	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Impose conditions by chemical elements:	X Delete selected
	ON Element Search condition	From To
		✓ 0.0121 0.05
	Search Search Add to the already found	Reset search
Ready		

×

"Analysis Programs" Mode

This mode is used to display and measure some analysis program settings. Programs are used to perform rou-

Atom - [Analysis					-
• <u>File</u> <u>D</u> ocumer	nt <u>A</u> nalysis <u>M</u> ode <u>T</u> ool <u>S</u> ettings				
) 🖻 🖬 é	5 - T	\rightarrow	*	Bi 306.772 AKG 9000	
s Hay Kan 🧧					
-	n 3.3\Templates\				
rogram	Туре	Comment	Recalibr.	name: Grafite	
Grafite	With recalibration			file: Grafite.spd	
Platinum	With recalibration		06/02/16		
			type: With recalibration	•	
			✓ prompt for dark signal measurement once every 30 mi	•	
				measure SD. Maximal value, %: 0.015	
			number of parallel Maximal deviation of control refernce		
				min 2 materials from the calibration graph, %	D
				max 4 4	
				enable rotation during recalibration	
				display in 'Assistant' Bi(1) 306.772 Bi(2) 306.772	î
				Cu 219.5683	=
				Cu 260.027 Cu 282.437	
				Cu 288.293	
				Cu 299.7364	
				Cu 303.6101 Cu 306.342	
				comment: 0 007.00	-
				usual analisys with electrodes	~
					÷
					٦.
				Delete last recalibration results	
				🚰 Open 🖌 OK 🗶 Delete	٦
•			•		
eady					-

tine analysis in the "Assistant" mode.

Select application name in the list to the left, change necessary settings and press "OK". Or press "Delete", if you want to delete analysis program.

Double click the list of programs to open a file in the selected program in "Engineer" mode.

Press OK after online editing of analysis settings or the list of lines and columns to be displayed.

Most recent recalibration results are applied when starting analysis program in the standard mode. Press "Delete last recalibration results" to return

the program to initial calibration graphs.

Developing Routine Analysis Programs

This mode may be activated in "File" menu using "Develop Analysis Program..." item.

This automatic mode is essentially different from the similar procedure in the previous versions of "Atom" program. Major changes were mainly made in standard operations, which are run by the program itself through obtaining necessary information from the engineer by means of query dialogs.

This mode is the final phase in developing the routine analysis program. To accomplish it, follow necessary and obligatory procedures for checking and preparation of several settings in "Engineer" mode:

1. usually, in order to develop a program, spectra and calibration graphs obtained earlier are used, i.e. you shall start with reading the data saved earlier;

2. if you create a completely new analysis, you shall add all analytical lines of elements and reference lines measured (as it is specified in the analysis procedure) to the analysis table; compare analytical lines with corresponding reference lines; enter all necessary parameters to calculate line intensity values, calibration graphs, concentrations; register and record reference material spectra in the analysis table to built calibration graphs; select reference lines to control spectrum position relative to the detector;

3. set "Measurement" mode, parameters for spectrum registration and generator control according to the analysis procedure — burning time, exposure (including the number of spectra when working with "Time record" parameters);

4. if constant graph method is used, analysis tables must include spectra of reference samples or reference materials, which will be used to control the calibration graphs;

5. customize the analysis table view, usually concentration column is displayed, including "Mean" and "RSD" or "difference" values;

6. customize Report view, if the laboratory assistant must print it;

7. if matrix printer with continuous or reel feeding is connected to LPT1 port of the PC, you can specify instant printing during the analysis (open dialog in the main program menu "*Settings/Log* ...'', detailed information regarding this dialog is provided below).

Upon completion of preliminary operations, programs development starts, and first "Analysis program name" dialog opens (menu "File" > "Create analysis program...").

ATOM program uses Windows system windows message buttons so their caption depends on system language setting and could be in Russian or English at different computers. Here is translation for helping:

< <u>Н</u> азад	Back	Далее >	Forward	Готово	OK, Ready
Отмена	Cancel	Да	ОК	Нет	No

Analysis program name	T	1.1	X
analisis program name (e.g. "Coarse Copper", "Steel Alloy" etc):			
Platinum		•	
Program name will be displayed in the well in the list of available analysis p			s" mode, as
Program name cannot be empty. If the name of an existing program is program will be replaced by the new		p-down list), then	the existing
Click "Next" to continue.			
	< <u>Н</u> азад	Далее >	Отмена

Fill program name field or select it from the list of complete programs. In this case the current program will be replaced, and the program always warns you about it by means of a confirming dialog. Specified name will be subsequently included in the list of complete programs, in the database, report etc.





Use unique Analysis program names – existing names are checked before creation.

Type of the analysis program		D	X
Program type defines the operation w	orkflow.		
with recalibration	by concentrations	-	
laboratory assistant can reco	rd spectra of control re	ference materials, spe	cified by
the engineer, and perform rec	alibration. Samples are	e measured without lim	itation
specified samples			
laboratory assistant measure			
and parallel measurements c	an not be added. Calibr	ation graphs remain ur	nchanged
arbitrary samples			
laboratory assistant specifies	names of working sam	ples. Calibration graph	ns remain
unchanged			
Click "Next" to continue.			
	< <u>Н</u> азад	Далее >	Отмена
Samples for recalibration			×
Samples for recalibration	1.1.1.1		X
Samples for recalibration Select samples to perform recalibrati	on		X
	on		0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibration	Disabled	GS	
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb	GS	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrations Sample Elements GSO Ag AI As Au Bi Ca Cd GSO Ag AI As Au Bi Ca Cd GSO Ag AI As Au Bi Ca Cd	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrations in the select sample elements GSO Ag AI As Au Bi Ca Cd	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrations Sample Elements GSO Ag AI As Au Bi Ca Cd GSO Ag AI As Au Bi Ca Cd	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mn 0.0028	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Ni 0.0028 Ni 0.0028	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Mn 0.0028 No 0.0041 Pd 0.0034	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrations in the select sample between	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Mn 0.0028 Ni 0.0041 Pd 0.0034 Rh 0.0058	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Ni 0.0028 Ni 0.0024 Rh 0.0058 Ru 0.00334	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrations in the select sample constraints in the select selec	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Mn 0.0028 Ni 0.0028 Ru 0.0028 Ru 0.0028 Sb 0.0029	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrations in the select sample Elements GSO Ag AI As Au Bi Ca Cd GSO Ag AI As Au Cd Cr Cu Fe GSO As Cu Fe Mg Mn Ni P	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Ni 0.0028 Ni 0.0024 Rh 0.0058 Ru 0.00334	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrations in the select sample between the sample bet	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Mn 0.0028 No 0.0041 Pd 0.0034 Rh 0.0058 Ru 0.0034 Si 0.0029 Si 0.0029 Si 0.0028	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Mn 0.0028 No 0.0041 Pd 0.0034 Rh 0.0058 Ru 0.0034 Si 0.0029 Si 0.0029 Si 0.0028	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te Ag Bi Ca I	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Ni 0.0028 Ni 0.0024 Rh 0.0058 Ru 0.0034 Sb 0.0029 Si 0.00086 Sh 0.0028	0-4 Pt-35
Select samples to perform recalibrati	Disabled Mo Ru Sb Ca Te Mo Mn Te	GS As 0.00258 Cu 0.0035 Fe 0.0043 Mg 0.00126 Ni 0.0028 Ni 0.0041 Pd 0.0034 Rh 0.0058 Ru 0.00344 Sb 0.0029 Si 0.00086 Sh 0.0028	0-4 Pt-35

select program type from the following options:

— "with recalibration" by concentration values or analytical signals;

— "specified samples" – laboratory assistant will be able to analyse samples according to the number of parallel measurements specified in the analysis table; calibration graphs are applied without recalibration;

— "user-defined samples" — the number of samples is not limited; calibration graphs are applied without recalibration.

Move to the next stage — click "Next" button.

Select reference samples and specify, what elements these samples will be applied to.

At the next stage, select lines which the laboratory assistant will view during the analysis.

Fe(2) 296.6898 Fe(2) 302.1073	 report printing
Ni 299.2593	
Pb(2) 280.1995	print only selected columns
Pd(2) 292.249	© print only solution commis
Pd(2) 325.878	
Rh 312.37	use current print settings
Rh(2) 343.489	
Sb(2) 231.147	
Sn(2) 286.333	
Zn(2) 334.5015	
Zn(2) 334.557	
Pt 228.0492	
Pt 267.457	

Then estimate the number of measurements for reference samples and the permissible deviation, in case of excess of which it is recommended to perform recalibration. All lines will be checked.

"With recalibration" program setting	js		X
maximal and minimal num	per of paral	lel measurements in recalibration samples	
minimal:	2		
maximal:	4		
maximal deviation of the concentration	ontrol refere	ence material from the Calibration graph, % of	
	4		
in the "Assistant" mode the as "recalibration recomme		n graphs that do not meet this criterion, will be mar	ked
enable rotation during ra Rotation is performed, i Otherwise only parallel	the numbe	er of samples is at least 2.	
Click "Next" to continue.			
		< Назад Далее > Отме	на

At the next stage it is recommended to specify "Measure dark signal" and set frequency of measurement queries to 30 or 60 minutes; in addition, you may select "Measure dark signal SD" item.

Analysis program settings			×
measure dark signal once prior to starting the work interval (if specified) the assis the dark signal.			
prompt to measure dark signa	I	once every 30 m	nin. 🔻
measure dark signal SD prior to starting the work in "A measure the dark signal SD un value. This controls the onset device.	ntil it drops below t	the preset	
maximal SD value, % :		0.015	
Click "Next" to continue.			
	< <u>Н</u> азад	Далее >	Отмена

Comment to analysis program		X
assistant selects analysis program befor	sis workflow (reference materials used, g	
use parameters according to manua	al	*
✓ open analysis program in "Engine Click "Ready" to finish creating program	er" mode upon completion	
	< Назад Готово	Отмена

Final stage is to describe program implementation features in comments, reference samples to be used, generator operation mode, single measurement period, etc.

Press "Ready" and start creating the program and save it in the list of programs.

Parameters of all stages of program developing are stored in a data file. Press "Next" to repeat this procedure until the stage, where changes or corrections must be implemented, and proceed to the final stage.

Switch to "Assistant" mode to run the developed analysis program.

Description of dialogs

"Periodic table"

Table	e of e	eleme	nts														X
	н							He			[78					
	Li	Be	в	С	Ν	0	F	Ne					D	t			
r	Na	Mg	AI	Si	Р	S	CI	Ar						L			
	к	Ca	Sc	Ti	v	Cr	Mn	Fe	Со	Ni		I	Platin 195.(Clear	
C	Cu	Zn	Ga	Ge	As	Se	Br	Kr					190.0	19		Clear	
F	RЬ	Sr	Υ	Zr	Nb	Мо	Тс	Ru	Rh	Pd						Select	-
ŀ	۹g	Cd	In	Sn	Sb	Те	Т	Xe									
C	Cs	Ba	La	Hf	Та	w	Re	Os	Ir	Pt					*	Settings	
ŀ	Au	Hg	TI	Pb	Bi	Ро	At	Rn							~	Settings	
F	Fr	Ra	Ac	Ku													
C	Ce	Pr	Nd	Pm	Sm	Eu	Gd	ТЬ	Dy	Но	Er	Tm	Yb	Lu			
٦	Γh	Pa	U	Np	Pu	Am	Cm	Bk	Cf	Es	Fm	Md	No	Lr	V	Exit	
٦	Гu																

This dialog is displayed when pressing the active element name in the "Spectral Lines" toolbar.. It is used to select the current chemical element or several elements. One element among all chosen elements is active (it is designated with blue colour), other selected elements are black. Lines of the current element are displayed in the list of "Spectral Lines" toolbar. Lines of all selected elements are displayed in spectrum window.

Click element name to select the required element. There are two ways to select several

all from filter

copper

all from analysis table

elements: either hold pressed "Shift" or "Ctrl" button, or press "Select several elements" button (small blue rectangle shall highlight at the top left on the button image). If one of already selected elements is clicked when selecting several elements, it will be deselected.

The following colours are used to display elements:

- blue background indicates the current element;
- black background indicates the selected elements;
- pink background highlights elements from the filter;
- names of elements, for which no spectral line is specified, are indicated with gray background.

"*Clear*" button deselects all elements; current element remains selected.

"Select several elements" button activates the mode of highlighting several elements. Click small black triangle to the right of this button to open the menu with selection options:

- "all" select all elements in the table;
- "all from filter" select all elements from the filter (highlighted with pink);
- "all from analysis table" select all elements, which lines are displayed in the analysis table;;
- other menu items correspond to names of element groups. Press the name to highlight elements of a corresponding group.

Use "Setup" button to open dialogs with control options of elements.

This dialog is used to add/delete groups of elements. Groups of elements may be used later to highlight at once all elements of the group in "Periodic table"

ferrum geology steel Periodic Table settings Group manager Elements filter Line filter ferrum geology steel add group : delete group Ag Ni Fe Zn Si Se As Bi Cd Co Mn P Pb Sb Sn Te Mg Al Ca Cr C OK Отмена При<u>м</u>енить Справка

VMKO.157UM L.49

Group manager Elements filter	Line filter
copper ferrum geology steel	Ag Ni Fe Zn Si Se As Bi Cd Co Mn P Pb Sb
	add selected group elements to filter
	add selected elements to filter
	delete all elements from filter
list of elements in the filter :	
ОК	Отмена Применить Справка

dialog or to constraint the search in "Spurious Lines" and "Qualitative analysis" tools. Perform the following actions to add new group:

- 1. select elements to be added to new group using "Periodic table" dialog..
- 2. open "Group Manager" dialog (press "Settings" in "Periodic table" dialog and select "Group Manager" tab).
- 3. enter name of new group in the input field (at the top right).
- 4. press "Add group of selected elements".

Select group name from the list (at the top left) and press "Delete group" to delete it.

Use this dialog to select filter elements. The filter may be used either to simplify the search when selecting the current element (filter elements are highlighted with pink background in the "Periodic table" dialog) or to restrict the search in "Spurious Lines" and

"Qualitative Analysis" tools. Select one group of elements (the list at the top left) and press the first "plus" to add elements to the filter, or select elements in "Periodic table" dialog and press the second "plus". Press "minus" to delete all elements from the filter.

"Line Filter" bookmark corresponds to display setup dialog of spectral lines.

Use "Group Manager" and "Element Filter" to limit in advance the number of elements, which spectral lines will be analyzed by the program in "Spurious Lines" *and* "Qualitative Analysis" tools.

Measurement Mode		X
Preburning	0	sec.
exposure	60	Sec.
Number of spectra	1	
total exposure time 1 min 0 sec = preburning : 0 sec (0 accumulations).+ exposure : 60 sec (1 spectra * 400 accumula	tions * 150 mse	с).
measurement unit for	n seconds	_
More>	ОК	Cancel

"Measurement mode"

Open this dialog by pressing **b** button located on the "Working with Device" toolbar. The program stores all settings individually for each document (file with analysis results). If several documents are open in the program with different measurement settings, change of the active document will also change the settings. Settings are saved when saving the document; settings are loaded together with the file.

Various options of measurement settings are considered below depending on the spectrometer type and spectrum analysis features.

Currently, operation and control of the generator start-up is supported according to different schemes –

Simple	Arc-spark excitation – Vesuviy, Fireball, UGE-4, IVS-29, etc.					
Simple	Pulsed laser excitation – LMA-10					
Argon spark stand	DFS-51, Polyvac, SpectroLab S, etc. for vacuum spectrometers with					
Algon spark stand	argon feed control using electromechanical relays					
Crond Even ort	For spectrometers with microprocessor argon feed control. This is a se-					
Grand Expert	ries of Grand Expert, Favorit and other spectrometers.					
Continuous comula food	ICP and AAS spectrometers – ICAP-61, SpectroFlame, Kolibri, S-115,					
Continuous sample feed	etc.					

Own dialog is provided for each operating mode, where the corresponding parameters are specified.

"*Preburning*" — sets a pause before the measurement after the generator start-up.

"Measurement time" — duration of spectrum measurement.

"Number of spectra" sets the number of burning spectra, which shall be registered.

Depending on the mode of operation with distillation/burning spectra the measurement result will either be one spectrum with several exposures, which the program will store, or an average spectrum and separate burning spectra, which will be added to additional graphs of spectrum window, and will be stored only until new measurement. For example, if this parameter is set equal to two, then the main spectrum will appear in the spectrum window (corresponding to the whole exposure time), as well as the second and third spectra, displayed in additional graphs, corresponding to the first and the second half of exposure. If one spectrum is set, burning spectra will not be registered. Use of burning spectra is described in more detail in "Performing analysis taking into account burning of elements".

Total measurement time is equal to "Preburning" + "Measurement time" (see line of "Total measurement time" description).

The following parameters are added when using "Argon spark stand" mode, Grand Expert, Favorit spectrometer or spark sampling:

"Blowing" — sets the time of stand blowing with gas before the generator start-up.

"Register spectrum starting form preburning" – registration of spectrum and burning taking into account the generator operating mode change.

MAES analyzer for spectrometers with argon spark stand is delivered with a special control unit providing synchronization of blowing and various generator mode start-up times.

The following parameters are added in the "Continuous Sample Feed" mode:

"Measurement Delay" — sets the expected time of sample pass through the capillary to the excitation band.

"Number of parallel measurements" – the set number of spectra is automatically measured.

"Pause between parallel measurements" – pause between measurements.

Spectra are registered in two stages – press \rightarrow to open "Sample Spectrum Measurement" dialog, where the operator sets the sample name and selects necessary operation. Registered spectra are automatically recorded in the analysis table with the specified name.

Change of control modes is described below.

Attention! All specified times shall be divisible by the basic exposure of the device. If a time is set, which is not divisible by the basic exposure, the program will automatically correct the discrepant values and will report about it in the yellow pop-up help window. Basic exposure value is displayed in the description line (highlighted with green colour in the figure).

"Parameter measurement unit" – allows selecting the measurement units for "Preburning" and "Measurement Time" parameters: seconds or accumulation units. One accumulation corresponds to one basic exposure of

the device. When measurement unit is changed, all parameters are recalculated from seconds to accumulation units or from accumulation units to seconds.

All parameters have default values. If the value of a corresponding input field is deleted, and no value is entered, the default value shall be used. Default value for "Preburning" is equal to zero, for "Number of spectra" — one spectrum, for "Measurement time" — the minimum of possible values is set — one accumulation (one basic exposure) per spectrum.

Press "More" button to open additional measurement settings.

"Work layout" tab

"Work layout" window defines main methods of activation (see figure).

" Work layout" dropdown list defines the main methods:

Measurement Mode	X
Work layout Correction More	
work layout	FireBall 🗸
exposure	one exposure
enable generator switch	
generator mode number	4 ▼ Generator setup
C	ОК Отмена Справка

FireBall
Simple
FireBall
Argon spark stand
Continuous sample feed
<none></none>
LMA - 10
program-controlled laser

"Simple" — the simple analysis mode with one relay operated external arc/spark generator;

"*Fireball*" — the analysis mode with program operated external arc/spark generator Fireball-40, Fireball-250 etc.;

"*Argon spark stand*" — the complex analysis mode with three relay operated external arc/spark generator;

"*Continuous sample feed*" — the analysis mode with continuous sample feed via flame or ICP generator;

"<none>" — reserved for integrated programmable generator like Grand-Expert or Vesuviy;

"LMA-10" — the laser spark analysis mode with one relay synchronisation shot;

"program-controlled laser" — the laser spark analysis mode with integrated programmable shot;

one exposure
one exposure
several exposures

"One exposure" — all exposure in one spectrum with possible registration of several "additional" spectra (left for compatibility); "Several exposures" — registered spectrum contains all time

parts, into which the exposure was divided; it is recommended to application for all analysis techniques.

"switch on the generator" checkbox specifies, whether to switch on or not the generator for the period of spectrum measurement.

"Generator Mode Number" dropdown list is additionally defined during operation with Fireball generator and the program-controlled laser, setting one of the predetermined modes.



"Correction" Tab

"do not correct" defines that the measured spectrum shall not be corrected by sensitivity (dark shall not be subtracted and gains shall not be corrected).

"subtract dark signal" defines that it is necessary to subtract the dark signal, which was previously measured by the operator, from the measured spectrum (see "Dark Signal Measurement").

"*dark signal and gains*" — compensate difference of gains besides dark signal subtraction.

"leave out 'bad' diodes" — leave out previously rejected diodes from the spectrum. Spectrum is not measured in sections of left out diodes. See "Screening of "bad" diodes".

"More" tab

"automatically take dark current reading before measurement" — the program will automatically measure dark current before each spectrum measurement.

"sound signal after measurement" allows assigning a sound file (".WAV" extension) to the program, which will be played upon completion of spectrum measurement. Press "Customize" button to open "Sounds" dialog: use "..." button to open standard "Open file" dialog and to select sound file (.WAV extension). Use other buttons to control sound playback.

"Add spectrum to analysis table"

Used to add the current spectrum (which is displayed in spectrum window) to analysis table. Opens auto-

matically after spectrum registration or by pressing button \square , located at analysis table toolbar.

Combined "sample name" list is used for selection from dropdown list (press button with black triangle to the right of input field to open dropdown list) or manual keyboard input of the name of sample to add current spectrum to If you enter a name that is absent in the analysis table, new sample will be created with such name.

"*add spectrum*" — current spectrum is added in the end of the list of parallel measurements of the specified sample.

1 7	1	,			1
Add spectrum to analysis t	ole				
sample name	1 🖿 GSO F	Pt-1-1 №527786			→
	.	add spect			
	•	add speci	ium		
	2	add supplemen	tary spectr	а	
	X	Cance	I		
	, n				

"add additional spectra" — if additional graphs are displayed in spectrum window, they will all be added to the end of the list of parallel measurements of the specified sample. Only additional spectrum is thus added (not the current spectrum!)

"cancel" – spectrum is not recorded; dialog is closed.

The program provides several options of automatic spectrum recording during the analysis – settings are displayed in "Table Window Settings" dialog of "Automation" window (see below).

Spectrum will also be recorded by pressing "Input" or "Start" button of MAES, when the dialog is open.

"Add analytic line to analysis table"

This dialog is opened by pressing button, located in the analysis table toolbar. It is used to enter analytic lines into analysis table.

First, select chemical element (click its name in the table of elements), and then its line (the list to the right of the table of elements).

Current selected element is highlighted with blue colour in the table of elements, and its name is displayed in the dialog upper part. Selected line is drawn with a blue background in the list of lines, and is displayed in the dialog upper part.

Press (at the top right), or doubleclick the line to add the selected line. To add all lines with G key (displayed

on top of the list), press 🔁

After addition the program will return to this dialog again. Press "Exit" (at the right bottom) to exit the dialog.

"table view" switches output of the table of elements: 1) Mendeleev's table; 2) alphabetically;

Ado	d spec	ctral lir	ne to a	inalysi	s table													
e	eleme ine fr	ents t rom th		then s	rom tl select				47		g					G	•	· []
t	able	form		٢	1	2			1	107.86	682	3	338.28	39	I	ACSKG	28000	
	н							He				3	323.31	18	T	_	15	
Ĩ	Li	Be	в	С	Ν	0	F	Ne					326.73		Ш	_	100	
Ī	Na	Mq	AI	Si	Р	s	CI	Ar					328.06 330.56		1	ACSKG	55000 10	
	ĸ	Са	Sc	Ti	V	Cr	Mn	Fe	Со	Ni			338.28		i I	ACSKG	28000	
	~	Ca	30		v	Cr	MN	ге	Co	INI		3	340.37	78	I.	_	10	
	Cu	Zn	Ga	Ge	As	Se	Br	Kr				3	346.91	16	I.	_	30	
	Rb	Sr	Y	Zr	Nb	Мо	Tc	Ru	Rh	Pd		-	347.58		Ш	_	70	=
			-										349.52			-	80	
	Ag	Cd	In	Sn	Sb	Те	I	Xe					350.19	_	1	-	20	
	Cs	Ba	La	Hf	Та	w	Re	Os	Ir	Pt		-	350.80 351.33		-	-	20 15	
	Au	Hq	TI	Pb	Bi	Po	At	Rn					352.11		÷	-	10	
	Au				ы	FU	A	RII					354.26		i.	-	50	-
	Fr	Ra	Ac	Ku									l alta a la		P			
													displa	ay ali	line	5		
	Се	Pr	Nd	Pm	Sm	Eu	Gd	ТЬ	Dy	Ho	Er	Tm	Yb	Lu				
1	Th	Pa	U	Np	Pu	Am	Cm	Bk	Cf	Es	Fm	Md	No	Lr		~	Exit	
_			_															

"view all lines" — if the dialog of spectral line display settings specifies to display not all lines, use this key to make the program display all lines in the list.

If reference lines are selected for the selected element (lines recommended to be used for the analysis), they are displayed at the head of the list lines against yellow background; besides, if such line is selected, its name will be displayed in the upper part of the dialog against yellow background. All reference lines may be added to the analysis table by performing the following operations:

- press button with small triangle to the right of button 🔂;
- select "Add all reference lines" in the pop-up menu.

"Columns"

Colu	mns	A M				-
[÷	Add col	umn	•		Delete
E		3 3 1 4				
6	Delatinu			^		Move
		338.289		=		
	Ag(2)					Sorting
	AI	257.5094				
	AI	308.2151				
	AI	309.2708				
	As	234.984				
	Au(1)	312.2784				
	Bi	223.061				
	Bi	306.772				
	Ca	317.9332				F 1
	Ca	393.3663		-	V	Exit
	Са	396 8469				
pa	age:	Platinum		▼ 🖄	×	rename
₽	- 6	3) 1 🖿	GSO	Pt-1-1 N	₽52	
	Sumo	f concentra	ations		į.	move
		ation from		m		also o
		ntration by				 chang
	Spectr	-	several	lines		at the
•			+			in the
		neasureme				• create
		ntration fa				• delete
	User-d	efined col	umn			• renam
		0.0	00070			and p

This dialog is opened by pressing button, located in the analysis table toolbar. It performs the following operations:

- add analytic line to analysis table (press "Add column"). Press button with black triangle to the right of "Add column" text and select column type in the pop-up menu to add one additional type of columns.
- delete one or several selected columns from the analysis table. To do this, select columns in the list and press "*Delete column*". If you press one of unselected columns, it will be selected; if it is already selected, it will be deselected. You may also use selection control button (see "Analysis Mode buttons").
- transfer the selected columns to another page of analysis table. To do so, select columns and press "*Transfer*". Select page name in the pop-up menu.
- change order of columns in the analysis table. Select columns and use selection

ovement buttons (see "Mode Analysis buttons"). You may so open "Sort columns" dialog ("*Sort*" button).

- change current page select page name in the dropdown list at the dialog bottom. Selected page columns will be displayed in the list.
- create new page press¹
- delete page select page and press X.
- rename page select page, enter new name in "*page*" field and press "*rename*".
- Main selection buttons function similarly to other dialogs, special buttons allow selecting only lines with calibration graphs or lines displayed in the analysis table, buttons
 To move the selected group up or down the list.

"Samples"

This dialog is opened by pressing to button, located in the analysis table toolbar. It performs the following operations:

- add new sample with the specified number of "empty" parallel measurements. It is useful for initial filling of the table with names of samples with indication of the necessary number of parallel measurements for each sample; spectrum measurements are performed after that. To do so, enter new sample name in "sample name" field, select "number of parallel measurements" and press "Add". Filling of the table with empty lines may be useful when generating analysis results file with the switched on mode of automatic spectrum addition after its registration.
- add the specified number of "empty" parallel measurements to an already existing sample. To do so, select one sample: either by using the dropdown list of "*sample*



name" field (button with black triangle to the right of field), or in the sample list at the left bottom. Then select "number of parallel measurements" and press **P** Add".

• delete one or several samples from the analysis table. To do so, select samples in the list at the left bottom (hold pressed "Shift" or "Ctrl" button to select several samples, or use selection control buttons lo-

cated above the sample list, see "Analysis Mode buttons") and press rename current sample. To do so, select sample in sorting

- one of lists, enter new name in "*sample name*" field and press "*Rename*".
- change order of samples in the analysis table. Select samples in the list at the left bottom and use selection movement buttons (). You may also open "Sort columns" dialog (press "*Sort*" button).
- "*Transfer*"/"*Copy*" transfers samples and spectra selected in the list to the analysis table of any open document.
- "*Import*" loads the sample list from the text file or MS Excel table. When a camera shot is prepared in advance, this function (together with the mode of automatic spectrum recording) provides the highly automated analysis – the operator only places samples, starts spectra registration and is not distracted by input of sample names using the keyboard.

Samples sorting		
o no		
alphabetically	1 CSO Pt-1-1 №527786	
	2 E GSO Pt-1-2 №527787	
	3 💼 GSO Pt-1-3 №527788	
	4 ■ GSO Pt-1-4 №527789	
	5 💼 GSO Pt-1-5 №527790	
	6 💼 GSO Pt-1-6 №532596	=
	7 💼 GSO Pt-1-7 №527791	
	8 💼 GSO Pt-1-8 №532597	
	9 💼 GSO-1 Pt-35	
	10 🖿 GSO-3 Pt-35	
	11 💼 GSO-4 Pt-35	
	12 💼 GSO-10 Pt-35	
	13 💼 et-1-019064 SOPt-21	
	14 💼 et-2-019065 SOPt-21	
	15 💼 et-3-019066 SOPt-21	
	16 et-4-019067 SOPt-21	+
	17	
	ОК Отмена Сг	равка

Sample name may be simple and composite. Simple name is one line. Composite name is a more flexible structure, which includes several words separated by a delimiter character. Entered name type setting is performed in "Automation" dialog window of the analysis table window settings (it is open by pressing button \Re).

(-



Table	Automation	Style	Buttons	Colum	ns sorting	Samples sorting
availa	ble comman	ds			tool bar	toolbar 🔻
	separat	or				
	switch o	current	spectrun		selected c	ommands 🕈 🗲
é	🖻 print				*	table window settings 🔺
	1 disablin	g all ce	lls with c		i	table info
	🛛 disablin	g all ce	lls with c		1 1	separator =
				*0 >	*"≓ °	analysis settings
					1 1	separator
				× <	2	select "Columns" dialoç
					0 -	select "Samples" dialoc
					1 1	separator
					\rightarrow	enable/disable selected
					1	separator 👻

Viewing parameters windows for main analysis data table

Y

rable window settings			
Table Automation	Style Buttons Columns	sorting Samples sorting	
autosaving af	ter recording	3 • spectra	
	ter new sample input		
✓ selected spec	strum autoscaling		
	le averaged spectrum		
🗹 display numbe	ering in samples list		
spectra recordin	g automatization	open dialog	-
	dialog box "Add spectr	um to table" opens after new spectrum	measurement
composite sa	mple name	adjust	
input method		namel ^w number one field with a delimiter o	abaraotor 💌
delimiter		N⁰	
	ОК Отм	ена При <u>м</u> енить	Справка
Aut	tomation para	meters windo	w
composite sample n		3 · spectra	X
(+)		ete	
		T	¥
name de	escription		type
name re	port name		line
nume re			

Buttons setting window for main analysis data table

Input window of a composite sample name as one field with a delimiter character ("space" or "No" symbol). You may use any symbol, dash, comma, etc. as a delimiter character.

Add spectrum to analysis	table				
	·				
sample name	6	GSO Pt-1-6	532596	•	
	nameN	enumber			
	÷		add spectrum		
		add	supplementary spec	ctra	
	×		Cancel		
'One field"	na	me			-
Add spectrum to analysis		-			
na	me	GSO Pt-1-1			•
		reportname			
num	ber	527786			•
		series number			
	÷		add spectrum		
		ado	d supplementary spe	ectra	
	×		Cancel		

Window of composite sample name setting with individual fields

ок

~

Input window of a composite sample name with individual fields

Composite sample name fields are displayed in the report as individual columns.

Cancel

It is recommended to use a composite sample name for well structured names, when it is necessary to select the shift, furnace, melting operation, locomotive number, engine number, warehouse number, date, sampling time, etc.

"Recalibration"

Operation using the permanent graph method is switched on by pressing button , located in the toolbar of analysis table window; when pressed, the button looks like . After that calibration graphs remain unchanged irrespective of addition/deletion of reference samples.

Recalibration dialog may be open by pressing button . The dialog allows

- recalibration of calibration • graphs of selected analytic lines in the presence of control samples; calibration is always performed relative to original graphs;
- recovering coefficients of original graphs;
- switching to the report printing mode by calibration graphs.

The list of analytic lines of the analysis table, grouped by table pages, is displayed at the left in the dialog window. Only lines with calibration graphs are displayed in the list.

Select lines in the list, which shall be recalibrated (click once the line to select it; click again to deselect it; you may also use selection control buttons). Click the line to display its calibration graph in the calibration graph window. Then click "Recalibrate". "OK" text and correction factor value will appear by the recalibrated lines, if parallel measurements translation was performed.

Two lines — of new and old graphs (highlighted with gray colour) — are drawn in the calibration graph window after recalibration.

Spectral lines display settings

show in line list

onization degree

spectral range, nm

ionization order, below

Wavelength

ntensity

_ine type

line detail

Analitycal

Standard

Calibration

Semi-quantitative

2nd diffraction order

Line filter

Click "Close" to exit dialog.

Spectral line display settings

Open this dialog by pressing button X, located on the "Spectral Lines" toolbar. It is used to select the way element spectral lines are displayed in the list on "Spectral Lines" panel, in "Add analytic line to analysis table" dialog, as well as in some other lists and dialogs.

Output format

Upper half of the dialog is used to set up the output format of spectral lines:

"As 234.984 I SAKG 250"

"display in the line list" — select elements to be displayed in the line list:

"Wavelength" — this element is always selected, wavelengths are always displayed in the list of spectral lines.

"Degree of Ionization" — if degree of ionization is specified for a line, it will be displayed in the line list as symbol I for the first degree or symbol II for the second degree.

Recalibration	n by concent	rations					
Element	Wavele	An	Shift	Status	Date		
🗅 Platinu	m						
A A	338.289	36.6	2.536		05/02/2016, 17:46		
A	338.289	29.9	1.987		05/02/2016, 17:46		
. <mark>∧ A</mark> I	257.5094	52.7	2.167		05/02/2016, 17:46	Ξ	Recalibrate
.A. AI	308.2151	42.3	2.725		05/02/2016, 17:46		
JA AI	309.2708	49.3	3.45		05/02/2016, 17:46		
. <mark>∧ As</mark>	234.984	34.6	1.201		05/02/2016, 17:46		Restore
A	312.2784	44.7	2.208		05/02/2016, 17:46		
. A Bi	223.061	28.7	0.3507		05/02/2016, 17:46		Samples
. A Bi	306.772	40.6	2.365		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ <mark>∧</mark> Ca	317.9332	46.3	2.437		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ <mark>∧</mark> Ca	393.3663	39.8	3.857		05/02/2016, 17:46		Beport
_ <mark>∧</mark> Ca	396.8469	38.3	3.66		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ <mark>∧.</mark> Cd	226.502	29.0	1.005		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ <mark>∧</mark> Cd	346.62	28.4	0.8047		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ <mark>∧</mark> Cr	283.5629	49.7	3.029		05/02/2016, 17:46		constant graph method
_ <mark>∧</mark> Cr	284.3249	42.6	2.305		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ <mark>∧</mark> Cu	221.4581	35.4	1.132		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ <mark>∧</mark> Cu	324.7532	34.1	3.138		05/02/2016, 17:46		
_ ∧ C	222.7775	40.3	1.437		05/02/2016, 17:46		Close
C	327.3954	39.4	3.41		05/02/2016, 17:46	-	

VMKO.157UM L.57

% of the maximum

Отмена

consider as intensity

Intensity

sort by:

wavelength

190 - 470

Medium

•

Ithreshold of line intensity

3rd diffraction order

11

Ξ

0

OK

X

Ŧ

•

Справка

Ŧ

"Intensity" — if relative intensity is specified for a line, it will be displayed as a number at the end of the line (in the example provided above this number is **250**). Usually several symbolical and numerical parameters (intensity values) are specified for lines, corresponding to different types of excitation sources. Selected the intensity values to be used in "Line intensity:" list (see below).

"Line type" — several additional attributes may be specified for a line except the intensity, for example, you may specify that the line is analytical, in this case symbol A will appear in the line string. The list of line types — A – analytical, C – calibration, S – standard, K — line is used for qualitative analysis, G — line is used for quantitative analysis.

In the example provided the line describing the line type looks as **SAKG**.

"*Line intensity*" — specify in this list the possible intensity value to be used in the program. Line intensity is displayed in the line description string in line lists, as well as in the spectrum window (in the form of vertical blue lines above line names).

"Intensity" — intensity specified by the user

"Arc" — intensity of lines in case of arc excitation of spectrum

"Spark" — intensity in case of spark excitation of spectrum

"*Energy*" — excitation potential (eV)

"*ICP*" — intensity for inductively coupled plasma

"PC lamp" — for spectral lamps

"Sensitivity" — ...

"*Chigher*" and "*Clower*" — parameters for semi-quantitative analysis using method of line emergence and gain. If there is no line, concentration value is less than Clower; otherwise it is higher than Chigher.

"Sort lines by:" — specify the line sorting scheme in the list. Sorting by wave length and by intensity is possible in ascending order or in descending order.

"*Spectral range*" – restriction of the line list by wavelength, or from the current profiling, or from the specified set of characteristic values "200–400", "190–470", "170–470", "185–550".

"Degree of Ionization" – restriction of the line list by the degree of Ionization "all", "I", "III", etc.

Line filter

The lower half of the dialog is used to limit the number of lines displayed in lists. Only lines meeting the specified criteria are displayed.

"Level of Line Detail" — select one of the predetermined line filters:

"*High*" — all lines are displayed without limitation;

"Average" — only lines with a specified intensity value are displayed;

"Low" – there shall be a symbol (one or several among ACSKG symbols).

"Specify" — manual adjustment of filter parameters (see below).

Select line types in the list at the left bottom. In order for the line to be specified in the list and be displayed in the spectrum window, it is necessary for this line to have at least one specified type from among the selected types. If all types are deselected, all lines above the intensity threshold will be displayed.

"*Intensity threshold*" — check this key, if filtering is required by line intensity values. Threshold value of line intensity may be specified in the input field in percents of the maximum intensity for each element. If zero is specified, threshold value will not be used, but filter will discard lines with unspecified intensity.

"*2nd order*" and "*3rd order*" — check these keys to view lines corresponding to the second and the third diffraction order (with a wavelength increased by two and by three, respectively).

Editing of spectral line parameters, addition of new or deletion of old lines is performed in "Spectral Line Base" tool mode.

Subdialogs of program settings

"Files..."

The dialog is open using main program menu item "*Settings / Files...*" and is used to specify start-up files and directories that the program starts working with when launched. Names may be entered from the keyboard in a corresponding line or by selecting it and clicking "Change..." button – select file/directory dialog will open, where you can find the required file or directory, respectively.

The program will remember the selected element and will use it all the time until the next modification.

".\Data" designation means that this element is located in the working directory of the program. If working directory is "c:\Atom 3.3", then the full path is "c:\Atom 3.3\Data".

"Title"

The dialog is open using main program menu item "*Settings / Title...*" and is used to fill in the title fields. Title contents are saved in the analysis results file as additional information. The title is also used to filter database queries (see "Database" mode).

Fill in the required title fields and click "OK".

Use the dropdown list to specify the name ("*Full Name*" field). Use "User List" dialog to edit the user list..

Click "<" button to specify current time/date. Use dropdown list of "*Date*" field — "Calendar" control element — to edit the date.

"User List"

Click the required name in the list to select it; it will be highlighted, if it has not been selected yet; otherwise it will be dese-

lected. You may also use selection control buttons above the list of names (see "Main buttons of 'Analysis' mode"). Click "OK" to save changes.

"Display View Settings"

25		
Data directory	.\Data	
Database (DB) directory	.\DB\	
Sensitivity calibration file	atom.cf	
Directory for results export		
Spectral line database file	atom.mnd	
Standards file	atom.dps	
Reference materials database file	atom.oc	
Temporary Program Directory	.\Temp	
Wavelengths profiling file	C:\Atom 3.3\profile-Росто	в-02-2015.wl
		OK Cancel
	Change C	OK Cancel

itle	
company	Gold Plant Laboratory
full	John Smith -
device	BAIRD
analysis	Platinum method № 026-C-2009
date	18 марта 2015 г. 🔲 –
time	08:33
comment	
made well	
	OK Cancel

List of application	users					-
	53	—]				
John Smith Anna M.						
Bob Alice Assistant						
lvanovich					<mark>+</mark>]	
	(C	Ж	C	ancel	

View settings			
☐ type 0	0	1	Spectr with elements windov
type 5 ☐ type 6 ☐ type 7 ☐ type 8	2		
 use popup window to select the active partition window. ✓ fix "floating" panels 	section - click it in t	windov he sample	<u>N</u>
		ОК	Cancel Apply
🕢 Atom - [C:\Atom	n 3.3\Templat	es\Platinum.	spd]
File Docume	nt Analysis	Mode To	ool Se
D 🖻 🖬 🛛	∌ ▼		6
Spectrum Calibrat	ion graph 🛛 Tab	le	

This dialog opens using the main program menu item "*Setup / Splitting Document Windows*" and is used to set up the main window view in "Engineer" mode.

Standard main view is selected during program installation with the analysis table located below, spectrum located above at the left and the calibration graph located above at the right – **type 5**.

In a specific situation it may be more convenient to use another view, for example, of **type 0**, when windows are always maximized full screen, and switching between them is performed like between tabs in dialogs.

"Fix Floating Panels" switch is required in the following situation – to fix position of panels with buttons used to start spectrum measurement, start various modes (e.g. "Qualitative Analysis" and "Spurious Lines"). ATOM program will restore position of buttons at the start, if the switch is turned on, or will arrange them dynamically – like all standard Windows functions do.

"Log Settings..."

"Assistant" mode log settings		X
output results to dot printer in expr	ess mode	
print area width font	80 v symbols	Type test printer must be connected to PC LPT1 port
line spacing encoding	do not set	
✓ save to file	journal.txt	
print area width encoding	80 v symbols Windows v	maximal file size 1 Mb
✓ by "complete sampling" button		
🔲 print	export results	
save to file	🔲 launch program	
output format ☑ output line wavelengths	table	
output parallel measurement	results	
		OK Cancel

The dialog is open using main program menu item "*Settings / Log...*" and is used to set up express printing during routine analysis in "Laboratory Assistant" mode and/or to save results in a file, as well as to export results to an external program. Printing is performed using a matrix printer connected to LPT1 port: in continuous mode.

Program behavior is also controlled in this dialog using "Complete Sampling" button.

Example of log printout using a matrix printer

==========		=====	=====						
'Laborator	'Grey iron' program 'Laboratory assistant' operator								
12/09/08 1	1:00								
dark signa	l me	asure	nent						
09/04/12 1									
		·							
1504 . 11 0	0/04	/10 11			. Tab				
'594 ~1' 0	9/04			—		-	-		
		Si		Cr		2	S		
(1)	-	2.05	0.0917	0.0832	2.08	1.17	0.388	0.369	2.29
(2)	-	1.93	0.0947	0.0847	2.11	1.11	0.408	0.383	2.30
(3)	-	1.90	0.0901	0.0833	2.08	1.12	0.396	0.377	2.26
(4)	-	2.06	0.0937	0.0816	2.08	1.08	0.326	0.304	2.16
(5)	-	2.12	0.0970	0.0837	2.12	1.08	0.379	0.351	2.35
Average -		2.01	0.0934	0.0833	2.09	1.11	0.379	0.357	2.27
Difference		0.22	0.0068	0.0031	0.037	0.098	0.082	0.079	0.18

```
'Grey iron' program complete
09/04/12 15:34
```

This function is usually applied during operation with equipment that works round the clock in conditions of foundry production, where regulations provide for saving of a hard copy of analysis results.

The same text results are saved to file "journal.txt" and external printer.

Special external program could be started every time as sample is finished – the program could export saved results to a local network database or laboratory information system.

Analysis settings

Dialog is open by pressing button $\stackrel{\textcircled{\baselineskip}}{\textcircled{\baselineskip}}$, located in analysis table window toolbar and is used to change analysis settings: search parameters and to calculate peaks, reference lines, create calibration graphs, calculate concentration and other values.

List of analytic lines is displayed in the left part of the dialog (including additional types of columns, e.g. "Alloy" or "Concentration Factor"), added to the analysis table. The list is grouped by table pages. In order to change calculation parameters of line values in a spectrum or another type of column, select it in this list (click left mouse button on its name). After that corresponding settings will be displayed in the right part of the dialog. Settings for the analytic line consist of several pages.

Analysis settings		
🗀 Platinum	▲ AgI (1) 338.289 h	general settings
— <mark></mark> Ag I (1) 338.289 h		all custom
—Ag I (2) 338.289 h	= 🛃 Time tracking 🗸	Control <i>f</i> Interference
AlI 257.5094 h	🙏 Peak 🛛 🔭 Reference line	Graph 🕹 Concentration
Al I 308.2151 h	search for line limits	search for line center
Al I 309.2708 h	auto search	auto search
As I 234.984 h	auto search	
Au I (1) 312.2784 h	line intensity maximum 🔹	search area (diodes) 3
	maximal width (diodes) 20	line intensity calculation
Ca II 317.9332 h	he also and a should fee	method integral
Ca II 393.3663 h	 background calculation 	diodes 3
Ca II 396.8469 h	under peak maximum 🔻	✓ subtract backgrou
Cd II 226.502 h		
$-\Lambda$ Cd I 346.62 h $-\Lambda$ Cr II 283.5629 h	🔲 background points averaging	do not use out of range peaks
	left (diodes) 2 neighbourhood -	multiply by the number of accumulations
Cr II 284.3249 h Cu I 221.4581 h		intensity threshold 0 🗸
-A Cu I 324.7532 h	right (diodes) 2 neighbourhood V	
-A Cu I (1) 222.7775 h		double-line 1-st line
$-\underline{A}$ Cu I (1) 327.3954 h	🛫 📗 manual intensity value input	crystal number 🔹
	General analysis settings OK	Cancel Apply Help

Other view of settings dialog headings is possible; to change the view, click right mouse button near headings, a menu will open to select among two view options.

	🛃 Time trac	king 🗸	Control	f Interference
search for line limits se	🕰 Peak	Transference line	Graph	2 Concentration
auto search ▼ images + text	search for line limit	only images	search for line center	
	auto sear	images + text	auto search	-

Each page corresponds to a certain stage of analysis results calculations:

- "**Peak**" search and calculation settings of line background and intensity in the spectrum;
- "**Reference Line**" reference line for relative intensity calculation;
- "Graph"— calibration settings;
- "Concentration" settings for calculation of concentration and statistical results of analysis;
- "Time record" setting periods of time for registration of various elements.
- "Influences" parameters for accounting of additive or multiplicative mutual interferences of elements.
- "Control" settings for received result check conditions depending on concentration or intensity of spectral lines of other elements.

Custom settings are displayed for other types of columns:

- "Concentration by several lines" – selection of lines used from the list of lines available in the analysis table.
- "Sum of concentrations" selection of elements used from among such available in the analysis table.
- "Concentration factor" coefficient type concentration or dilution.

Each page of analysis settings ("Peak", "Graph", etc.) may have "*common settings*" and "*custom settings*". Settings that are specified as "common" are identical for all lines. Change of analysis settings for one line will lead to change of corresponding settings of other lines that are specified as "common". If analysis settings for a line shall differ for any reason from settings for other lines, they shall be specified as "custom". Pay attention that each page of analytic line settings may have an intrinsic state — "common" or "custom". This allows specifying that the line has, for example, "common" settings "Graph" and "Reference line", but "Peak" setting is "custom". "u" symbol is added in the list at the left of line name, which current settings page is specified as "custom". Other lines (without "u" symbol in the name) are considered as "common" for the current settings page.

All new lines added to the analysis table have default settings corresponding to "common" settings.

"Information from spectrum" – information stored in the spectrum in the form of XML records. Such information is saved by various ATOM program modules, equipment control programs, "Fireball" generator, mathematical modules and other subprograms. Each spectrum contains a lot of service information, which may be useful for operation control, for development of a technique and in other cases. Example below presents addition of spectrum time and position column of reference line number 1 and its view in the analysis table. It can be seen that during different time measurements are with a spectrum displacement by 1 photo diodes, which is normal.

pectrum information settings			time		shift	
Output value in column		Column header (optional):				
fast search	•	time				
spe/measurementTypeNum		XPath values:	17/03/	15 10:38:12	0.45	
spe/measurementType spe/time	≡	spe/timeStr	17/03/	15 10:40:28	0.44	
spe/timeStr spe/timeZone			17/03/	15 10:42:02	0.46	
spe/device spe/deviceType			17/03/	15 10:43:42	0.44	
spe/wlRange						
spe/comment hardware/assemblage/crystals						
hardware/assemblage/crystal/diodes hardware/assemblage/assemblies						
hardware/assemblage/assembly	Ψ. •					
			26/03/	15 10:32:28	-0.14	
Use the selected			26/03/	15 10:34:20	-0.17	
			26/03/	15 10:35:59	-0.18	
		ОК Отмена При <u>м</u> ен	[™] 26/03/	15 10:37:36	-0.17	

Control elements are used to control "common"/"custom" state, located in the upper right part of "Analysis Settings" dialog:

- "*Common settings*" key specifies common or custom settings in the current settings page of the current line calculation. If this key is deselected, settings are specified as "custom"; otherwise as "common". Upon transition to "common" state, settings are specified according to "common" settings of other lines and may change.
- "*All common*" specifies all line calculation settings as "common", and calculations of the current line corresponding to settings. It applies only to the current settings page (for example, only for "Graph" settings).
- "*All custom*" specifies all line calculation settings as "custom", and equal only of the current line settings. It applies only to the current settings page.

Upon a change of any settings, "*" symbol (at the left in the list) specifies all lines and columns, which values shall be recalculated. If line settings are changed, specified as "common", then "*" symbol will specify all other lines with common settings. If reference line calculation settings are changed, then lines, for which this reference line is a reference line, will be also specified, etc.

Values of several line calculation settings are displayed directly in the list of columns at the left. Click "+" at the left of the line name to see them. Click "-" to hide these settings. You may view/hide settings of several lines this way, by clicking "+" or "-" alternately. In order to show/hide settings of all lines, use buttons and the left under the list.

Besides calculation settings of line values in the spectrum and other types of columns, some common analysis settings are also located here, which may be displayed using "*Common analysis settings...*" button:

- "Technique"
- "Reference lines"

Click one of the following buttons to exit the dialog:

- "OK" modified settings are applied, dialog is closed;
- "*Cancel*" changes of settings are cancelled, dialog is closed;

• "*Apply*" — modified settings are applied, new values are calculated, the table is redrawn, but the dialog is not closed allowing selecting values of several settings, evaluating results of their modification, without exiting the dialog.

"Peak"

Sn I 303.412 h	general settings
	all custom
🔛 Time tracking 🗸 🗸	Control <i>f</i> Interference
🙏 Peak 🛛 🕂 Reference line	Graph 🛛 🖌 Concentration
search for line limits	search for line center
auto search 💌	auto search 💌
line intensity maximum 💌	search area (diodes) 3
maximal width (diodes) 20	line intensity calculation
background calculation	method vintegral v
-	diodes 3
under peak maximum 🔻	🗸 subtract backgrou
background points averaging	do not use out of range peaks
left (diodes) 2 neighbourhood V	multiply by the number of accumulations
	intensity threshold 0 -
right (diodes) 2 neighbourhood 🔻	double-line
manual intensity value input	crystal number 🗸 🗸

-search for line center

auto search	-
auto search	
semi-automatic search	
manual selection	
∣lir left nearest	
right nearest	
maximal in the search area	

Dialog is open using button $\textcircled{m}{}_{F}$ on "Peak" tab, and is used to set up search parameters and to calculate the intensity of lines in spectra.

"*Search for line center*" — line maximum search method in the spectrum.

"*Auto search*" — the program searches for the nearest maximum in the set neighbourhood local spectrum maximum from the set reference wavelength of the spectral line.

"Semi-automatic search" – at first the automatic search is run. If the search was unsuccessful, it is recognized that the line maximum matches the reference wavelength.

"manual selection" - manually fix position of the

line maximum using button <u>h</u>. This item is available only for "custom" settings of "Peak calculation" for a spectral line.

"Neighbourhood of search (of diodes)" — maximum distance of the found local maximum during automatic search of the line maximum from the set wavelength. If the distance turns out to be more than the specified value, it is recognized that the peak was not found.

After the line maximum in a spectrum is found, left and right points of the background are searched.

"*left search*", "*right search*" – the program searches for the nearest in the left or right neighbourhood local spectrum maximum from the set reference wavelength of the spectral line.

"*maximal in the search area*" – the program searches for the maximum in set neighbourhood local spectrum maximum from the set reference wavelength of the spectral line.



"Search for line limits" — select method to search line borders (left and right points of line background).

- "*Auto search*" the program looks for the next local minima from the line center to the left and to the right.
- "*Manual setting*" user sets the position of the left and the right background point using buttons $\neg \downarrow /$ and $\lor \downarrow$. This item is

available only for "custom" settings "Peak calculation" for the spectral line (see "Analysis Settings" dialog).

"*Maximum width (of diodes)*" — maximum distance of the local minimum from the line center during automatic search of line borders. If the distance turns out to be higher than the specified value, the background point is set at the specified maximum distance.

Background value under the line is calculated according to the found left and right background points.

"background calculation" — select method for calculation of back- background calculation

ground intensity under the line.

• "Under the line maximum" — background intensity at the intersection of the line maximum and the straight line connecting the left and the right background points.

	under peak maximum 🔹 🔻
	under peak maximum
hac	average minimal
eft (dio	maximal left
	left
riaht (di	right polynom
igni (ai	polynom
	stable

- "Mean value" background intensity is equal to the mean intensity value of the left and the right background points.
- "Minimum" background intensity is equal to the minimum value of intensity values of the left and the right background points.
- "Maximum" background intensity is equal to the maximum value of intensity values of left and right background points.
- "To the left" intensity of the left background point is used as background intensity.
- "To the right" intensity of the right background point is used as background intensity.

"Averaging of background points" — average intensity value of several adjacent items in the specified neighbourhood of background points may be taken as the intensity of the left and the right background points (see below).

"To the left (diodes)" and "To the right (diodes)" – number of the adjacent diodes used for averaging, located in the neighbourhood of background items individually for the left and the right point.

- *"To the left of point"* (for the left) and *"To the right of point"* (for the right) the specified number of diodes is taken for averaging, including background point for the left point to the left, for the right point to the right of the line.
- "*Neighbourhood*" the specified number of diodes is taken for averaging around the background point:
 - with 1 specified diode this is the spectrum value in the background point;
 - with 2 specified diodes in background point plus 1/2 of spectrum values to the right and to the left of the background point;
 - for 3 diodes: in the background point plus to the right and to the left of the background point, and so on.

"*Line intensity calculation method*" — possible options:

• "Average" — intensity is the mean value of intensity values of diodes in a zone, which center is located on the wavelength corresponding to the peak maximum, and width is equal to the number of diodes specified by "diodes" parameter. If the averaging zone covers a diode part, then only the corresponding part of this diode intensity is taken into account while averaging.

line intensity calculation					
method	integral 🗸				
diodes	average integral				
V subtract backgr	area Gaussian				
📃 do not use out d	shape				

- "*Integral*" intensity is the integral of intensity values of diodes in a zone, which center is located on the wavelength corresponding to the peak maximum, and width is equal to the number of diodes specified by "diodes" parameter.
- "*Area*" intensity is the integral (area) between the left and the right border of the peak (background points).
- "*Gaussian*" peak intensity is the Gaussian distribution intensity (see "Normal distribution (Gaussian distribution)"), which most precisely describes the spectral region between the left and the right background point. This method is recommended only when a spectral line of the base or another element is located near the analytic line of the defined element. When using this method, it is possible to specify in addition the spurious line, allowing taking into account its contribution to the analytic line intensity. To do so, switch on "*Accounting for spurious lines*" and click "...".

There are two methods to select the spurious line in the opened dialog: either as a spectral line (button \checkmark), or as red spectrum cursor position (button \checkmark). In the first method the spurious line shall be selected beforehand as the current spectral line, and be displayed in "Spectral Lines" toolbar. Use "Spurious Lines" tool to define the element line that is spurious. In the second method it is necessary to set beforehand the spectrum cursor on the spurious line peak maximum. The algorithm currently provides accounting only for one spurious line.

"*Diodes*" — number of diodes for "Average" and "Integral" methods.

"Subtract background" — defines, whether to subtract background intensity or not from the line intensity value.

"*Do not use out of range peaks*" — intensity is not calculated, if there are points with ADC overflow in spectrum points used for intensity calculation (these are highlighted with red colour on spectrum graph).

"*Multiply by number of accumulations*" — the calculated intensity value is multiplied by the number of accumulations (number of basic device exposures), which the spectrum was registered with.

"*Intensity threshold*" — if the calculated peak intensity value is less than the preset value, it is recognized as uncalculated; it is recommended to use a small number to exclude from the analysis the random sound effects, as well as to limit, if necessary, the working range of intensity values.

"*double-line*" – works in spectra received by double-line analyzer MAES — it is possible to use the 1st or the 2nd line, as well as the average spectrum.

"Reference line"

"Reference line" is opened by pressing button $\frac{1}{2}$, then "Reference line" tab. Dialog is used to specify reference line for the analytic element line.

Select reference line in the list.

"*None*" — there is no reference line.

"Background" — background intensity is used as reference line intensity for each calculated peak.

Analysis settings						-				
APd I <mark>∎</mark> _Pd	342.124 h C total h		•	Zn I (1) 334.5	57 h*			gener	ral settings	all common all custom
⊞- <u>A</u> Rh I	332.309 h	Pt 302	2.284	🛃 Tir	me tracki	ng	~	Control	f Inte	erference
⊞… <u></u>	339.685 h	Pt 302	2.284	A Peak		Reference I	ine	Graph	C	oncentration
⊞ Rh I (1)	343.489 h	Pt 302	2.284	C 12	· · ·					
⊞ Rh I	347.478 h	Pt 302	2.284	filter	all	▼				
i – A Ru I	287.4984 h	Pt 302	2.284	Element I	loni V	Vavelength	Nu	Burning		
i ∰ Ru I	343.6737 h	Pt 302	2.284	⊘ No						
- A Sb I (1) - A Sb I - A Si I - A Si I - A Si I - A Si I - A Sn I - A Sn I - A Sn I	303.412 h	Pt I 267 Pt I 267 Pt I 228 Pt I 228 Pt I 228	7.457 7.457 7.457 3.0492 3.0492 3.0492	 Backgro A Pt A Pt Platinun A Ag A Ag A Al 	I : I : I : I :	228.0492 302.284 267.457 338.289 338.289 257.5094	(1) (2)			ш
- A Te I - A Zn I - A Zn I (1) - A Zn I (1) <	238.578 h 213.8573 h 334.5015 h 334.557 h*	I	-	⊥ Al ⊥ Al ⊥ As ⊥ As ⊥ Au ∧ Bi		308.21529 309.27099 234.984 312.2784 223.061	(1)			Ţ
			(General analysis s	settings	ОК		Cancel	Apply	Help

Division is always made by the reference line intensity; select spectral line for subtraction in intensity calculation settings. When working with techniques that use several exposures, it is necessary to pay attention to

compliance of the registration time (exposure number) of analytic lines and reference lines.

"Graph"

"Graph" is opened by pressing button $\textcircled{1}{1}$, then "Calibration graph" tab. It is used to specify calibration parameters for the analytic line.

Polynomial approximant degree is selected in "*degree*" list.

Necessary calibration option is selected in "*scale*" list.

"assign 45 degrees angle for the graph" — effective, only if scale by I and by C is in logarithmic coordinates and the degree is

ZnI (1) 334.557 h*		general settings	all common all custom
Time tracking	Control	f	Interference
🕂 Peak 🕂 🕂 Re	ference line	Graph	Concentration
order 1 • scale	logarithmic (IgC,IgI)	•	
📃 assign 45 degrees (logarithmi	c coordinates, 1-st order)		
cross through 0 (linear coordin	ates, 1-st order)		
enable graph rotation during r	ecalibration		
C min 0.0008	C max 0		
statistics			
confidence	Q-test		
probability	R-test Kohren / Bartlett		
0.95 👻	Fisher		
[RSD (of comparison)	RSD	
[do not use the homoge	neity standard for SD)

equal to 1. Thus the graph slope angle is always constant and equal to 45 degrees, and only the graph position (shift) is selected according to measured reference samples.

"*plot the graph through 0*" — effective, only if scale by I and by C is in linear coordinates and the degree is equal to 1. Thus the graph always passes through point (0,0), where zero concentration corresponds to zero intensity, and only the graph slope angle is selected according to measured reference samples. "permit rotation during recalibration" — effective in "permanent graph" mode.

"*C* min", "*C* max" — if "C min" / "C max" value is set, reference samples (RS) with element concentration less or more than this value will be automatically disabled for this line and will not be used for calibration. It may be set only for "custom" parameters.

Iogarithmic (IgC.IgI) Iogarithmic (IgC.IgI) c linear (C. I) mixed 1 (IgC. I) mixed 2 (C. IgI) calibration

"*Confidential probability*" — confidential probability used to discard RS calibration and to calculate confidential intervals. It may be equal to 0.95 and 0.99.

"Q-criterion" and "R-criterion" — discards gross errors (see "Q-criterion" and "R-criterion" in "Algorithms" section). Parallel measurements, that do not pass the specified criteria, are highlighted with red colour in the analysis table and in the calibration graph window.

"Kohren / Bartlett" — assesses RS variance according to Bartlett (if the number of parallel measurements in several RS is different) or to Kohren (if the number of parallel measurements in all RS is the same). If the calculated value of "Chi-square" parameter for Bartlett-criterion or G value for Kohren-criterion exceeds the corresponding tabular value, all RS parallel measurements with the maximum dispersion will be highlighted with red colour. See "Bartlett/Kohren criterion in "Algorithms" section ("Appendix — Algorithms for Atom calculations.doc" file on a compact disk with ATOM software). The criterion should be applied at a number of parallel measurements equal to 4 and more.

"*Fischer*" — assesses adequacy of regression equation according to Fischer criterion. If the calculated value of F parameter exceeds the tabular value, the calibration graph is highlighted with red colour, which means that calibration is inadequate. Besides, all parallel measurements are highlighted with red colour for the reference sample, which mean intensity value is the most distant from the calibration graph. See "Fischer criterion for assessment of regression equation adequacy" in "Algorithms" section ("Appendix — Atom software Calculation Algorithms.doc file).

"RSD (comparison)" — discards parallel measurements in RS by RSD of the calculated concentration. If a found concentration RSD exceeds the value specified in the window, parallel measurements with calculated concentration being the most distant from the mean value of the calculated concentration in a RS, is recognized as an outlier and is highlighted with red colour in the table and in the calibration graph. In case of a logarithmic scale the concentrations are calculated for concentration logarithms; otherwise — for concentration values.

ZnI (1) 334.557	h*			neral settings	all common all custom
🛃 Time t	tracking	🗸 C	ontrol	f	Interference
🕂 Peak	A Refe	rence line	🔹 📌 Grapi	h 🧏	 Concentration
lognormal distri	bution of calculate	ed concentrations			
Imit working ran	ae of graph		samples	•	
	Cmin - 65	% Cmax	<u> </u>	%	
	05	78 Cillian	·	/0	
Clower		RSD.%			
C upper		RSD,%			
repeatability					
confidence probability 0.95	R-1 3- RS	test sigma SD SD (of comparisor ference for 4	ofparallel		5 001 012
	📃 do	not use repeatab	ility standard		

"Concentration calculation"

"Concentration calculation" is opened by pressing button m, then "Concentration calculation" tab. It is used to set calculation parameters of concentration and to control convergence of results.

"Logarithmically normal distribution of calculated concentration" — if you enable this key, all statistical convergence control criteria (see below) will use formulae for a logarithmically normal distribution of calculated results. For more details, see criteria description in "Algorithms" section.

"Limit reference sample graph working

range" — if the button is on and the average sample concentration measured is less than the minimum or

more than the maximum concentration value in standards for the set amount of percents (which is specified in "*Admissible excess of Working Spectrum Limits*, %" field), then analysis table and report will display the uncalculated average concentration value, and "<min" or "> max" values are minimum and maximum concentration values in RS, respectively. The corresponding parallel measurements values are calculated and displayed as usual. If the button is disabled, the calculated value of average concentration will be displayed irrespective of its value.

"*Clower*" and "*Cupper*" parameters are required for visual content control of elements — impurities in working samples. Average concentration values, which are out the specified spectrum, are highlighted on the graph and in the analysis table with red colour. RSD may be also set for the lower and the upper concentration in the corresponding "*RSD*" fields. Lower limit value of spectrum will thus be equal to Slower* (1 — RSDlower), and upper — Supper* (1 + RSDupper).

Convergence control of parallel measurements

Check criteria that shall be used for discarding.

Calculations are performed for logarithms of concentration values for all criteria in case of a logarithmic scale of calibration graph concentration values, otherwise — for concentration values. Besides, if a "logarithmically normal distribution" is included, formulae are used for logarithmically normal distribution law, but not for the normal distribution.

"*Confidential probability*" is the value used to calculate statistical criteria of convergence. It can accept values 0.95 and 0.99. Value 0.99 forces the program to perform more strict control, than such for value 0.95.

"Q-criterion" and "R-criterion" — defines, whether to discard or not gross errors (see "Q-criterion" and "R-criterion" in "Algorithms" section ("Appendix — Atom calculation algorithms.doc")). Parallel measurements that do not satisfy the criterion, are highlighted with red colour when displayed in the table and on the graph. "*3 sigma*" — discarding gross errors, see "3 sigma criterion" in "Algorithms" section. Parallel measurements

that do not satisfy the criterion are highlighted with red colour when displayed in the table and on the graph. "*RSD*" — rejection of gross errors, see "Rejection of gross errors: deviation from mean value" in "Algorithms" section. Parallel measurements that do not satisfy the criterion, are highlighted with red colour when displayed in the table and on the graph. Parameter set in "RSD" field is used for discarding.

"*RSD* (*comparison*)" — discards parallel measurements by RSD of the calculated concentration. Parallel measurement, concentration in which is the most distant from the mean concentration value in a sample is recognized as incorrect and is highlighted with red colour in the table and on the calibration graph, if the found concentration RSD in this sample exceeds the value set in "RSD" field.

"*Difference for N parallel measurements*" — see "Convergence criterion: difference for N parallel measurements" in "Algorithms" section. Parameters set in fields located to the lower right from this criterion are used for calculations. Parallel measurements, which concentration is the most distant from the mean concentration by a sample is highlighted with red colour in the table and on the graph, if this criterion is not met.

"Do not use the convergence standard" – if the standard is specified in common analysis settings, which contains the data for convergence control, then all parameters specified above will be used only when this setting is active.

"Time tracking"

Zn I (1) 334.557 h*		general se	ettings	all common all custom
🕂 🕂 Peak 🛛 🕂 🗛 R	eference line	Graph	- 🦌 🔿	oncentration
7 Time tracking	Contr	ol	f Inte	erference
save burning data	recording range	40 diodes		
	algorithm	Base	•	
	additive interference			
	comparison line			
vse burning data for intensity o	alculation			
method	for intensity calculation	start + accumula	ations	-
		start + accumula	ations	
		Exposure No. intensity thresho	ld	
	start	interval		
	stan	scintillation		
	of			

"Time tracking" is opened by pressing button mpr, then "Time tracking" tab. It is used to set time record parameters for burning of elements.

"save burning data" parameter provides recording of a small spectral region corresponding to the spectral line and the background around it (30–50 diodes) from each single accumulation of the entire exposure, i.e. 80 spectral ranges will be saved in 8 seconds for a basic exposure of 100 ms. They will be used by the program to perform calculations (see histogram figure).

Depending on the mode of operation with spectra in the time record mode, it is possible to use "Start" and "Accumulation", "Exposure

number", "Intensity Threshold", "Manually" and "Scintillation" parameters.

"*Start*" – number of the first burning spectrum from all measured spectra. starting from which it is necessary to calculate the analytic line intensity.

"*Accumulation*" – number of measured burning spectra, starting from "Start", which will be used to calculate the analytic line intensity.



"*Exposure number*" – exposure selection (from 1 to 10) for intensity calculation; if a number is selected, which is absent in spectrum, the first exposure is taken into account.

"*Intensity threshold*" – calculation method of spectral line intensity is based on the analysis of "burning record"; intensity is calculated in each of the recorded ranges, then it is compared with threshold, all higher values are integrated or averaged. The result is displayed as a spectral line intensity value in the analysis table and is used for further calculations.

"Add burning spectra..." parameter is left to ensure

compatibility with previous program versions – now we recommend using spectrum registration in the "several exposures" mode — each spectrum contains all information on burning by time, that allows recalculating intensity in this mode and adding new lines to calculation upon spectrum registration without adding new lines in the analysis table.

If it is necessary to interrupt registration of burning, "do not use distillation information" parameter will al-

Настройки анал	иза		Настройки анал	иза		
🧰 анализ		Си 210.511 ч экспозиция 🗌 Общие нас	🗋 анализ			Си 210.511 ч Старт 1 Нок 🔲 Общие настр
🗄 🕂 Ag I	338.289 ч экспозиция №1		i Ag I	338.289 ч	Старт 1 Нак. 4	
⊞ _ Ag I	338.289 ч* экспозиция №2	🛛 🙏 Вычисление пика 🗍 🔭 Линия сравнения 🛛 📌 Гра	n ⊞ _ Â Ag I	338.289 ч	Старт 5 Нак. З	🙏 Вычисление пика 🔭 Линия сравнения 📌 Граду
⊞ _ Ni	305.0816 ч* экспозиция №2	🧚 Вычисление концентраций 🛃 Дистилляция	🗄 🔥 Ni	305.0816 ч	Старт 5 Нак. З	
⊞ _ A Fe I	248.3271 ч* экспозиция №2	Вычисление концентрации		248.3271 ч	Старт 5 Нак. З	岩 Вычисление концентраций 😕 Дистилляция
i _ ∧ Fe I	302.0639 ч* экспозиция №2			302.0639 u	Старт 5 Нак. З	
i _∱ Zn	334.502 ч экспозиция №1			334.502 ч	Старт 1 Нак. 4	
⊞ _ ∧ Si I	251.6112 ч* экспозиция №2		🗈 👗 Si I	251.6112 ч	Старт 5 Нак. З	
⊞ _ ∱ Si	288.1577 ч* экспозиция №2		⊡ _ A Si	288.1577 ¥	Старт 5 Нак. 3	старт : 1
i A Se I	196.027 ч экспозиция №1	номер экспозициии : 1		196.027 ч	Старт 1 Нак. 4	накоплений: 4
			Asat	203 985 1	Cmanm 1 Har 4	

low calculating the intensity and concentration by average spectra.

See ""Performing analysis taking into account burning of elements" of "Working with the Program" section as well.

"Technique"

Press button "*Common analysis settings...*". It is used to set up several parameters influencing common calculations of analysis results. "*permanent graph method*" — see description in the

"permanent graph method" — see description in the dialog. To switch to permanent graph method, press button *"""*, located in the analysis table window toolbar. If it is switched off, any changes of reference samples (switch on/off, add/delete sample or spectrum, change analysis settings, etc.) lead to automatic calculation of new calibration graphs. Switched-off permanent graph method is recommended during calibration, and switched on — during the analysis. Press button *""* in the analysis table to recalibrate manually the selected lines with the switched on permanent graph method. Recalibration is performed by preliminary measured spectra of control samples.

"Identical Crm for all elements" — switch on,	if all table elements
have the same concentration of reference materials.	Concentration value
entered is set for all elements.	

"*use the standard...*" – allows selecting the operating convergence and reproducibility control standard for the received measurement results. For more details see "Using standards" item in "Working with the program" section, as well as "Standards" mode description.

Analysis general settings	
Technique Reference lines	
Constant graph" method with recal	libration by concentrations
☑ use standard	copper high-purity-27981
🔲 alloy grade check	
samples averaging	
processing several spectra in one exposure cycle	several exposures
if C calculation failed, display	< Cmin 🔻
concentration measurement unit	% •
for referen	nce materials for working samples
	ОК Отмена Справка
table alements	

< Cmin	-
none	
text	
value	
< Cmin	
Cmin	
detection limit	

"working with distillation spectra..." – selects between work additional

graphs and several exposures. The first method has parameters compatible to the previous program versions, and the second new method, allows saving, displaying and selecting several spectra exposures in one basic spectrum corresponding to one measurement – it is recommended for application when creating new analysis techniques.

"*if C calculation failed, display...*" – in case when it is impossible to calculate concentration, for example, due to the absence of the analytic line, in case of a negative value in linear coordinates, etc., it is possible to select a suitable option: empty cell, text line, numerical value, Cmin value or detection limit, calculated from the calibration graph.

"Blank test" or blank sample. In several cases during the analysis it becomes necessary to compensate the constant component in intensity values of analytic lines for a number of elements, for example, during chemical preparation of samples or continuous aliasing of a molecular line or the base line, observed in all sample spectra and/or reference samples. "Blank test" parameter is provided for such cases. If it is set, then average intensity in "Blank test" is subtracted from the intensity measured in the spectrum for each analytic line. Nothing is subtracted, if average intensity was not calculated, or all parallel measurements are switched off. If necessary, blank sample may be accounted for individually for reference samples and for work samples. For work using standard addition method it is necessary to select base accounting only for reference samples, then the base will be calculated as a sample.

"Reference lines"

Press button mprox, then click "*Common analysis settings...*" button and switch to "Reference line" tab. Control assignment of elements of dialog control is described in this section.

"Use binding to reference lines" — switch on/off automatic binding of spectra measured by MAES to reference lines. Measured spectrum profiling is corrected at the time of its addition to the analysis table.

"*Use binding to reference* element" — switch on/off automatic binding of spectra measured by MAES to the reference element. Profiling is corrected in all lines of the specified element or elements using correlation method, it works well when bases are the same, but it demands high computing power of the computer.

Analysis general settings	×
Technique Reference lines	
✓ use binding	to reference lines
control sample:	•
☑ list reference lines in spectrum w	indow
Add Delete	
Cu(1) 203.7127	
Cu(1) 288.2934	
Cu(1) 345.785 Cu 450.9374	
00 400.0074	
search zone, ±	7 🛁 diodes
intensity threshold	2
exposure number	
double-line	average 🔻
and scaling), otherwise only 0-th enable correction in t(x) + e(x), to function	order $\tilde{\mathbf{x}}$ is the protiling error
	ОК Отмена Справка

"List reference lines in spectrum window" — if it is switched on, then in spectrum window, at the top left "reference: line1, line2, ..." text will be highlighted with red colour, specifying all reference lines. If it is switched off, only "reference point" text is displayed. Text with description of reference points is displayed, only if "Use binding to reference lines" is switched on (see above), and the line list is not empty.

"*list of reference lines*" displays lines selected as reference. Click "Add" and select line in the opened dialog to add it to the list. Only lines added to the analysis table may be used as reference lines. To delete a line, select it in the list and click "*Delete*". The list may contain any number of lines; if necessary, the program will average the profiling correction result for all lines.

Reference line "search zone, \pm " — sets "(Diodes) search zone" parameter the greatest value, which sets

the maximum deviation of a reference line. The program will search a peak with the maximum intensity in this spectrum (\pm "search zone"), which, presumably, corresponds to the reference line. If the range set is too small, the program may not find the peak, if it is beyond the set range. If search spectrum set is too big, the program may not find that peak — if the shift was large, or there are intensive enough lines of other elements nearby.

Reference line "intensity threshold" — sets lower limit for possible reference line intensity could be used.

"exposure number" — sets number of exposure that could be used for multi-exposure spectra.

"double-line" — sets variant number of spectrum string that could be used for double-string spectra.

"*scaling*" — allow profiling correction of "shift and spread" type, otherwise only the shift is selected for all reference lines. This item makes sense, if there is more than one reference line, and there is a linear spectrum distortion or a spectrum distortion of a higher degree – for example, in prismatic devices.

"enable correction f(x) + e(x)" — profiling error correction by the 2nd degree polynom; f(x) — profiling,

Analysis general settings		Ξ.	X
Technique Reference lines			
	to reference element	•	
control sample:		-	
✓ list reference elements in spe	ctrum window		
elements list			
Cu			
- Cu			
exposure number double-line	1 • average •		
double-line	average		
	ОК	Отмена	Справка
			- of solid

e(x) — error function. Profiling shift is calculated at first (or a shift and a spread, see previous item), and then error function is calculated, if this item is switched on. It is reasonable, if simply a shift or a shift and a spread correct distortions with insufficient precision.

"*control sample*" — when it is difficult to select a suitable reference line in spectra, it is recommended to apply the option with spectrum registration of a specific sample and control of profiling only in it. Correction of the next parallel measurement of this sample will be applied to all subsequent measured spectra.

"Reference element" – another algorithm for wavelength correction. Its based on many spectral lines of selected elements –there are the main components of samples usually.

After change of reference lines and/or other settings the initial profiling is restored and correction is recalculated automatically.

If profiling is divided into groups, it is necessary to set a reference line for each group – for example, for Grand spectrometer these are 280 and 420 nanometers spectrum areas, for STE-1 - 250, 320, 420 nanometers.

Reasons for using reference lines.

When air temperature and pressure changes in the working room, spectrum position relative to the detector also changes. Violation of wavelengths conformity to numbers of diodes leads to essential distortion of analysis results due to impossibility to search in the spectrum of necessary analytic lines; therefore for control of spectrum position in the window it is necessary to select reference lines from among lines specified in the analysis table. It is recommended to use individual lines of average intensity as such lines, commonly these are spectral lines of a the main sample component or the material of electrodes. Such lines shall appear in all sample and reference sample spectra, they shall have a well-defined maximum, they shall not be "off scale" or selfabsorbing. It is recommended to control that spectrum region, which contains analytic lines, and to select reference lines according to the following table. There is no need to select references line located in a spectrum far from analytic lines.

Spectrometer type	Example	Number of reference lines	(Diodes) search zone	Arrangement of reference lines relative to the working spectrum
1. With a planar diffractional grating	DFS-8, 13 PGS-2	1-2	20–50	Central portion
2. With a concave diffractional grating	Grand MFS–4, 6, 8 DFS–458C DSF–36	2–3	10–15	Edges and center
3. Prismatic	ISP-28, 30	2–3	10–15	Edges and center

Selection of reference lines is connected with that for the first type spectrometers, which are very sensitive to temperature variation even by 1–2 °C, the change of spectrum position relative to the detector up to ± 50 of diodes is corresponds well enough to the fixed bias in the entire working range; for the second type spectrometers the effect of external factors is expressed much weaker due to a relatively small size; but the changing spectrum position relative to the detector up to ± 10 diodes already leads to linear discrepancy at edges of the working range, which demands application of two reference lines; for prismatic spectrometers the effect of external factors is expressed considerably when temperature changes by 3–5°C, and the change of spectrum position relative to the detector up to ± 5 diodes leads to nonlinear discrepancy at edges of the working range, which frequently demands application of three reference lines for a more precise correction of concordance of wavelengths to numbers of diodes.

If MAES analyzer contains several groups of crystals (Grand, STE-1. DFS-36, etc.), the reference lines work individually for each group.

Spectrum window settings

Press ***** button located o the spectrum window toolbar to open this dialog. The dialog consists of several tabs; to switch to a tab, click its name in the list of tabs on top of the dialog: "Graph", "Buttons", "Home", "Spectral lines", "Spectrum"

"Graph"

It is used to control main graph settings, click button 3 on the graph window toolbar to open it (spectrum window, calibration graph, histogram), "Graph" tab.

"graph" colour — set colour of the main (not additional) graph.

"background" colour — set the graph background colour.

"scale line" colour — colour of dashed lines of the graph scale. *"toolbar"* colour — graph toolbar panel background.

ectral window s	ettings	×
Plot Add. p	ots Buttons Spectral lines Spectrum	
plot	scale lines	
backgr	tool bar	
scale	Microsoft Sans Serif	
text	Microsoft Sans Serif	
✓ show p ✓ use "wi	m center" zoom lots description thout flicker" drawing mode dditional plots croll bars	
	ОК	Справка
"Scale font and colour..." regulates font and colour of graph scale captions.

"use scaling 'from the center" — if you set this key, then during scaling of the graph using the right mouse button (see ""Rescaling with the mouse"), scaling will be performed not from the clicked point to the point of right mouse button release, but by points located a an identical distance from the point clicked.

"display description of graphs" – controls display of graph description lines in the top right corner.

"Font for graph description..." — font for graph description lines.

"*use 'smooth' graph drawing mode (without 'blinking' effect)*" — in this mode the graph is drawn at first in the computer memory (the drawing process is not visible on the screen), and then the result is displayed. "*display additional graphs*" — display or not the additional graphs.

s	Spectral window settings									
	Plot	Add. plots	Buttons	Spectra	al lines	Spectrum				
	available commands				tool bar		top		-	
		separ	ator							
	×	delete	e all additic	onal graj		selected c	ommands			÷
		Switc	h current s	spectrur		*	spectral w	indow s	etting	^
	G	set fix	ced scale f	or grapl		i	spectrum i	nforma	tion	
						4	print spect	rum		Ξ
					ど) >		separator			
						И	sets graph	display	/ing r	r
					× <		separator			
							output in "I			
							output in s			
							display/hid			
						<u> </u>	fit intensity	values	5 10 W	Ŧ
							ОК	С	прав	ка

"Buttons"

It is used to control the list of buttons accessible in this window, and their arrangement on toolbars (if the window has several toolbars). Click subton on the window toolbar (spectrum window, calibration graph, analysis table, histogram), "Buttons" tab.

List of available buttons is displayed in the left part of the window. List of available toolbars is displayed in the upper right part. List of buttons of the current selected toolbar is located in the lower right part of screen. Select first toolbar, then select a button in the list to the left and press 🛄 to add this button.

Select a toolbar, then select a button in the list to the right and press \times to delete this button. Each button may be added to any toolbar only once; after it is added, it

disappears from the list of available buttons. To transfer a button from one toolbar to another, first delete it from the toolbar where it is located, and then add it to the required toolbar. Use navigation buttons of the selected commands \checkmark and \uparrow to change the order of buttons in a toolbar.

Spec	tral w	indow setting	js			-	×		
P	lot	Add. plots	Buttons	Spectral lines	Spectrum				
	line l	background			—				
	cursor color of spectrum lines :								
	font for element names: font								
							÷ •		
	Nar	ne				Color	D ^		
	Fro	m table							
	Fou	nd in "Spec	tral line b	ase" module					
	Sele	ected					. ≡		
	Line	es of the 2-n	d order						
	Line	es of the 3-r	d order						
	Spu	rious							
	Fou	nd during qu	ualitative	analysis			v		
					ОК		Справка		

"Spectral lines"

It is used to specify types, colours and the order of spectral lines display in the spectrum window. Press button on toolbar of spectrum window, "Spectral lines" tab, to open it. You can hide/show the spectral line line but-

ton^{*}, located on the spectrum window toolbar.

At the moment the program selects the following types of spectral lines:

- *"selected"* — lines of elements selected in "Periodic table" dialog.
- "*lines of the 2nd and the 3rd order*" lines of elements selected in the "Periodic table" dialog corresponding to the second and the third diffraction order (with a wavelength multiplied by two

and by three). These lines are available only after setting the corresponding key in the display setup dialog of spectral lines.

- "spurious" current line in "Spurious Lines" tool.
- *"from table"* lines added to analysis table.
- "found in qualitative analysis" lines found in "Qualitative Analysis" tool.
- "base lines" lines of elements specified in "Qualitative Analysis" tool as a "base".
- "reference lines" specified in reference line settings.

"string background colour" — "spectral lines" string background colour.

"*spectral line cursor colour*" — current spectral line cursor colour in spectrum window.

"element name font" — this font is used to display names of lines in the "spectral lines" string.

In order to change colour used to display lines of a certain type, click the corresponding cell in "Colour" column and select new colour in the opened dialog. If it is not necessary to display lines of one of types, uncheck the "Display" column.

In order to change the order of display of lines of various type, select one of types and use navigation buttons for selection \checkmark and \checkmark . The order of display is important, when a line corresponds to several types at the same time. For example, "table line" and "reference line". If, in this case, "reference lines" are below than "table lines" in the list, then such line will be drawn as a "reference" line and vice versa.

"Spectrum"

It is used to control additional settings. Click button in spectrum window toolbar or the mode window, "Spectrum" tab, to open it

"set the cursor to the peak maximum" — when moving spectrum cursor, it will be automatically set to the maximum of the next peak.

"*Peak search settings...*" — opens "Peak calculation" dialog to set up peak search parameters. For example, you may set the maximum distance to the next peak or a threshold intensity value of the found peak (so that peaks with too low intensity values are not searched).

"apply automatically the specified background points or the peak center to all parallel measurements in the ta-

Spectral w	indow setting	js				-	X	
Plot	Add. plots	Buttons	Spectral lines	Spectrum				
₹ C		apply sel	eak maximum ected backgrou f the table	•	eak seard	ch optior		
S	ize :		normal	•				
1	contrast" :		high	•				
					ОК		правка	

ble" — if you select a peak in the analysis table, and then use one of buttons $\downarrow \downarrow$, $\uparrow \uparrow$ or $\downarrow \downarrow$ to specify manually background points or the peak center, then two situations are possible:

if this key is set, peak search settings of the respective analytic line from the analysis table will be changed, and intensity and concentration values for this line will be recalculated for all samples and parallel measurements.

if this key is not set, then intensity and concentration values are calculated only for the current parallel measurement in the analysis table. If you open "Peak calculation" dialog now for the current analytical line and



specify "manual line border search scurngs" or "specify manually line center search", then points, set using buttons $\cancel{1}$, $\cancel{1}$ or $\cancel{1}$ will be automatically entered in the corresponding input fields, and it will be possible to calculate intensity and concentration values for the current analytic line.

"*photographic plate*" — spectrum image line as a photographic plate. You can control line display using button **here**, located on the spectrum window toolbar. Line display control:

- size normal/small;
- contrast normal/high.

Rescaling with a mouse

Graph scale may be changed both by scale selection buttons (zoom in, zoom out, autoscaling), and the right mouse button. Press the right button to start scaling operation.



Now, if you:

1) release the button, without moving the mouse, context menu will be open for the graph; scale will not change;

2) move mouse cursor horizontally, deviating in vertical direction from the point clicked for a small distance, then two dotted vertical lines will be drawn. When you release the right button, the graph will be redrawn so that these lines appear on the left and the right border of the window;

3) move mouse cursor vertically, deviating in horizontal direction

from the point clicked for a small distance, then two dotted horizontal lines will be drawn. When you release the right button, the graph will be redrawn so that these lines appear on the upper and the bottom border of the window;

4) move the mouse cursor in any direction, a rectangle will be drawn with one angle in the button clicked point and with the opposite angle — in the current cursor position of mouse. When you release the right button, the graph will be redrawn so that triangle content is stretched to the entire window;

"Home"

It is used to specify and save the scale set by button \square

🛗 👻



"0–100%" – only X coordinate is restored.

Calibration graph window settings

The dialog consists of several tabs; to switch to a tab, click its name in the list of tabs on top of the dialog: "Calibration graph", "Graph" and "Buttons"

Click button *, located on the toolbar of the calibration graph window, to open this dialog.

"Calibration graph"

It is used for control calibration graph elements – samples, reference samples, captions, cursors, etc. Press button 🛠 located on the toolbar of the calibration graph window, "Calibration graph" tab, to open it.

"*Reference samples*" and "*samples*" control the display and colour of points that correspond to work samples and reference samples; they are also controlled using buttons $\frac{125}{2^{129}}$ $\frac{125}{2^{129}}$.

"*captions*" — control the display and colour of captions of statistical characteristics of the calibration graph: convergence variance, adequacy variance, calibration SD and concentration of reference samples.

"names of samples" — defines, whether to display or not names of samples (description of points, corre-

sponding to samples and reference samples); it is also controlled using buttons $\frac{12}{12}$

"*C* minimum, *C* maximum" – control the display and colour (usually red) of vertical dashed lines corresponding to Cmin and Cmax parameters, defining the calibration graph working range (see "Calibration graph calculation settings").

"*Clower, Cupper*" — control the display and colour (usually blue) of vertical dashed lines corresponding to Clower and Cupper parameters (see "Concentration calculation settings").

"*RSD interval*" and "*regression confidential interval*" — defines, whether to delete or not the corresponding curves and their colour (see "Calibration graph RSD Interval" and "Confidential interval of calibration graph regression" in "Algorithms" section).

"*prevent imposition of point captions*" — when displaying names of work samples and reference samples in the calibration graph window, several texts may superimpose on one another, complicating their reading. If this key is set, the program will try to arrange captions so that they do not cross. If several texts are imposing nevertheless, it is possible to either maximize the calibration graph window (buttons with black triangles at

the top right of the calibration graph window, see "Toolbars"), or to zoom in the graph scale in the place of imposition using a mouse (see "Rescaling with a mouse"); you may also use buttons 125 and 125.

"Graph"

It is used to control main graph drawing settings, click button \checkmark on the graph window toolbar to open it (spectrum window, calibration graph, histogram), "Graph" tab.

"*graph*" colour — set colour of the main (not additional) graph.

"background" colour — set the graph background colour.

"scale line" colour — colour of dashed lines of the graph scale.

*"tool*bar" colour — graph toolbar panel background colour.

"Scale font and colour..." regulates

Calibration graph window settings			×			
Calibration graph Plot Add. plots Buttons						
✓ reference materials✓ samples	▼					
✓ captions✓ sample names	•					
C minimal, C maximal	• •					
✓ RSD range ✓ regression confidence interval	• •					
 regression confidence interval exclude overlapping of point captions transform captions to scale from logarithms display points of parallel measureme graph autoscaling 						
✓ include disabled SRM ✓ include only points, discard graph range						
	ОК	Спра	авка			

font and colour of graph scale captions.

"use scaling 'from the center" — if you set this key, then during scaling of the graph using the right mouse button (see ""Rescaling with the mouse"), scaling will be performed not from the clicked point to the point of right mouse button release, but by points located a an identical distance from the point clicked.

"display description of graphs" - controls display of graph description lines in the top right corner.

"Font for graph description..." — font for graph description lines.

"*use 'smooth' graph drawing mode (without 'blinking' effect)*" — in this mode the graph is drawn at first in the computer memory (the drawing process is not visible on the screen), and then the result is displayed. "*display additional graphs*" — display or not the additional graphs.

"Buttons"

It is used to control the list of buttons accessible in this window, and their arrangement on toolbars (if the window has several toolbars). Click \checkmark button on the window toolbar (spectrum window, calibration graph, analysis table, histogram), "Toolbars" tab. List of available buttons is displayed in the left part of the window. List of available toolbars is displayed in the upper right part. List of buttons of the current selected toolbar is located in the lower right part of screen. Select first toolbar, then select a button in the list to the left and press to add this button. Select a toolbar, then select a button in the list to the right and press \times to delete this button. Each button may be added to any toolbar only once; after it is added, it disappears from the list of available buttons. To transfer a button from one toolbar to another, first delete it from the toolbar where it is located, and then add it to the required toolbar. Use navigation buttons of the selected commands \checkmark and \checkmark to change the order of buttons in a toolbar.

Analysis table window settings

Click button $\stackrel{\bigstar}{\bigstar}$ on the table toolbar to open it.



The dialog consists of several tabs; to switch to a tab, click its name in the list of tabs on top of the dialog:

- "Table"
- "Automation"
- "Style"
- "Buttons"
- "Columns sorting"
- "Samples sorting"



Upon changing the analysis table display settings, it is possible to press one of the dialog buttons:

- "OK" modified settings are applied, dialog is closed;
- "Cancel" changes of settings are cancelled, dialog is closed;
- "*Apply*" modified settings are applied, the table is redrawn, but the dialog is not closed allowing selecting values of several settings, evaluating results of their modification, without exiting the dialog.

"Table"

It is used control information display in the analysis table.

"*Statistics*" controls additional line display with the calculated values by each sample in the analysis table. Check lines, which shall be displayed in the table. At the moment such lines are as follows: mean, SD, RSD, range (difference between the maximum and the minimum value), confidential interval, median.

"*result*" line displays either the mean value, or the median value in case if convergence control parameters do not meet requirements of the analysis technique (it is calculated according to GOST R, ISO 5725-6-2002).

"repeatability" line displays the checked parameter value (RSD or range) as compared with the control limit taken from the table of standards or entered manually.

ally. "stability" line shows for reference samples the difference between the entered certified value with the value found for calibration graph as compared against the control value of the allowed discrepancy taken from the table of standards.

"*Columns*" controls the display of columns of spectral lines in the analysis table. Check columns to display. *Deselect all lines to hide spectral line columns in the table!* At the moment the program uses the following spectral line columns: **Crm** (concentration of reference materials), **I** (intensity of peaks found), **Iref** (reference line intensity), **I/Icp** (intensity taking into account the reference line), **C** (calculated concentration values) and **stat. weight** (statistical weights of reference samples for calibration).

"*Number of significant*" values sets the number of significant figures of numbers displayed in the table. If, for example, it is specified that for column **I** the number of significant figures is three, then all found peak intensity values will be displayed in the table rounded to three significant figures.

"*Number display format*" specifies the method to display a number in the analysis table. There are four options:

- 1. decimal fraction, or a significant part (mantissa) order (computer format, with **e** symbol as a delimiter of mantissa and the order, e.g., "1.23e-04"). The program determines itself, when a value shall be displayed as a decimal fraction and when with a mantissa and the order.
- 2. a value is always displayed in the computer format with a mantissa and the order "1.23e-04".
- 3. decimal fraction, or with a mantissa and the common form: " $1.23 \cdot 10^{-4}$ " (the order is displayed as the upper index).
- 4. always as a decimal fraction, irrespective of the value, for example, 1234000 or 0.000001234.

"*display samples*". Select samples, which will be displayed in the analysis table. Click sample name to select it: if the sample is not selected, it will be selected; otherwise it will be deselected. You may use selection control buttons as well. Button selects only reference samples. *If you deselect all samples, the table will not display anything!*

"*show columns*". Select columns, which will be displayed in the analysis table. Click column name to select it: if the column is not selected, it will be selected; otherwise it will be deselected. You may use selection control buttons as well. Button selects only analytic lines with constructed calibration graphs. *If you deselect all columns, the table will not display anything!*

able window settings					X
Table Automation Style Buttons	Columns	sorting	Samples sortin	g	
 ✓ average ✓ result ✓ median ❑ confidence interval ❑ sd ❑ rsd ❑ rsd, % ❑ range ✓ repeatability 	I/lo ✓ C sta	m omp comp at.weight dth	C sum C total Crm I Icomp I/Icomp C stat.weight width	3 3 3 4 4 4 2 4 3	H
parallel measurements			1.23e-04		•
16 💼 et-4-019067 SOPt-21		▲ 🖻 F	latinum		A
17 🖿 et-5-019068 SOPt-21		A	(1) 338.289		Ξ
18 🖿 et-6-104445		A	Ag(2) 338.289		
19 🖿 GSO PtK-1 415313		A	Al 257.5094		
20 💼 GSO PtK-2 532598		A	Al 308.2151		
21 💼 GSO Pt-1-2 527787contro	ol	A	Al 309.2708		
22 💼 GSO Pt-1-5 527790contro	ol	- A	As 234.984		
23 🗅 543183 Pt-99,9		- A	(1) 312.2784		-
ОК	Отм	ена	При <u>м</u> енить		Справка

Table win	dow settings						- 0		X
Table	Automation	Style	Buttons	Columns so	orting	Sa	mples sorting		
	✓ autosaving after recording 3 ▼ ✓ autosaving after new sample input								
✓ se	elected spect	rum aut	oscaling						
🗌 🔳 di	splay sample	averag	ed spect	rum					
✓ di	✓ display numbering in samples list								
spec	tra recording	autom	atization		reco	rd a	utomatically		•
			1	measured spec	trum is s	save	d automatically to	the currents	ample
🗖 pi	ompt to go to) next s	ample aft	er saving	3	•	spectra		
√ co	✓ composite sample name				name,		iust		
inpu	t method				sepa	arate	e fields		•
delir	delimiter Nº								
		С	К	Отмен	a	ſ	Три <u>м</u> енить	Спра	авка

"Automation"

It is used to control several possibilities to automate work with the program in the Analysis mode.

"*autosave*..." allows selecting autosave parameters for analysis results to a file. According to the specified parameters, the program saves the file with all analysis results to "Temp" folder. In case of software breakdown or if the computer and the program are not be able complete normally their work, you will be prompted to recover the lost files during the next start. *"autoscaling the selected spectrum"* — set this key to scale automatically the selected spectrum in the analysis table (click parallel measurement caption), so that entirely fits in the spectrum window.

"open 'Add spectrum to table' dialog after new spectrum measurement" — after new spectrum measurement using MAES "add spectrum to analysis ta-

ble" dialog will be automatically started for sample selection, where you shall add the spectrum. This option is disabled when working with a switched on mode of automated input of parallel measurements.

"*add automatically the measured spectra to the table*" — upon new spectrum measurement by MAES the spectra are automatically added to the current sample (it is highlighted in a blue frame in the analysis table). If there is no current sample, "Add spectrum to the analysis table" dialog is displayed.

"offer to switch to next sample after input... of parallel measurements" – in the automatic parallel measurement input mode, if a sample already contains the specified number of spectra, then "Add spectrum to the analysis table" dialog is displayed to select another or new sample. This is convenient, if you enter several samples with the same number of parallel measurements.

"ICP..." – selects the operating mode just as in "Measurement mode" dialog for a "device with continuous sample feed".

"*switch to next sample*" – after a group of spectra is measured, the dialog appears to input new sample name. "automatically assign sample names" – in case of a high flow of the same samples, they may be assigned the name, which will be added by order numbers during measurement, e.g. "sample01", "sample02", "sample03", etc.

"Table view"

It is used to set up analysis table font and colours. "*Font''* dropdown list is used to select font, which is used to display the table (both for values of cells, and captions). "*Size*" sets font size for table display.

"bold font for captions" — set this key, if you want to display table captions in bold font. To adjust table colours. select colour you want to change from the "Table Element" list, then use "Colour" and "Text Colour" buttons. "Restore all colours by default" sets default values for all table colours.

"Toolbar settings"

It is used to control, what buttons from the list of buttons available for the analysis table, will be displayed. List of possible buttons -

 ★ ①
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 21
 ●
 GSO Pt-1-2
 527787control
 ▼
 Ca
 317.9332
 ▼
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●

"Sorting of samples"

Select "*alphabetically*" option, if you want the sample list in the analysis table to be always sorted alphabetically (by the sample name). New added samples will be sorted at once in the table.

For manual sorting of samples you may select several samples in the list (to select a sample, click its name, to select several samples, hold pressed "Shift" or "Ctrl"; you may also use selection control buttons) and selection movement buttons.

"Sorting of columns"

You may select the method of automatic sorting of table columns in the list at the left. Options – "no sorting", "alphabetically", "by wavelength", "by element number".

For manual sorting of columns you may select several samples in the list (to select a column, click its name, to select several columns, hold pressed "Shift" or "Ctrl"; you may also use selection control buttons) and selection movement buttons.

Columns of the selected table page are displayed in the list. Use the list of pages at the right top to select another page.

Sorting Sortina Columns sorting Columns sorting o no 🔘 no alphabetically alphabetically Platinum Platinum by wavelength Si 250.6897 by wavelength Ag(1) 338.289 Si 251 9202 Ag(2) 338.289 by element number O by element number Si 288.1579 AI 257.5094 308.2151 Aq(1) 338.289 AI Ca 396.8469 AI 309.2708 lr -322.078 As 234.984 Mg 277.669 Au(1) 312.2784 223.061 Mg 278.1416 Bi 279.5528 306.772 Mg Bi Cr 283.5629 Ca 317.9332 AI 257 5094 Ca 393 3663 396.8469 308.2151 Ca AI AI 309 2708 Cd 226 502 234.984 Cd 346.62 As Au(1) 312.2784 Cr 283.5629 OK Отмена OK Отмена Справка Справка X X Sorting Sorting Columns sorting Columns sorting no no 📃 📕 🎫 🛨 🛨 Iphabetically alphabetically 🗀 Platinum 🗀 Platinum . 213.8573 by wavelength Zn O by wavelength Mg 277.669 221.4581 Cu Mg 278.1416 O by element number by element number Cu(1) 222.7775 Mg 279.5528 Bi 223.061 Mg 280.2705 Cd 226,502 257,5094 AI Sb(1) 231.147 308.2151 AI 234.984 As AI 309.2708 Te 238.578 Si 250.6897 250.6897 Si Si 251.9202 Si 251.9202 Si 288.1579 AI 257.5094 Ca 317.9332 Mn 259.3724 Ca 393.3663 Mg 277.669 396.8469 Ca Mg 278,1416 283.5629 Cr Ma 279.5528 284.3249 Cr OK Отмена Справка OK Отмена Справка

Samples of sorting are here:

Working with the program

Profiling

The program needs to determine position of analytic lines in the spectrum to find them; therefore prior to work it is necessary to define the correspondence rule of diode numbers to wavelengths (to perform profiling).

This section of the manual provides the list of main operations for creation of new profiling, description of buttons and dialogs is provided "Profiling Mode".

For profiling, it is necessary to measure the following spectra in the ANALYSIS mode with a small time interval between measurements and to save them in the data table:

copper, mercury, graphite, magnesium, silicon – for primary setting.



Determine reference lines in spectra using primary setting spectra and save them to the profiling table; examples of such lines are: C 247.857, Cu 324.754, Cu 327.396, Al 308.215, Al 309.271, Si 288.159, Mg 277.983. These lines are the most intensive or give a representative pattern of lines (Mg 277.983 with circumscription). In order to save information on the spectrum line (two numbers – diode number/wavelength) in the profiling table, set the spectrum cursor in the spectrum line center (red marker), select a respective line from the table of spectral lines (blue marker) and add **F** this paur to the profiling table.

In order to perform complete setting, use a spectrum with a large number of sufficiently intensive, but "nonout-of-range" lines, add information about 20–30 lines for each range to the profiling table. Tungsten spectrum is usually applied for final profiling. The final stage is to save the current profiling to disk using \blacksquare . Further the current profiling will be assigned to each new spectrum measured by MAES. If profiling was performed or corrected by one of spectra in the data table, it is necessary to assign it to another spectra by clicking button \blacksquare .

It is recommended to start profiling with the minimum degree of polynom and to increase it when performing the final calculation. Depending on the spectral device type there may be one formula for the entire working spectrum (for flat diffraction gratings) or individual formulae for each range (in case of concave grids or prisms).

Correction of tungsten spectrum profiling

Correction is performed well by the spectrum of material used for final profiling (usually — tungsten). To do so, it is necessary to measure tungsten spectrum for MAES parameters settings selected earlier \bigcirc . Switch to Profiling mode and search all lines in the spectrum from the profiling table \checkmark . Correct manually position of lines, which were not found by the program, i.e. for the selected line in the table it is necessary to set the spectrum cursor into a correct position (line center in the spectrum) and to press button P.

Profiling is ready for application. All new measured spectra will have new profiling.

Analysis

Quantitative analysis is performed in the Engineer mode with the most frequent option:

- 1. Prepare samples and reference samples according to the analysis technique.
- 2.
- Set ("Measurement mode" () time of single exposure, number of accumulations, as well as preburning time. It is recommended to use the minimum possible time of single exposure (usually 100 or 250 ms).
- Measure dark current. →. Dark current shall be measured twice prior to the beginning of work and regularly every 30–40 minutes during the analysis.
- 6. After each spectrum measurement → it shall be saved to the analysis table with a corresponding name. Usually the program is set to ask to save spectrum measurement to the table immediately upon completion of measurement. Otherwise use button → , which opens current spectrum saving window to table.
- 7. Set concentration of the analyzed elements in Crm column for reference samples upon completion of measurement.
- 8. Check correctness of created calibration graphs for all analytic lines; if necessary, exclude "outliers" (errors) from calculation. For several analytic lines it may be required to exclude from calculation samples with "off scale" or not found spectral lines.

Measurement Mode						
Preburning 0	sec.					
exposure 6	0					
	J sec.					
Number of spectra 1						
total exposure time 1 min 0 sec = preburning : 0 sec (0 accumulations).+ exposure : 60 sec (1 spectra * 600 accumulations * 100 msec). measurement unit for "Preburning" and "Measurement time" in seconds						
More 🙃	DK Cancel					
Measurement Mode	X					
Work layout Correction More						
work layout FireBall	•					
exposure one exposure						
	•					
enable generator switch	\					
✓ enable generator switch	¥					
	Generator setup					

9. Print the report and save data to file. Saved data may be read and used later – to add new lines, to edit calculation parameters and so forth. It is recommended to save intermediate results, for example, before a measurement or editing; this will allow to return one step back, if necessary. In order to make it easier to be navigate in a large amount of files, it is recommended to include in the filename the analysis name (or its part), date, etc.

Intensity values are calculated for spectra measured earlier and saved to the table. Concentration values are calculated according to calibration graphs built by reference samples for respective analytic lines in the specified coordinates (for example, LgI–LgC). For the majority of spectral lines you may use common settings for calculation parameters of intensity values (Search of peaks), calibrations and calculation of concentration values. Open settings – $\frac{100}{100}$

Search of peaks and calculation of intensity values

For prismatic spectrometers it is necessary to set a search zone with 2 diodes and an integral with 4 diodes. For several lines with low intensity (<0.1-0.3) or for lines located in a range with complex spectral circumscription, individual settings may significantly improve the metrological characteristics, for example – manual setting of maximum and background points often allows improving convergence of parallel measurements for such lines.

In case when a spurious spectral base line or another element spectral line is located near the analytic line of the element being measured, then in order to reduce possible systematic errors it is recommended to switch on the mode of accounting for contribution of spurious lines (intensity calculation method — "Gaussian", to switch on "accounting for contribution of spurious lines").

Spurious lines are measured automatically whenever possible, but when lines are located very close to each other, it is necessary to select manually the wavelengths of spurious lines (click button "..."). See "Peak calculation" dialog.

Selection of reference lines

is performed from among lines displayed in the analysis table. The following information is specified in the line list: analytic line, ratio symbol of intensity values ("/" ratio, "–" difference of intensity values) and the reference line. If no reference line is set for the analytic line, then during calibration intensity values of spectrum lines are used and if a reference line is set, values of ratio (or difference) are used for intensity values of the corresponding pairs of lines

Calibration

is most often performed in logarithmic coordinates. In this case the linear approximation corresponds the most to the physical correlation between concentration and intensity values. Use of a nonlinear approximation of dependence between intensity logarithm and concentration logarithm may be substantiated, for example, in case of unremovable aliasing of a spurious spectral line onto the analytical line.

Points corresponding to reference samples are highlighted with green colour on the calibration graph. When selecting the approximation method, it is necessary to consider features of the analysis technique, amount of reference samples applied to calibration and intensity of spectral lines. You may apply several statistical parameters to control quality and correctness of calibration. Discrepancies are visually represented by a changed colour of the calibration graph and individual parallel measurements or mean values. Calibration parameters may be set up individually for each line. For example, it allows (when specifying Cmin and Cmax limits) automatically using several analytic lines of one element for work in various concentration spectra – more sensitive lines for low concentration values, and less sensitive lines – for high concentration values. When calculating the calibration graph, the program automatically excludes from calculation reference samples outside the specified spectrum. When changing the range, the switched off points are automatically restored. If it is necessary to exclude any RS from calculation, you may switch them to the status of "work samples", which allows seeing calculation of statistics and displaying these samples in the report.

Concentration calculation

It is performed upon calculation of calibration graphs for all parallel measurements, where intensity of analytic lines (as well as reference lines) was calculated. Points on calibration graph corresponding to samples will be highlighted in blue colour. Calculation settings may also be individual for each line.

Working range of the graph is defined by "Between RS" key; if it is switched on, then calibration graph will be limited to the maximum and the minimum concentration value of reference samples; if it is switched off, then, if the calibration graph exceeds the working range, concentration is calculated on a linear continuation of the calibration graph, which allows defining with a satisfactory accuracy the concentration values, that are not very far from extreme reference samples. The determined concentration values shall thus be considered

as approximate. If the mean value of a calculated concentration falls outside the calibration graph limit beyond the margin, then it is displayed in the analysis table as a higher or a lower value of the corresponding values (for example, ">0.5" or "<0.0015"), and the corresponding values of parallel measurements are calculated as usual. Results are also displayed in the report. Convergence and selection of gross errors of calculated parallel measurement concentration values may be estimated using a number of statistical criteria, including by the difference between parallel measurement results (usually specified in GOST standards for two parallel measurements, for a bigger number of measurements the admissible limit is recalculated automatically). You may also set Clower and Cupper values for visual control of impurity element content in work samples (points that are out range are highlighted on the graph in the red colour).

Performing the analysis taking into account burning of elements

In a number of analysis techniques of powder samples in a DC of AC arc with complete or partial burning of a sample material, a noticeable variation in time is often observed for intensity values of analytic lines of impurities being measured. The nature of intensity value variation usually depends directly on properties of elements, chemical composition and physical condition of the analyzed sample. The corresponding program

modes are provided to control the receipt of impurities. Let us consider the most widespread mode – exposure division into two parts and calculation of element intensity/concentration values according to their time of receipt to discharge plasma (you may study the nature of intensity values variation using "Histogram" tool).

Select the number of spectra in measurement mode settings -2. Generator parameters in this case shall be synchronized by the time of mode switching - for example, current polarity.

Select "several exposures" mode in common analysis settings ("Additional Analysis Parameters" window). In this mode the program will save the spectrum consisting of two parts – each part for its own time interval.

Then use "Time record" dialog to set the way to consider the individual nature of impurity



Time intervals are specified for analytic lines according to burning measurement parameters. Spectra may easily used later for methodical development – all information is saved and may be recalculated at any time. Settings of a number of analytic lines, when determining impurity composition of the cathode copper when generator polarity is switched in the middle of exposure, are provided as an example on the figure, and accurate time frames are defined for each element to obtain optimum results.

Analysis settings		44
🗀 Анализ	•	Si I 251.6113 h exposure No.2 all common
⊕Ag I (1) 338.289 h	exposure No.1	all custom
🖶Ag I (2) 338.289 h	exposure No.1	🕰 Peak 📅 Reference line 😽 Graph 🦨 Concentration
Ni I 305.0818 h	exposure No.2	Time tracking 🖌 Control 🥤 Interference
Ni I 341.4763 h	exposure No.2	
<mark>⊕_∧</mark> SiI 251.6113 h	exposure No.2	save burning data recording range 40 diodes
	exposure No.2	algorithm Base 🔻
Fe I 248.3271 h	exposure No.2	additive interference
Fe I 302.0639 h	exposure No.2	comparison line
Zn I 334.5015 h	exposure No.1	vse burning data for intensity calculation
≜Se I 196.027 h	threshold = 0.035	
	exposure No.1	method for intensity calculation Exposure No.
≜Ası 278.022 h	exposure No.1	
≜	exposure No.1	
	exposure No.1	exposure number 2 -
Cd I 228.8022 h	exposure No.1	
Co I 345.3511 h	exposure No.2	
Cr I 425.4332 h	exposure No.2	
. Mn I 279.4817 h	exposure No.2	
	exposure No.2 🚽	
<	•	
	,	General analysis settings OK Cancel Apply Help

attention Pav to selection of reference lines - it is recommended to select analytic pairs one from time span. To do so, one line shall be added to the analysis table the necessary in amount and an individual interval shall be selected for each line. For example, if there are two working inter-

vals in the technique, the line may be required in two copies – for the 1st and the 2nd interval.

"Element burning measurement" mode is provided to monitor the receipt of elements into discharge plasma without measuring full spectra for the whole measurement period. It may be switched on for each analytic line irrespective of other lines. It provides registration and saving in the computer memory of the spectrum range in the zone where the analytic line is located, as well as calculation for each saved spectrum according to the set peak intensity calculation parameters.

To see the saved spectrum range, select the observed range (from among \bowtie three tabs \bowtie) in the "histogram" window in the burning mode; a corresponding record will be displayed, highlighted in additional colour against the background of the average spectrum.

Ag I (1) 328.068 h*		general settings				
					all custom	
🕂 Peak	A Reference line		Graph	💡 Co	ncentration	
🛃 Time track	king 🗾 🗸	Contro	ol	f Interfe	erence	
V save burning data	recording	range	30 diodes			
	alg	orithm	Base 🔻			
	additive interfe	rence				
	comparis	on line				
🔽 use burning data for	intensity calculation					
	method for intensity calco	lation	intensity threshold			
	cal	culate	average 🔻			
	intensity thre	shold	0.1			
cross			▼		-	
exclude			•		•	

When switching on the "burning saving" and "accounting for burning for calculation" modes, the program calculates intensity values of the "saved" line in each single accumulation throughout the exposure and averages the received values. Move the pointing cursor (red dotted line) over the histogram to display in spectrum window the saved regions, which are displayed according to profiling and measurement time.



Monitoring of Zn zinc line of 334.5 nanometers at evaporation from the crater of geological sample weight with timebase sweep every 100 ms allows specifying, when this element enters the discharge at the beginning of exposure. During the entire exposure time (70 sec) the element line can be seen only during the first several seconds, and in the average spectrum its identification against a line spectrum of arc is complicated. Thus, "time record" is simple option for correct calculation of intensity values, which provides decreased detection limits, and thus does not demand additional operations when preparing samples or changing conditions of spectrum excitation.



For bright lines of elements that are constantly present in plasma, almost full compliance of calculation for the average spectrum is observed for the entire exposure. Every spectral lines Mn 280.1076, Zr 339.198 and Al 305.0073 nm could be calculated with special time option for precise analysis.

For techniques with strongly marked time-dependent receipt of highly or semi-volatile elements the program may calculate and select automatically only those temporary ranges of exposures, where the analytic line of a measured element may be seen in spectra, without taking into account the "empty" spectra, and improving the "signal/noise" ratio.

For those cases when receipt of several elements is irregular relative to the overall composition — for example, when determining gold traces in natural samples using the method of spilling into arc, it is possible to significantly improve the analytic characteristics due to selection and accounting of individual flashes (scintillation method). Thus in common spectra the spectral line may be invisible due to the low average content. Monitoring the gold line Au of 267.594 nanometers with time-base sweep every 4 ms allows determining, when individual gold-bearing grains enter the discharge (seen as intensity flashes lasting for 10–50 milliseconds).



Observation over one of many lines of silicon with time-base sweep every 5 ms allows recording intensity variation in each arc impulse and estimating efficiency of the sample material.



Calculation of spectral line intensity on an automatically defined time span allows improving signal/noise ratio and lowering detection limits for several elements without additional optimization of the analysis technique.

Setting up the spectral equipment

- 1. Install MAES analyzer on a spectrometer according to the device design.
- 2. Ensure grounding of the spectrometer, MAES, MAES power supply unit and the computer.
- 3. Connect MAES and the interface board in the computer with an appropriate cable the most currently widespread interface is Ethernet and TCP-IP. Computer network address in this case is always 10.116.220.1, MAES analyzers have addresses from 10.116.220.2 to 10.116.220.12. Additional devices relay control units, Vesuviy generator, etc. have addresses 10.116.220.16 and above; they are set up automatically. Check against the table of options.

Table of compatibility of interfaces						
Operating system Microsoft	TCP-IP	Ethernet	PPI-PCI	PPI-ISA		
Windows 7-8-10	yes					
Windows XP	yes	yes	yes			
Windows 98	yes	yes	yes	yes		
Windows 3.1, 95				yes		

4. Connect MAES power cable to the power supply unit and hook it up. 3 of four LEDs shall light up brightly on PU panel. Ut LED light intensity (second LED from the bottom) may increase, if room temperature increases.

- Check settings of spectrum measurement mode using MAES (button). Set 1 accumulation at the minimum exposure usually 250 ms. Select in addition (using "More..." button...) "Correction"/"Subtract dark signal".
- 6. Measure dark current ➡ and wait for 15–20 minutes. Repeat dark current measurement. The device is ready to work, if when measuring the signal ➡ the average spectrum value is not negative. If the signal is positive with a closed slot, there is a flare light in the spectrometer.
- Detect and, if necessary, eliminate the flare light. To do so, start MAES in cyclic measurement mode
 with displaying of the entire measured spectrum (with a vertical scale from -1 to 1). Observing the spectrum intensity, light with a lamp the place of possible polychromator transparency.
- 8. Set in front of the entrance slit of the device a source of stable linear spectrum a ball-type lamp or a lamp with a hollow cathode.
- 9. Open the entrance slit 2mm high and 20 microns wide.
- 10. Start MAES in cyclic measurement mode 😁 with displaying of the entire measured spectrum (with a vertical scale from -1 to 10).
- 11. Change the position of the cassette part of the polychromator with 1 mm step, so that the peak signal from spectral lines appears on the screen.
- 12. Change position and slope of the entrance slit to obtain spectrum image with the "narrowest" and "high" spectral lines. Optimum width of lines for spectrometers with diffraction grating makes 3-4 diodes, and with a prism 4-5 diodes.

Currently, the main connection interface is Ethernet, and MAES type is TCP-IP, single MAES or a composite device consisting of 2 or 3 MAES devices. In the automatic tuning mode the program defines itself the number of photo diodes and the measurement procedure.

ATOM software functions in all Microsoft Windows operating systems. ATOMS 2.05. 2.10 and ATOM 3.0–3.3 programs do not affect each other and may be used on one computer.

PPI-ISA interface board is usually used in Windows 95, 98 environment. When it is not possible to install this board, as well as on computers with Microsoft Windows NT4/2000/XP/Vista, MAES operation is ensured only by PPI-PCI and Ethernet interfaces.

ATTENTION: Work with PPI-PCI interface is not supported in Windows 95 and ME operating systems.

PPI-PCI and Ethernet interfaces are installed into the PCI connector of the computer. Drivers are installed after automatic board detection. In case of the first installation a window opens with the message –

"New device found", and if drivers are already installed, no such message will appear – and in list of devices a new section will appear with "PPI/PCI Interface" subsection or, in case of Ethernet, a line with the name of the installed board will appear in "Network Boards" section ("Network adapters").

In setup dialog – "Select device" use program menu item "Settings — Device — Select Device" to select interface type. "Range Parameters" window is opened by clicking "Setup" button in this dialog.

ATOM 3 program is usually installed into "c:\Atom 3.3" directory. If ATOM 3 program is installed for the first time on the computer, ATOM program was already installed before, it is necessary to perform the following operations:

- 1. In case of PPI-ISA interface it is necessary to check availability of BMKPPI2.386 driver (see above). In case of PPI-PCI or Ethernet, reconfiguration is usually not required.
- Specify MAES analyzer settings according to ATOM working settings; pay attention to the number of 2. lines of photo diodes and availability of "rotation" option.
- 3. Copy current profiling file from ATOM program directory (usually "c:\Atom\atom.wl") into "c:\Atom 3.0" directory.
- 4. After ATOM 3 is launched, load the copied profiling, check MAES operation and conformity of positions of wavelengths in the measured spectra.



Example of detailed MAES settings for GRAND spectrometers

?

Data: 31344(31356)	V Two waves						
Exposition 0.1 ms	* 100 *10^ 1						
Cut 1	00 starting 0						
Processings	Load						
1 Cut	1 Save						
✓ Reorder ✓ Re-encod	- 1						
Mirror all	Advanced						
Take sync	Info						
Synchroni:	ation Total: 31344						
info 📃 Order							
Synchro offset	2						
Adjustment	0						
ОК	Cancel Apply						
Network interfac	e TCP-IP properties						
○ Получить IP-адрес автомат	О Получить IP-адрес автоматически						
 Оспользовать следующий І 	Р-адрес:						
<u>I</u> P-адрес:	10 . 116 . 220 . 1						
<u>М</u> аска подсети: 255 . 255 . 255 . 0							
Основной <u>ш</u> люз:							



PGS-2. DFS-13 8 or 9 **DFS-458S** 8 **DFS-458R** 10 MFS-4...-8 8 or 12 DFS-10M. -36 12 (up to 16) Baird, PlasmaLab 12 ICAP, Atomcomp 12 (up to 14) SpectroLab 5 + 12STE-1 13

Example of settings for work with MAES analyzer via Ethernet interface



In case of MAES operation with Ethernet interface, when a "Firewall" control program or a or similar program is installed in the system, it is necessary to allow using the local network, otherwise the computer may block operation with MAES for safety reasons. Anti-virus program may also prevent operation

👹 Брандмауэр Windows 🛛 🗵	Брандмауэр Windows
Общие Исключения Дополнительно	Общие Исключения Дополнительно
Baш компьютер не защищен: включите брандмаузр Windows.	Брандмауэр Windows отключен. Компьютер находится под угрозой вторжения из внешних источников, таких как Интернет. Рекомендуется щелкнуть вкладку "Общие" и выбрать "Включить".
Брандмауэр Windows помогает предотвратить несанкционированный доступ к вашему компьютеру через Интернет или сеть.	Программы и службы:
 Включить (рекомендуется) Этот параметр блокирует подключение всех внешних источников к данному компьютеру, кроме выбранных на вкладке исключений. Не разрешать исключения Выберите этот параметр при подключении к открытой сети в менее защищенных местах, например, в азропорту. Вы не будете получать уведомления, когда брандмауэр Windows блокирует программы. Источники, выбранные на вкладке исключений, будут игнорироваться. 	Иния ✓ Atom ✓ ICQLite ✓ MSN Messenger 7.5 ✓ Total Commander 32 bit international version, file manager replacement for □ UPnP-инФраструктура ✓ Windows Messenger □ Дистанционное управление рабочим столом ✓ Общий доступ к файлам и принтерам ✓ Удаленный помощник
 Выключить (не рекомендуется) Старайтесь не использовать этот параметр. Выключение брандмаузра Windows приводит к снижению защищенности компьютера от вирусных атак и злоумышленников. Брандмаузр Windows использует параметры домена. Подробнее о брандмаузре Windows 	Добавить программу Добавить порт Изменить Удалить Отображать уведомление, когда брандмауэр блокирует программу Опасности разрешения исключений
ОК Отмена	ОК Отмена

Software settings

For correct installation of ATOM program it is necessary to have administrator rights. Otherwise Windows security system will not allow correct installation of all working modules. First start of the program shall also be performed with administrator rights.

Modern Windows 7-8-10 system is completely ready for work with ATOM program, and in previous Windows XP/Vista versions for correct installation and operation of "Alloys", "MAES calibration", "Profiling" and "Spectral Lines" modules it was necessary to install the following add-ons for Windows, developed by Microsoft company and distributed free of charge:

"dotnetfx_(. NET 2.0).exe", "dotnetfx_(. NET 3.5).exe" and

«vcredist x86 (Microsoft Visual C++ 2008 SP1 Redistributable Package (x86)).exe»

If they are not available, then during "Atom" start a message on the impossibility of their use will appear, and all other modules work normally.

Installation of "msxml_4.0_SP2_(Microsoft XML Core Services).msi" add-on may be required for results database operation and interfacing with external programs.

For work in previous Windows versions (up to SP2) it may be necessary to install "WindowsInstaller-3.1-KB893803-v2-x86.exe" package.

The specified files are located on the compact disk supplied with ATOM software in "Atom 3.3 setup_DEPENDENCIES_\" directory, on "http://www.vmk.ru/download.htm" site, as well as on "www.microsoft.com" site.

Installation of ATOM 3.3 program is performed since November, 2011 from the single file (for example

"Atom 3.3 (2012.07.27).exe"), which contains a package of all programs required for operation. "c:\Atom 3.3\Distrib\installation_logs.txt" file is created based on the results of installer operation:



Atom program configurator

Atom program configur

During operation it may be necessary to reconfigure ATOM 3.3 – to switch on/off program components using "Configurator.exe" program. When launched, the program checks condition of all components and displays them on the screen. You may view description for each component and switch it on/off for the period of operation.

0	Installation of Atom 3.3 2016.02.15 – 🗆 🗙
	Installation of Atom finished successfully
	for choosing out product!
Additional	nformation on VMK Optoelectronics web-site: www.vmk.ru
Add sh	ortcut to the desktop
After insta	lation's finished:
	ck for required system components
√ Rur	Atom application
	< <u>B</u> ack Close Cancel

It is complete with system check and start of ATOM 3.3 program



During the installation and first start of ATOM 3.3 program it measures several components; the antivirus program or system may, depending on security settings, require confirmation (like in Kaspersky does).

Rom program configurator	
Enable all Disable all Disat	vle all .Net 4.0
Search	Clear
Module name	Status
Tools	A
Automatic wavelength calibration	Enabled
Correlation analysis for developers	Disabled =
Correlation analysis	Disabled
Measurement monitor	Enabled
Spectrum lines database	Enabled
Media visualizer	Enabled
List of samples	Enabled
Spectrum export	Enabled
Spectrum operations	Enabled
Scintillation	Enabled
"MAES" complex verification	Disabled
Spurious lines	Obligatory module
Qualitative analysis	Obligatory module
Histogram	Obligatory module
Search of analytical lines	Enabled
	- 11 1
Spectrum lines database Spectrum lines database. This module demands for the work the follow When starting, this module was in file "net_line"	
Restore factory settings	Apply Cancel Exit

Запуск от име	ни другого г	юльзоват	еля		×
	четную записи грограммы?	ь следует и	спользовать д	ля запуска	
Учетную з	апись текуще	го пользова	ателя (MEDTEK'	(vs)	
этой пр Это мо: компью	юграммы кет предотвра	атить повре их данных,	ционированны: еждение вирус но может поме	ом вашего	,
О У <u>ч</u> етную з	апись указанн	ого пользо	вателя:		
Подьзоват	ель: 🙍	FLAT-XP\A,	цминистратор	▼ <u></u>	
Пароль;					
		[ОК	Отмена	

After configurator operation, during the start of ATOM 3.3 program it measures switched on components; the system may, depending on security settings, require user confirmation - such as administrative rights (like in the example for Windows XP).

Currently, the following components are usually switched off: Control of "Globula" stand, "Recording from camera", "Images", "Measurement monitor" and several other components.

For example, in case if a video camera is connected to the computer, it is necessary to switch on the "Recording from Camera" component for video recording of the analysis process, as well as "Images" component to view the recorded images.

Tools

"Histogram"



It is used to display the data slice as a graph. It works in one of the three modes: data slice by the analysis table, data slice by burning spectra and burning.

Use tabs with icons / III to switch between modes.

To display a data slice by the data table, click tab with icon . And then select a column in the table, which values shall be displayed in the histogram. Only values of parallel measurements are taken to build a histogram; mean values are not displayed. For example, click one of cells or column "C" caption of this line to view analysis results (peak intensity values) for "R 177.4347" line (the result is presented in the fig-

ure above). Red dotted cursor shows the current cell position. "Double-click" the histogram window to replace the current cell in the analysis table. In order to display a data slice by a column with intensity or other values, it is necessary to make it current.

To display a data slice by the burning spectra, click tab with icon . In this case the program takes amplitudes of burning spectra as histogram values from thespectrum window in a point where red spectrum cursor is located. Move spectrum cursor to change the point of the histogram slice. In order for the histogram to work in this mode, it is necessary that the spectrum with burning spectra was displayed in spectrum window. To do so, change spectrum measurement settings so that the program will save burning spectra (see "Measurement mode" dialog , "number of spectra" parameter) and measure the spectrum.

Watch assignment of buttons located in toolbars of histogram window in "Main buttons of Analysis mode".

"Spurious lines"

VMKO.157UM L.92

Spurious lines			×
2	diode 🔻 渊		
W I	324.7436	15	
Tm II	324.746	420	
Nb II	324.747	200	
Ar II	324.7488		
UII	324.749		
Sc I	324.7515	2	
> Cu I	324.7532	10000	ACSI
Ag	324.755		=
Eŭ I	324.755	100	
Pu II	324.756	10000	
Th II	324.7594		
Mo I	324.761		
Hf I	324.766	360	
			*

It is used to determine possible aliasing of spectral lines, as well as to search lines in the specified spectral region. Lines located at a distance from the current line not exceeding the value set in the input field above the list, are displayed in the window. Element name, ionization degree, wavelength, line intensity and type are displayed. Window of spurious lines may be moved, and its sizes may be changed.

The tool works in two modes: search of spurious lines for the current spectral line (by default) and search of spurious lines round the spectrum cursor (red dashed line in spectrum window). After start the tool shows by default the spurious lines for the current spectral line (displayed on "Spectral lines" toolbar and is designated by blue cursor in spectrum window). If you change the cur-

rent spectral line, new spurious lines will automatically appear.

Double-click spectrum window to display lines under any spectrum range (around the spectrum cursor). Use this mode to define, what spectral lines will be under any peak. To do so, make sure that "set cursor to peak maximum" key is set ("Peak search" dialog), then double-click the peak. After the search around the spectrum cursor the program automatically sets the current spectral line — nearest to the cursor.

The list is display according to the line position in the spectrum: lines located above in the list are located to the left of spectrum; lines located below to the right. Current spectral line is indicated in list by ">" symbol. Click ">> |" button above the list to change the current line (select line and press button), or double-click the line. After that spurious lines will be searched again for the current line.

If you select one of the lines in the list, it will appear in spectrum window, highlighted with green colour, which allows evaluating the degree of its possible impact on the analyzed line.

Line search spectrum may be set in nanometers or in diodes — see dropdown list. Spectrum recalculation from wavelengths to diodes or vice versa is performed and new value is displayed in the input field when changing the measurement unit.

Click button *to* display search settings of spurious lines.

"*Element Filter*" controls elements, which lines will be used to search spurious lines:

"*all*" — use all elements;

"*Mendeleyev table filter*" — use lines of elements from the filter in "Periodic table" dialog (see "Element Filter" dialog).

"Group of elements" — select the name of a group of elements, which lines shall be used (see "Group Manager" dialog).

"Selected" — lines of elements selected in "Periodic table" dialog will be used.

"*Line filter*" — controls selection of element lines:

"all lines" — use all lines

"*spectral lines database filter*" — use lines satisfying to the current filter of spectral lines (see "Spectral lines display settings" dialog).

Spurious line search settings	X
Elements filter Lines filter	
use the following elements for se	arch :
) all	
○ from analysis table	
Periodic Table filter	
group of elements :	copper 👻
○ selected	copper ferrum
	geology
	steel
ОК	Отмена Справка
Spurious line search settings	X
Spurious line search settings Elements filter Lines filter	
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the	
Elements filter Lines filter	
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the search :	
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the	
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the search :	elements are used for
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the search :	elements are used for se filter
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the search :	elements are used for se filter
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the search :	elements are used for se filter
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the search :	elements are used for se filter
Elements filter Lines filter the following spectral lines of the search :	elements are used for se filter

"Qualitative Analysis"

It is used for qualitative and/or semi-quantitative analysis. Click OK button to start calculations and to display analysis results. The program looks for all peaks in the spectrum displayed currently in spectrum window. Analytic lines are searched for each peak found, which wavelength differs from the peak maximum wavelength no more than by the specified value. Search is performed only for elements and analytic lines set in Qualitative Analysis settings (see below). Then the number of peaks, elements and lines found, and the number of lines found for each element is displayed in decreasing order in the analysis results window. All lines found are displayed in spectrum window with gray colour.

The window consists of a toolbar located above and two lists — list of elements and the selected element line list.

Qualitative Analysis window size and position may be changed.

Click \bigstar button to open settings dialog. Input field of the maximum deviation of the line from the peak center is located further. This value may be set either in wavelengths (nanometers), or in diodes. Use drop-down list to the right of the field to change the measurement unit; the entered value will be recalculated from wavelengths to diodes or vice versa.

Qualitative analysis

<< diode

🛠 2

"<<" button sets the maximum deviation value as the current profiling error. Click OK button to start searching and to display results.

Use "*Base...*" button to select base elements manually. Base elements are highlighted in the element list with "*" symbol; lines of these elements are highlighted in spectrum window with black colour. The program checks lines of each element found at the intersection with base lines; if the intersection was detected, and the checked element line is marked with "K" symbol (Qualitative Analysis line), then the element is marked with "?" symbol. Apart from the fact that base elements may be set manually, the program performs automatic detection of base elements by a heuristic algorithm.

Use button \blacksquare to add lines highlighted in the list to the right to the analysis table.

List of elements found is located to the left. Element name is displayed, number of lines found for it, as well as conventional minimum and maximum concentration values, if you it is possible to evaluate them (see below).

Element line list is located to the right. To display the element line list, click its name in the list of elements

Qualitative analysis settings
Elements filter Lines filter A Peak Colors
use the following elements for search :
© all
from analysis table
Periodic Table filter
Selected
Qualitative analysis settings
Elements filter Lines filter 🙏 Peak Colors
the following spectral lines of the elements are used for search :
© all lines
Spectral lines database filter
ines of qualitative analysis (Q)

EI. $|N\nabla|$. Fe 288.8 Cr 9 3 9 265.8... Κ 28.98... Pt 9 248.3... K 10000 19.96... = Mn 8 3 259.8... K 650 3.473... 1 AI 6 3 9 Κ 258.7... 3.418... Мо 6 3 9 K 300 259.9... 2.651... 0.500... Ni 5 3 1 Κ 324.3... 4 302.0... 0.478... Bi K 1500 4 Rh 10 30 332.3... Κ 0.401... 4 286.4... 0.173... Zn 10 30 Κ Ag 3 0.1 0.3 301.8... K 60 0.165... 3 As 3 50 150 Со Cu 3 0.5 1.5

OK

Base...

⇒ E

located to the left. Wavelength, "K" flag for Qualitative Analysis lines, line intensity set in spectral lines database (in .mnd-file), as well as the peak intensity corresponding to the line are displayed in the list. When selecting any of the lines found, "Spurious Lines" window opens, displaying possible aliasing from the side of other spectral lines of elements found. Base lines in "Spurious Lines" window are marked with "*" symbol.

Click column caption to sort contents of the list by. Click again to change direction of sorting from "ascending" — to "descending" and vice versa.

Some lines of lists are highlighted with a different background colour. Such lines include:

- base elements;
- "totally out of range" lines of the qualitative analysis;
- lines with "self-absorption".

Background colour may be specified for such lines in "Colour" dialog of qualitative analysis settings. Click button 🛠 to topen qualitative analysis settings dialog:

"Element Filter" controls elements, which lines will be used for searching:

"*all*" — use all elements;

"*Mendeleyev table filter*" — use lines of elements from the filter in "Periodic table" dialog (see "Element Filter" dialog).

"Group of elements" — select the name of a group of elements, which lines shall be used (see "Group Manager" dialog).

"Selected" — lines of elements selected in "Periodic table" dialog will be used.

"*Line filter*" — controls selection of element lines:

"all lines" — use all lines

"*spectral lines database filter*" — use lines satisfying to the current filter of spectral lines (see "Spectral lines display settings" dialog).

"*Peak calculation*" dialog corresponds to analysis settings dialog. Use it to set calculation parameters of peak and back-ground intensity, as well as various restrictions, for example, intensity threshold (the program uses this parameter to ignore peaks with a low intensity or to to ignore the out of range peaks).

Elements filter Lines filter A Peak Colors
Base element
Out of range peak
Line with self-absorption

Qualitative analysis settings

Use "*Colour*" dialog to set background colour for various lines of calculation results.

Recommendations on qualitative analysis

- Measure the analyzed sample spectrum or select the spectrum measured earlier from the analysis table. Select, if necessary, conformity of the scale of wavelengths (according to the profiling) to lines in the new spectrum.
- To set Element Filter and line filter (see dialogs "Element Filter" and "Line filter") it is recommended to allow displaying only Analytical, Standard and Qualitative lines (to do so, set "average" resolution in "Spectral lines display settings" dialog and "Spectral lines database filter" in "Line filter" dialog) – such settings provide searching among ~1000 of the most characteristic spectral lines with various sensitivity. Switch to "Qualitative analysis" mode (itemof the main program menu "Tool"/"Qualitative analysis").
- Set control spectrum in nanometers (it is recommended not to set a value more than a value for one diode, usually it is equal to 0.005–0.01 nanometers) and check "Peak search" settings, it is recommended to limit the lower boundary of line intensity values found in the spectrum and to exclude "out of range" peaks, switch on "Background subtraction", "Background averaging", intensity restriction from below 0.1; calculate line intensity as the "integral" on three central diodes, etc.
- After the settings are checked, it is necessary to start qualitative analysis by pressing OK button. After the spectrum analysis a list of elements is built (located to the left), for which the lines were found (with indication of the number of lines found for each element). Analysis is performed for impurity and main composition. For the sample analyzed the known main components may be also specified using "*Base*" button; such elements will be marked in the list with '*' symbol. Elements, for which the concentration is evaluated, with possible aliasing by lines of basic elements and lines with aliasing are marked with '?' symbol. Example of qualitative analysis is presented in the figure.
- Modern table of spectral lines contains information on Cmin and Cmax (in g/t (ppm), specified according to the book written by N.V. Arnautov, et al. "Approximate spectrum analysis...") According to this data, the program performs semi-quantitative analysis with display of the approximate spectrum of contents for the corresponding elements. Concentration spectra specified in N.V. Arnautov's book correspond to certain conditions of spectrum excitation sample weight ~50 mg, DC arc 15–20 A, therefore assessment of the element content by spectra received in other conditions requires application of additional correction

coefficients. In any case the provided estimates may differ by several times from the real content ofmeasuredelementsintheanalyzedsamples.Qualitative analysis requires certain skills of the analyst – he/she must have experience in performingsuch analyses, as well as be able to use computer capabilities.

"Identification of spectra"



For individual operation, the program allows identifying spectra of samples and performing qualitative analysis. Work is conducted similarly to identification of a photographic plate under a spectroprojector.

Due to photographic plate representation as an image, one or several spectra (together with additional ones) may be shown on the screen and printed on a printer in a form convenient for comparison and demonstration of distinctions.

Individual spectrum lines or ranges may have any captions. The specified caption text becomes as-

signed to the spectrum, saved and recovered together with it. For each line in the list of captions, the program stores the position and the scale of spectrum, which are restored, when this line is selected.

Text codes may be both specific for the spectrum (in this case they are displayed in the spectrum window) and be common for the entire document, which is convenient for the analysis of similar samples – you may define the main interesting ranges and to quickly switch between them.

∿→ Φ∧" —∧" Adds the current spectral line name (blue spectrum cursor) to the text line.

Adds text code to the red spectrum cursor location.

Deletes text code from the list.



Text code toggle switch — codes individual for each spectrum or common for the entire document.



"Print several spectrum ranges"

9	• 💫	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	⊾	+ +	
	Print spe	ectrum			ľ
•	Print sel	ected spectra	l regio	ns	

Report with preview for simultaneous printing of several preselected ranges of one spectrum.

A set of ranges for printing is formed from lists of captions for the document, fixed scales and the current spectrum. You may place up to 8 ranges on one page with various options of relative positioning. Display of additional information, as well as the text for the caption above/below each page, is controlled from the set-

VMKO.157UM L.96

tings window of this report.

Application of this report allows optimum presentation of reports and/or performances without additional processing of individual images.

"Comparative research"

Use Tool menu to open the tool for comparative research using algorithm of the modified Student test for average intensity values and their reproducibility. It allows selecting various options and combinations of sample and element comparison. In the absence of significant discrepancies in the comparison table, "+" sign is specified; if there is at least one element, for which a significant difference is observed, "-" sign is specified. Comparison table may be exported to Excel as a report and supplemented with necessary comments.

Relative intensity values are checked as the reference parameter for spectral lines, and directly entered values are checked for columns with any number, which allows checking the mixed data, also considering, for example, all samples.

Comparative study									-	
		E		3			significa level	ance 0,	05 🔹	
thermowire contact palladium transistor		Au Au Be Co Cr Fe Fe	338.28 267.59 312.27 313.04 345.35 427.47 259.93 301.61 302.06	4 84 2 11 96 96 85 39						
·		La	101 50	0 /	average				SD	
	No.1	No.2	No.3	No.4	Au	Fe	Fe	Si	Au	Fe
No.1 thermowire		-	-	-	9.0e+00	3.6e-01	3.8e+01	7.7e+00	4.8e+00	1.5
No.2 contact	-		-	+	5.6e+01	3.1e+00	9.6e+01	8.7e+00	5.9e+01	2.7
No.3 palladium	-	-		-	1.9e+01	5.9e-01	3.5e+01	5.3e+00		
No.4 transistor	-	+	-		1.2e+02	1.4e+01	9.7e+01	3.0e+01	3.8e+01	7.4
٠										ł
							Rep	ort	Close	

Use of this tool accelerates spectrum analysis

data processing and reduces the risk of errors during manual calculations in expert research laboratories.

"Content diagram"

Tool for comparative research through visual control of contents or relative intensity values of elements; it is useful for online comparison of the same samples with the aim to detect values, which are out of the common range, as well as for high-quality comparison of various materials and for searching of coinciding elements. Graphs are represented in linear or logarithmic coordinates. SD-spectrum may be displayed for relative intensity values to assess overlapping of content intervals.



"Quick tool panel"



gram remembers panel position and status, and restores them after restart. List of tools is provided in the table.

1	Fetching histogram window	ЦЦ	Fetching spurious lines window
KAT	Fetching qualitative analysis dialog	<u>^//</u>	Fetching dialog to search pairs of analytic lines
	Fetching spectrum identification window		

"Search of analytic pairs of lines"

Analytical lines	filter		-	× 🗉	39 🖿			17	pcs.
Reference lines 730 pcs	 176.5538 178.975 184.7092 196.674 201.596 203.398 206.117 all lines 175.5601 175.5616 175.7523 175.8346 		10 75 20 100 150 150 200 •	A A	he D Pt-1-1 Nº5/ D Pt-1-2 Nº5/ D Pt-1-3 Nº5/ D Pt-1-4 Nº5/ D Pt-1-5 Nº5/ D Pt-1-6 Nº5/ D Pt-1-7 Nº5/ D Pt-1-8 Nº5/ D Pt-1-8 Nº5/ D-1 Pt-35 D-3 Pt-35	27787 27788 27789 27790 32596 27791		Crm 0.000118 0.00088 0.00146 0.0081 0.0107 0.00097 0.0249	_
	176.2127 176.3613 176.3995		1		D-4 Pt-35 D-10 Pt-35			0.0201	Ŧ
	comp. line	angle	adequ 🛆	convergence	calibrati	lc	R	F	-
Ag I 338.289	Pt II 357.7197	29.2	1.90e-02	2.54e-03	7.81e-02	9.59	8.19	-	3
	Pt I 331.5042	29.8	2.05e-02	2.60e-03	8.05e-02	84.1	10	-	
	Pt I 347.6747	29.4	2.07e-02	2.49e-03	8.02e-02	54.2	9.58	-	
Ag I 338.289			2.13e-02	2.53e-03	8.12e-02	58.4	10	-	
Ag I 338.289	Pt I 324.0196	30.0	2.138-02		0.120 02				
Ag I 338.289 Ag I 338.289	Pt I 324.0196 Pt I 325.9731	30.0 29.9	2.14e-02	2.52e-03	8.12e-02	73.1	10	-	
Ag I 338.289 Ag I 338.289 Ag I 338.289 Ag I 338.289	Pt I 324.0196			2.52e-03 2.38e-03		73.1 16.5	10 7.34	-	

Tool for automatic search of analytic pairs of lines is opened from the "Tool" menu. It allows selecting various options of combinations of analytic pairs and selecting individual calculation settings of spectral line intensity values.

Search is performed in all specified spectral lines and their combinations with reference lines, by calculating linear calibration graph in logarithmic coordinates and checking of its parameters on compliance with the set values.

Search results are displayed in the table. Click caption of a column to start sorting. Select line in calibration graph window to display the corresponding image. Suitable analytic pairs may be added to Analysis table using "Add" button. Lines will be saved in the "Search analytic lines" sheet.

In order to decrease the number of options checked and to reduce the operating time, it is recommended to set reasonable limits for parameters of line intensity values, calibration graphs and mutual arrangement of analytic lines and reference lines in line search settings. If search does does not provide acceptable results, it is necessary to gradually weaken the control – for example, by cutting limits or the limit intensity of spectrum lines, or by excluding extreme points on the calibration graph from the search.

Selec	ction Set	tings	Search for a			e lines								2.9	
Ana	lytical li	nes	Selectio	on Setting	s										
	180) pcs.	exposu	ire numbei	r		1								
	180 pcs.		analytic	cal line pe	ak sea	arch setting	s		٦	15	5				
	Ag -		referen	nce line pe	ak sea	arch setting	s		4	45	3				
			maxima	al deviatio	n from	1 45°			20	61	8				
	✓ Ag Al		maxima	al RSD of	refere	ence line, %			100)					
Ref	Ai		distanc	distance to reference line, nm 20 2											
line	Au		only me	only meeting the Fisher ratio test											
	Ba		identical ionization degrees												
	Bi		numbe	rs of lines,	, disca	arded accor	ding to	the correspo	onding paramet	er, is highlig	hted wi	th red	colou	r	
	C		an, line		comp	line	angle	adequ 🛆	convergence	calibrati	Ic	R	F		
			Ag I 33			357.7197	29.2	1.90e-02	2.54e-03	7.81e-02		8.19	-	=	
			Ag I 33		PtI	331.5042	29.8	2.05e-02	2.60e-03	8.05e-02		10	-		1
			Ag I 33	38.289	Pt I 3	347.6747	29.4	2.07e-02	2.49e-03	8.02e-02	54.2	9.58	-		
			Ag I 33	38.289	Pt I 🗧	324.0196	30.0	2.13e-02	2.53e-03	8.12e-02	58.4	10	-		
			Ag I 33			325.9731	29.9	2.14e-02	2.52e-03	8.12e-02		10			
			Ag I 33			354.8814	29.3	2.14e-02	2.38e-03	8.05e-02		7.34			
			Ag I 33	38.289	PtI (325.1979	30.2	2.16e-02	2.56e-03	8.17e-02	113	10	-		,
			36 pcs.						Searching	-	Add			Exit	

The program allows se- Search area may be lin

Search area may be limited both using a specific list of reference samples, and by

lecting only elements with the specified concentration in reference samples. additional limiting conditions — these may be the value and convergence of spectral line intensity values, calibration graph slope, its conformity to Fischer ratio test, distance between the analytic line and the reference line in nanometers, as well as the matching ionization degree. You may select a specific exposure number for the corresponding analysis techniques.

After the search you may select a suitable pair in the table of results. Full information is displayed for the selected line in calibration graph window.

Data control in the analysis table

Additional control elements for selection from the list of visible samples and lines/columns in the analysis table. Displaying of these elements must be enabled in "Table window settings" dialog in the analysis table toolbar in order to use them.

Dropdown lists with names of samples and the complete list of spectral lines provide fast access to samples and lines without the need to scroll through the entire analysis table.

Start typing text in the header line of the list of lines or samples, the program will start searching for a match and will display all lines/samples with the entered text. Just select necessary line/sample from the list to navigate to it — use "up"–"down" keys or the mouse cursor.

Use one of standard Windows combinations to copy to clipboard (Ctrl-C and Ctrl-Ins) to open window of data transfer from Analysis table to Windows clipboard with the possibility to control the copied information.

A text appears in the window as a table in the corresponding selected area of the Analysis table. If the cursor is currently positioned in the first line of the first column, the whole table will be selected.

Hold down Shift key and press "up"–"down" keys or use mouse cursor to select an individual group of cells – they will be highlighted in the table with light blue colour (by default).

Example below presents text from clipboard after copying of the selected range of the Analysis table.



			Cd 226.502	Cd 3	46.62	Cr 284.3249		
		I	С	I	С	I	С	
22	GSO Pt-1-5	№527790control	6,90e-03		6,90e-03		1,16e-02	
	(1)	5,12e-01	4,6e-03	3,24e-01	4,0e-03	3,59e+00	1,3e-02	
	(2)	5,76e-01	5,7e-03	3,24e-01	4,0e-03	2,49e+00	8,4e-03	
	(3)	4,85e-01	4,2e-03	3,18e-01	3,9e-03	2,44e+00	8,2e-03	
k	(4)	5,82e-01	5,8e-03	3,73e-01	5,2e-03	3,31e+00	1,1e-02	
	average	5,39e-01	5,1e-03	3,35e-01	4,3e-03	3,0e+00	1,0e-02	

VMK Optoelektronika_____

median repeatability		5,2e-03		4,0e-03		1,0e-02
23 543183 Pt-99,9						
(1)	6,53e-03	1,8e-06	9,87e-02	4,4e-04	2,98e-02	6,9e-05
(2)	8,29e-03	2,7e-06	6,73e-02	2,2e-04	2,56e-02	5,8e-05
(3)	6,69e-03	1,9e-06	6,52e-02	2,1e-04	2,99e-02	6,9e-05
(4)	1,05e-02	4,2e-06	7,15e-02	2,4e-04	3,32e-02	7,7e-05
average	8,0e-03	< 2,5e-04	7,6e-02	< 1,0e-03	3,0e-02	< 9,7e-05
median		2,3e-06		2,3e-04		6,9e-05
repeatability						

								•	1•10-7	1•10-6 1	вŦ
X () 💖 🔝 🔚 🔐 🖊	♣ ▼ ②	22 🖿 GSO F	Pt-1-5 №527790)control 👻	Cd 226.5	02 🔹 🧧	۵ 🖒 🗠	a 🔟 🔟			
Current	Ca 393.366	3	Cd 226.502	2	Cd 346.62		Cr 284.3249	9	Cu 221.458	1	П
spectrum	1	С	1	С	1	С	1	С	1	С	
22		4.63e-03		6.90e-03		6.90e-03		1.16e-02		5.90e-02	
(1)	5.10e+01	2.6e-03	5.12e-01	4.6e-03	3.24e-01	4.0e-03	3.59e+00	1.3e-02	1.37e+00	4.0e-02	
經 (2)	4.45e+01	2.2e-03	5.76e-01	5.7e-03	3.24e-01	4.0e-03	2.49e+00	8.4e-03	1.42e+00	4.2e-02	
經 (3)	4.58e+01	2.3e-03	4.85e-01	4.2e-03	3.18e-01	3.9e-03	2.44e+00	8.2e-03	1.51e+00	4.6e-02	
izi (4)	6.01e+01	3.2e-03	5.82e-01	5.8e-03	3.73e-01	5.2e-03	3.31e+00	1.1e-02	1.44e+00	4.3e-02	
× average	5.0e+01	2.6e-03	5.39e-01	5.1e-03	3.35e-01	4.3e-03	3.0e+00	1.0e-02	1.44e+00	4.24e-02	
median		2.5e-03		5.2e-03		4.0e-03		1.0e-02		4.22e-02	
repeatability											
3 🗅 543183 Pt-99,9											
經 (1)	7.46e+00	2.6e-04	6.53e-03	1.8e-06	9.87e-02	4.4e-04	2.98e-02	6.9e-05	1.51e-01	1.8e-03	
經 (2)	6.85e+00	2.4e-04	8.29e-03	2.7e-06	6.73e-02	2.2e-04	2.56e-02	5.8e-05	9.85e-02	9.7e-04	
izi (3)	8.07e+00	2.9e-04	6.69e-03	1.9e-06	6.52e-02	2.1e-04	2.99e-02	6.9e-05	1.52e-01	1.8e-03	
izz (4)	1.07e+01	4.1e-04	1.05e-02	4.2e-06	7.15e-02	2.4e-04	3.32e-02	7.7e-05	1.72e-01	2.1e-03	
Platinum (additional) Pt s	8 3+00	3.0-04	8 0=-03	< 2 5e-04	7 60-02	< 1 0e-03	3 00-02	< 9 70-05	1 4=-01	< 2 00-03	

<u>File D</u> ocument <u>A</u> nalysis <u>Mode</u> <u>T</u> ool <u>S</u> ettings	dows <u>H</u> elp				
) 🛎 🖬 🏽 🕶 Report	45		*	Cd	226.
Марочник Database					
add 📃 d		\$	Enab	le editing	9
Start "Assistant" mode					
NCS AIMg ✓ Standards ✓ Reference materials	-				
uminium Alloy FM009220					
Analysis programs MAES test					
Profiling					
				- a .	
F add E delete 🕒	✓ → ■	🛨 ad	ld	= de	lete
Sample name Sample	ode	Element	Conce	ntration	Co
CRM NCS HS49734-1		В	0.001		
RM NCS HS49734-2		Be	0.0001	1	
RM NCS HS49734-3		Cr	0.214		
CRM NCS HS49734-4		Cu	0.013		
CRM NCS HS49734-5		Fe	0.361		
CRM NCS HS49734-6		Mg	4.85		
CRM NCS HS49734-7		Mn	1.11		
ampes database		1 or line		-	
=					۵.
	add - 🗎 🗁 Copp	er nikel PR02 M	BH		•
et-1-019064 SOPt-21	2 🗖				
et-2-019065 SOPt-21		1 PR02 MBH (R6X 274 /	1	
et-3-019066 SOPt-21		1 PR02 MBH 3			
et-4-019067 SOPt-21	CRM	PR02 MBH	36X CN1	A	=
et-5-019068 SOPt-21	CRM	1 PR02 MBH 3	36X CN12	2 A	
■ GSO PtK-1 №415313		1 PR02 MBH 3			
GSO PtK-2 № 532598 =		1 PR02 MBH 3			
GSO Pt-1-2 №527787control		1 PR02 MBH (1 PR02 MBH (
GSO Pt-1-5 №527790control		1 PR02 MBH 3			
► 5/3183 Dt_00 0				• •	*
GSO Pt-1-5 №527790control		R02 MBH 36X	2/4 A		
Ag 0.0107 Al 0.0098	copy - Al	0.0013			
As 0.0245	Co	0.0028			
Au 0.007 Bi 0.0105		0.531			
Bi 0.0105 Ca 0.00463	Cu	96.23 0.0779			
Cd 0.0069	Mn	0.0148			
Cr 0.0116	Ni	2.54			
Cu 0.059 Fe 0.0078	P	0.0011 0.0021			
Ir 0.0079	S	0.0035			
Mg 0.00444 Mn 0.0069	Si	0.594			
Mn 0.0069 Mo 0.0041	Zn	0.014 0.0395			
Ni 0.00695 -					
					_
	1	ОК	X	Cance	

Using the base of reference materials

"Reference materials" mode used to input information is described in appropriate section of this manual. Data already entered (element concentrations) by samples may be "transferred" by opening the reference samples database control window in the current (open) document (in the Analysis table). To do so, go to

Click button to open Reference materials database control window, which is used to connect concentration/information by reference samples with samples in the analysis table. It is possible to copy/add information to both parts, which allows (by means of RS DB) transferring information about element concentrations between data files.

Element concentration values may be entered into RS DB both manually and by "extracting" them from the data file by copying all necessary samples.

Besides, in this window you may see the compact list of elements and the specified concentration values.

Concentration from RS DB will be stored in sample, even if there are no analytic lines of elements in the Analysis table. When adding a spectral line to the table, saved concentration values will be immediately specified for it.

For fast access to information on concentration in reference samples you may use drop-down menu, which is activated on the sample/parallel measurement caption.

repeatability						
🕒 GSO Pt-1-3	3 №527788		3.40e-03		3.40e-03	
🔛 (1)	Disable		2.7e-03	3.69e-01	3.1e-03	1
🖾 (2)	Hide parallel measure	ements	2.8e-03	3.60e-01	3.2e-03	1
🖾 (3)	Rename		3.7e-03	4.79e-01	4.1e-03	2
iiii (4)	Statistics	•	3.8e-03	4.46e-01	4.2e-03	2
× average	· · ·		3.3e-03	4.1e-01	3.6e-03	2
median		₽.	3.3e-03		3.6e-03	
repeatability	× Delete					
💼 GSO Pt-1-4	Consider as a reference	e material	2.01e-03		2.01e-03	
🖾 (1)	Consider as a working	sample	2.3e-03	2.76e-01	2.7e-03	1
izi (2)	Reset individual peak	parameters	1.9e-03	2.61e-01	2.3e-03	1
(3)			1.3e-03	1.68e-01	1 7e-03	8
(4)	Working with samples	s database 🔷 🕨	take RM va	alues from sample	es database	1
× average		4.6e-01	save samp	le to database		1
median			add samp	le from database		F
	GSO Pt-1-	GSO Pt-1-3 №527788 (1) Disable Hide parallel measure Rename Statistics Average median repeatability GSO Pt-1- (1) (2) (2) (3) (4) X average (4) X average Move Consider as a reference Consider as a vorking Reset individual peak Working with samples X average	GSO Pt-1-3 №527788 (1) Disable Hide parallel measurements Rename Statistics Move Statistics Move Consider as a reference material Consider as a reference material Consider as a vorking sample Reset individual peak parameters Working with samples database (4) x average (4)	■ GSO Pt-1-3 №527788 3.40e-03	GSO Pt-1-3 №527788 3.40e-03	GSO Pt-1-3 N#527788 3.40e-03 3.40e-03 Image: Consider as a reference material Consider as a working sample 2.7e-03 3.69e-01 3.1e-03 Image: Consider as a working sample 2.8e-03 3.60e-01 3.2e-03 Image: Consider as a working sample 2.01e-03 2.76e-01 4.1e-01 Image: Consider as a working sample 2.01e-03 2.76e-01 2.01e-03 Image: Consider as a working sample 2.01e-03 2.76e-01 2.7e-03 Image: Consider as a working sample 2.01e-03 2.76e-01 2.7e-03 Image: Consider as a working sample 2.01e-03 2.01e-03 2.01e-03 Image: Consider as a working sample 1.9e-03 2.61e-01 2.3e-03 Image: Consider as a working ware samples 1.9e-03 1.68e-01 1.7e-03 Image: Consider as a working ware samples 1.9e-03 1.68e-01 1.7e-03 Image: Consider as a working ware samples 1.9e-03 1.68e-01 1.7e-03 Image: Consider as a working ware samples 1.9e-03 1.68e-01 1.7e-03 Image: Consider as a working ware samples 1.9e-03 1.68e-01 1.7e-03 Image: Consider as a wo

Use this menu to "switch on/off" the whole sample/parallel measurements or only Crm. Reference sample with switched off Crm value (items of "To be consider as the work sample" menu) is considered by the program as the work sample, concentration is calculated for it, and the corresponding statistical control is performed.

This mode is useful during the methodical work, when selecting modes and calculation parameters of calibration relationships. Item "To be considered as the reference sample" menu "switches on" the switched off earlier Crm value.

Base of spectral lines

Spectral line ba	156			_				
Ag			🐇 🗖 .		atom.mnd	_		
Filter:			367 p	OCS	Line Intensity values	i		
λ (nm)			Inten	-	Wavelength (nm): 33	38.289		
292.935		-						
293.423		-			Parameter	Value	-	
293.842	1	-	20		Intensity	28000		
293.855	11	K			Ionization level	1		
309.910	1	K	20		Intensity 3.1	1000		
313.002	1	-	30		Arc	1,82	=	
317.058	1	-	10		Spark			
318.070	Ш	-	90		Energy	3,66		
321.567	1	-	15		ICP	900		
322.515	1	-	10		Hollow cathode			
323.318	1	-	15		Sensibility		-	
324.755		-						
326.735	11	-	100		Flag	Value		
328.068	1	ACS	55000		Analitycal	V		
330.567	1	-	10		Calibration	1		
338.289		ACS	28000	Ξ	Standard	1		
340.378	1	-	10		1			
346.916	1	-	30		Ш			
346.921		-			Semi-quantitative	v		
347.582	Ш	-	70		Ritz (calc)			
349.528	Ш	-	80		Base NIST			
350.192	1	-	20		Main	 Image: A start of the start of		
250 803			20	Ŧ			_	

oc		<u>S</u> ettings	<u>W</u> indows	<u>H</u> elp
	Н	listogram		
	S	pectral line	e base	
	Ir	nages		

Images - click main window menu "Tool"-"Spectral line base" for using the subprogram.

- tool used to edit and view the base of spectral lines, to add new parameters, correct and add existing parameters. Use "Tools" menu to open it as a "floating" window in the "Engineer" mode.

- subprogram in "Intensity values" section provides the service on automatic input of values based on the current spectrum.

- click button before editing or adding new spectral line. The button enables manipulation with spectral line database.

- click button to save spectral line database in external file.

Let click button for checking some editing and viewing options.

Sample list

Additional window for simplification of navigation according to the analysis table in the "Engineer" mode; settings allow line font size and colour adjustment for samples with spectra and without them. Sample selected in list becomes the current sample in the analysis table.

Sa	mple li	st 💦 👘		X	Sample list settings
	4	★ Settings			Font parameters
	Түре	Sample name	Parallel measurements	•	Select font Microsoft Sans Serif
		GSO Pt-1-1 №527786	4		Microsoft Sans Sent
	6	GSO Pt-1-2 №527787	4		Font size:
	6	GSO Pt-1-3 №527788	4		
	6	GSO Pt-1-4 №527789	4		Colors of lines with samples
	6	GSO Pt-1-5 №527790	4		Backgroun d color Example
	6	GSO Pt-1-6 №532596	4	=	
	6	GSO Pt-1-7 №527791	4		Completely measured: Sample
	6	GSO Pt-1-8 №532597	4		Partially measured: Sample
	i	GSO-1 Pt-35	0		Without parallel measurements: Sample
	i	GSO-3 Pt-35	0		
	i	GSO-4 Pt-35	0		Change font color Set default colors
	i	GSO-10 Pt-35	0		
	6	et-1-019064 SOPt-21	3		
	i	et-2-019065 SOPt-21	0		
	i	et-3-019066 SOPt-21	0		
	i	et-4-019067 SOPt-21	0		OK Cancel
L		A+ 5 010068 SOD+ 21	n	Ψ.	11.76e+00 3.3e-03 12.25e+00 1.1e-03 12.94e+01 1.76

Операции со спектрами	Operation
Арифметические Треугольный фильтр Выгорания	Operation
Первый спектр:	Research
10x18н ам 29-06 : (1) 💌 🛛 <- из таблицы	addition
Операция: Сложить	▼
Второй спектр:	number.
129-2 04-07 : (1) 💽 <- из таблиць	tract dire
Поместить результат в пробу:	—
💻 🗴 хвг 04-07 💽 <- из таблицы	
В параллельную под именем:	
{10x18н ам 29-06_(1) + 🗹 Автомат. имя	a
🗐 Произвести операцию	
Команды с клавиатуры	
категория:	
команды:	описание:
F1 список команд F2 переход в режим 'Переградуировка' F3 список стандартных образцов для переградуир F4 выбор номера результата анализа для удалени	переход в 'Инженер'
F5 выбор химического элемента для проведения пе F6 выполнить переградуировку	
F7 переход в режим 'Измерение' F8 обозначение образца	клавиша:
F9 список проанализированных образцов F10 переход в 'Инженер'	F10
Alt + 1 режим "Отчет"	удалить назначить

Operations with spectra

X

Закрыть

Researcher's tool provides basic operations with spectra – pixel-by-pixel addition and subtraction, multiplication and addition/subtraction of the number. It allows checking assumptions on spectral aliasing or to subtract directly the blank test spectrum.

Keyboard Commands

"Shortcut" window settings for the most popular functions. Allows reducing the necessity to use the mouse and allows using only keyboard buttons when working both in the routine analysis "Assistant", and in the "Engineer" mode.

Add-on modules

ATOM software package may contain add-on modules ensuring operation of peripheral devices. Currently, operation of "Vesuviy" generator, "Globula" stand, vacuum spectrometer with argon spark stand is supported.

"Recording from camera"

ton

It is started in "Tools" menu or by clicking but-

on the control panel.

Video camera images are saved in the current spectrum and are automatically transferred to the analysis table. Information fields — recording time, time elapsed from measurement start, parameters of the saved image are applied to the image; you may also provide comments for images.

Use this tool, for example, to save desktop status or to save information of analogue instruments with time registration relative to the start of each measurement.



Настройки плагина Х	Настройки плагина 🔀 Снимки: Камера Прочие	Настройки плагина 💌
Прикрепление к спектрам снимков с камеры Начало сохранения 0,0 🗄 секунд Интервал сохранения 1,0 🗄 секунд	Выбранная камера: Logitech Webcam 250 💌 Разрешение кадра (640×480	Показывать окно при сохранении сничков Если установлена данная «галочка», то при запуске акспозиции будет происходить автоматическое открытие окна данного инструмента с демонстрацией видеосигнала камеры.
Сохранять только увеличенную область кадра	Настройки драйвера камеры	Эапретить изменение зума камеры Когда прибор уже настроен, то нет необходиности изменять зум камеры. Динная «гапоика» позволяет лаборанту избежать случайных изменений режима оаботы.
ОК ₩0тмена	Отмена//	 Стмена

"Measurement monitor"



Measurement monitor settings	
 ✓ measurement status line ✓ spectral window ✓ burning of elements 	
element	
Ni 341.4763 🔹	
Co 345.3511 🔹	
Cu(2) 344.0507 💌	
	
▼	
Iaunch during measurement	
Apply Cancel	

The tool is used for real time monitoring in the program window of the exposure process, the current spectrum and the receipt of preselected elements.

Select in settings window up to 5 spectral lines of elements from among such displayed in the analysis table.

During data acquisition from MAES analyzer the program processes it "on the fly" and displays burning records for the specified spectral lines.

Tool settings allow selecting the time interval for data saving, video camera type (if there are several cameras in the system), as well as other parameters.

More detailed description of tools related to equipment control is provided in respective manuals.

Globula stand control

Click

button to open module window.

If there is no connection with the stand, the button will look like:





During the exposure you may enable saving of the video images and values of current, interelectrode gap, etc.; saved information remains assigned to the spectrum and may be later viewed by the operator, printed, saved to a file, etc.

All information is saved to a data file together with spectra and may be used later to control, register and check the analysis.

Saved video images may be viewed later using main window menu item "Tool" — "Images".



Fireball generator control

FIREBALL Contro	l Panel			
<u>Settings</u> Save Lo	ad <u>H</u> elp Comr	ment: No comme	ents	
Mode:	F	requency: Duty	Cycle, %: Curre	nt ,A: Time, sec:
1. Arc 🔻 Ur	nipolar 🔻	🔽 Auto Ignit	tion + 10.	
2. Arc 🔻 Ui	nipolar 🔻	🔽 Auto Ignit	tion <u>– 8</u> .	0 ÷ 45.0 ÷
Command —		Diagnostics <	<fb40>></fb40>	
		Button OFF	Timeout	Abs Current:
ON	Ping / Test	Button ON	Overcurrent 1	0.00 A
		Ext.start	Overheat 1	Arc Parametes:
AFF	СОМ1 💌	Interlock	Overheat 2	
OFF	Connect	No Arc	Overcurrent 2	0.00 kWt 0.00 V
		Electrodes	No Connect	0.00 1

Fireball generator control program

External program "duga_shm62_oscil_eng.exe"

Discharge current is displayed in the measurement window during the exposure.

Saving equipment parameters

Modern versions of control programs for Globula stand and Fireball generators, as well as other subprograms allow saving information on values of current, voltage, etc. in relation to each spectrum.

🖩 table 🛃 :	spectrum 🏼 🚣 burning 🖗			🖩 table 💹 spectrum 🖉 burning 🖉 plots					
¥ 🖨 - 🖪	🕂 🖃 - 🖂 🗳 🚔	Ток	▼ Ba	🛠 🖨 🖪 🕂 🖃 - 🖂 🖬	🗳 Верхний электрод	▼ B			
Ток 10			Ток 🔺 🛊	Позиция -3.25	Верх	ний электрод 🔺			
3			2 20	-3:5		3			
3			₩ (H)	-3.75		B *			
			↔ **	4Globula	·····				
	eball-40 c current, Am	pers	\$	Upper electro	ode				
)	10 20 30		Время ≡ 70 80 -	-4.75 0 10 20 30	40 50 60	Время 70 80 -			

Values of current and other values, varying during the exposure, may be viewed later for any spectrum in "Histograms" — "Graphs" display mode. Make sure the dropdown list — control element "List of sources" is enabled in settings.

Software package and licensing information

"ATOM" software package is a special tool for atomic emission spectral analysis. It works with analyzer MAES, spectrometer Grand, Globula stand, Fireball generator and many other spectral devices that VMK Optoelektronika produces.

The "ATOM" software could be used for educational purposes without charge.

The "ATOM" software should be downloaded from official site http://www.vmk.ru, copied from compact-disk from installation package of analyzer MAES and must be used in legal purposes only.

Reverse engineering is strongly prohibited.

ATOM package CD and DVD compact disk are labelled with special image:



For any question and information please visit our site http://www.vmk.ru. E-mail: info@vmk.ru.

30090, Russia, Novosibirsk, pr. Ak.Koptyuga 1 VMK Optoelektronika, phone/fax +7 (383) 330-22-52 Tel.: 8 800 333-30-91 – calls from Russia free of charge Web-site: www.vmk.ru E-mail: info@vmk.ru "ATOM" software User Manual total

106 (one hundred six) numbered pages

number

QC Department Head

V.G. Garanin

Signature